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Rolls-Royce designs, develops, manufactures
and services integrated power systems for
use in the air, on land and at sea.

We are one of the world’s leading producers of aero engines for
large avil aircraft and corporate jets We are the second largest
provider of defence aero engmes and services i the world For
land and sea markets, reciprocating engines and systemns from
Rolls-Royce are in manne, distnibuted energy, o1l & gas, rail and
off-highway vehicle applications In nuclear, we have a strong
instrumentation, product and service capability n both awvil
power and submarine propulsion
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FINANCIAL | 2014 2013 Change
HIGHLIGHTS Order book £m 73,674 71,612 +3%
— Underlying® revenue £m 14,588 15,505 -6%
How did we Underlying™ profit before tax £m 1,617 1.760 -8%
ying" p
perform ™ 2014? Reported revenue £m' 13,736 14,642 -6%
Reported profit before tax £m’ 145 1,960 -96%
Net cash £m 666 1,939 -66%
Free cash flow £fm 254 781 -67%

* Undarlying explanation s n note 2 on page 67
' 2013 re presented to reflect Energy as a discentinued operation

Allfigures in the narrative of the Strategic Repert are underlying unless otherwise stated

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements Any statements that express forecasts, expectations and projections are not guarantees of
future performance and guidance may be updated from time to time Latest informatson will be made avaslable on the Group’s website By their nature,
these statements mvolve nisk and uncertamty, and a number of factors could cause matenal differences to the actual results or developmenis This report
18 mtended to provide information to shareholders, 1s not designed to be rehied upon by any other party or for any other purpose and the Company and

1ts directors accept no hability to any other person other than that required under English law
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GROUP AT A GLANCE

A HIGH-VALUE
GLOBAL
BUSINESS

The Group is organised into two Divisions:
Aerospace and Land & Sea.

Our vision is to create better power for
a changing world.

We do this by developing world-leading
technology, producing highly efficient
products and providing through-life
services in each of our chosen markets
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EMPLOYEES (YEAR AVERAGE) ENGINEERS (YEAR END)

54,100

ORDER BOOK

£73.7bn

INVESTED IN R&D

£1.2bn

UNDERLYING GROUP
REVENUE

[0 Aerospace61%
[JLand & Sea39%

15,500

Y2
a2
\ v
b

COUNTRIES

50+

PATENTS APPLIED FOR

600

UNDERLYING GROUP
REVENUE

£14,588m

UNDERLYING GROUP
PROFIT BEFORE TAX

£1617m




AEROSPACE
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The Aerospace Dvision 1s a leading
producer of aero engimes for large
awil aircraft and corporate jets

We are the second largest provider
of defence aero engimes and
services m the world

We power more than 50 types of
arcraft across cvil and defence
markets and have over 29,000
engines m service

PAGES22TO 25
FOR MORE INFORMATION

CIVIL AEROSPACE

UNDERLYING
REVENUE MIX

U GE revenue 48%
[ Services revenue 52%

UNDERLYING REVENUE

£6,837m

UNDERLYING PROFIT

£942m

DEFENCE AEROSPACE

UNDERLYING
REVENUE MIX

) O revenue 39%
[ Services revenue 61%

UNDERLYING REVENLIE

£2,069m

UNDERLYING PROFIT

£366m

LAND & SEA

The Land & Sea Division
comprises Power Systems,
Marme and Nuclear

Our Power Systems business
ncludes the world-renowned
MTU range of reciprocating
engmes Marine has
equipment installed on over
25,000 vessels

We have a growing avil nuclear
busimess and have 55 years of
experience in nuclear submarine
propulsion

PAGES 26 TO 31
FOR MCRE INFORMATION

POWER SYSTEMS

UNDERLYING
REVENUE MIX

[ OE reverue 70%
[ services revenue 30%

UNDERLYING REVENUE

£2.720m

UNDERLYING PROFIT

£253m

MARINE

UNDERLYING
REVENUE MIX

{J OF revenue 63%
[ services revenue 37%

UNDERLYING REVENUE

£1,709m

UNDERLYING FROFIT

£138m

NUCLEAR

UNDERLYING
REVENUE MIX

O OE revenue 37%
1 services revenue 63%

UNDERLYING REVENUE

£684m

UNDERLYING PROFIT

£48m

ENERGY

We sold the Energy
gas turbimes and
compressor business
to Siemens on

1 December 2014

UNDERLYING REVENUE

£724m

UNDERLYING PROFIT

£(3)m
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

Rolls-Royce is in business
to deliver better power for
a changing world.

The integrated power
systems that we develop,
build and maintain,
address the increasing
global demand for
transport and energy.

tlt, We contimually

seek to reduce cost to remam
competitive and to generate
the funds we need to invest
m future growth”
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As society becomes mare integrated,
population expands and the world becomes
more affluent, the requirement for the

type of advanced engineering solutions

we provide will grow These are long-term
trends that require long-term mvestment
and present us with the opportumty for
long-term profitable growth

The path to growth will not always be
smooth For Rolls-Royce, 2014 has proved

a challenging year for reasons that | will
explatn in some detail During 2014, Group
underlying revenue was 6% lower than n
2013 and underlying profit before tax
declined by 8% However, the Group order
book grew to a new record of £73 7 bilhon,
demonstrating the confidence our
customers continue to place in our
technology and the growth that lies ahead
It 1s encouraging that the Defence aerospace
order book mcreased for the first time since
2010, with continued growth 1 the order
books of Civil aerospace and Power Systems

In this review I will explain why we beheve

our busmess model 1s robust, | will describe

the transformation we are driving through

the Group and the reasons for our .
confidence in the future | will also outline
the challenges we face and the decisive
action we are taking to accelerate a return I
to our long-term trend of profitable growth




5o let me start with our business model
We invest in technology 1n order to meet
our customers’ current and future needs
Through constant innovation we create the
opportumty to grow sales and expand our
market share We earn revenue both from
the sale of oniginal equupment and from
seTvicing the power systems we produce
We continually seek to reduce cost to remain
competitive and to generate the funds we
need to invest in future growth

We have evolved and sismphfied our strategy
to focus on the core areas of customer,
mnovation and profitable growth

Custorner we put customers at the heart of
the organisation We understand their needs
and then focus relentlessly on dehvery

Innovation 1s at the core of Rolls-Royce
and drives a culture of contmuous
improvement Delivering relevant
nnevation 1s critical to meeting our
customers’ current and future needs

Profitable growth by focusing on our
customers and presenting them with a
competitive portfoho of innovative products
and services, we create the opportumity

for long-term profitable growth

Strategic Report

This sharper focus enables us to drive our
busimess model harder and will, over time,
dehver improving finanaial returns

Fromts earhest days Rolls-Royce has
addressed a range of markets where
demand exists for advanced engimeering
solutions Our 1906 artictes of association
describe the business as producing
technology for use i the air, on land and at
sea More than a century later this approach
remains relevant and we run our business
through the two Divisions of Aerospace and
Land & Sea that you will see described 1in the
pages of this Annual Report

There 15 an industnal, commeraial and
strategic logic that ties these two Dwistons
together and generates value for the Group

Industrally, our knowledge of advanced
engmeermg apphes across both our
Cvisions World-class technology 1s requaired
by all of our customers and as the power
systerns we produce become more
sophisticated, a deep understanding

of matenals science, electronics, data
management and aftermarket services

are increasingly important in every part

of the Group

BETTER POWER

Cur Land & Sea Diwision 15 well positioned
to meet the requirements for cleaner
power that will be driven by future growth
n world trade

£74bn Qur order book

mcreased 1 2014 to a record level

il

Commercially, we and our competitors
recognise the requirement of a broad
portfolio and exposure to differing business
andnvestment cycles It 15 not a comaidence
that there 15 no pure aerospace power
system company in the world

The scale represented by our two Divisions
15 important in maintaining a strong
balance sheet and protecting our
mvestment grade rating Scale has also
enabled us to mamtain a global R&D
network comprisimg 31 University
Technology Centres and seven Advanced
Manufacturing Research Centres These
facihties envisage, develop and test
emerging technologies that have
apphcations across our portfoho Our
breadth increases market access and
generates opportumty For example, our
Nuclear business 1s relatively small but
extends our influence and gives us access
to the lighest levels of government
mternationally
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S REVIEW

CONTINUED

INNOVATION

We invest m technology n order to meet
our customers’ current and future needs
Through constant inmovation we create
the opportumty to grow sales and expand
our market share

MORE INFORMATION
ON PAGES 10 ANC 11

t’ tl We continue

to make good progress
1mproving quahty,
dehvery, rehability

and responsiveness.”

6 Rolls-Royce plc

Strategically, our two Dwisions address
markets where long-term growth 15
assured and where increasingly
sophisticated engineering solutions will
be required We believe both aerospace
and land & sea markets offer attractive
returns and play to our strengths

The future growth of air travel 1s widely
understood and reflected in our £63 billion
Civil aerospace order book To give this some
perspective, in the past decade we have
dehvered 1,600 Trent engines In the decade
ahead we expect to deliver 4,000 All of the
engmes in this expanding fleet will produce
service revenues that will extend for
decades to come Qur Land & Sea Division

15 well positioned to meet the requirtements
for cleaner power that will be driven by
future growth in world trade (90% of
which 1s carried by sea), urbamisation,
population growth and tighter
environmental regulations

Across the Group, we invest in technology
that 15 continually setting new standards
m power efficiency and environmental
performance The complexity of what we
do creates barriers to entry and generates
new market opportumties Put simply, there
will be sigmificant long-term growth
demand for the complex integrated power
systems we delver, and there are not many
companies with the ability to do what we
cando

Despite these fundamental strengths,

n 2014 our short-term performance has
been negatively affected by a number of
factors In Aerospace our Defence revenues
fell by 20%, reflecting reduced government
defence spending i our main markets of
North America and Europe In Land & Sea,
slowing growth in a number of our major
markets inciuding Contimental Europe,
South America and China has caused some
customers to delay or cancel orders At the
same time, sharp declines in the price of o1l
and other commodities have led customers
to reduce or defer expenditure, espeaaliy
n the o1l & gas, mining and construction
mdustnes
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In respanse to these adverse conditions,
we have accelerated progress on the 4Cs
of Customer, Concentration, Cost and Cash
—with a particular emphasis on cost This
decisive action 1s driving a transformation
of the business that will, in time, make us
a stronger Group and hasten our return

to profitable growth

On Customer we continue to make good
progress improving quaty, delvery,
rehability and responsiveness, the
characteristics our customers tell us they
value most The results can be seen across
a wide range of programmes At Group level
there has been a further improvement in
delvery times — particularly for spare parts
In Aerospace, the Trent 1000 that powers
the Boeing 787 Dreamliner has achieved

an industry-leading 99 9% engine dispaich
rehabihty after completing over 500,000
flying hours in service Since launch, we
have doubled the time on wing for both
our Trent 700 and Trent 800 fleets In our
Civil Small and Medium Engines busimess,
we achieved a 57 percentage points
improvement in restoring operational
availability for business jets in the past year

Recognising the progress we have made,
Airbus has presented us with its Supply
Chan and Quality Improvement Award
The US Government’s Defense Logistics
Agency recognised Rolls-Royce as a ‘first
tier suppher’ from among 153 companies
and we were awarded joint first place by
Awiation International News for the quahty
of our business aircraft support

In tand & Sea, our delivery on time to
Marine customers has improved by

33 percentage points since 2012 Marine
also signedts first commercial long-term
service agreement As the power systems we
dehver m Land & Sea become more complex,
we see further opportunities to expand our
aftermarket actwities, building on the data
and service capabilities we have developed
m Aetospace In Power Systems, we opened
an addiional logistics centre m Singapore,
enabling a 5% rmprovement i the
availabiity of spare parts and setting

anew standard for customer service

Improving performance 1n this way
strengthens the relationship we have with




our customers, and generates opportumties
for us to secure additional business

Concentration means deciding where
we want to invest and where not to

In August, we were pleased to acquire
Daimler’s 50% shareholding n Rolls-Royce
Power Systems for £1 94 bilon Power
Systems adds scale and capabihty to our
reciprocating engines portfoho It has
outstanding technology, operates in
long-term growth markets and has
proved a valuable addition to our

Land & Sea Division

We also divested a sigmficant business m
December, completing the sale of our Energy
gas turbines and compressor business to
Siemens This 1s a business that has excellent
technology and a talented workforce, but it
lacks the scale requited to prosper as part of
Rolls-Royce Siemens has a far bigger power
generation business and 1s a more suitable
owner The sale generated proceeds of
around £1 bilhon

Turming to Cost we have taken action to
improve cost performance in every part of
the businegss and in every cost category We
have made good progress in some areas and
as a result, Group gross margins improved
by 17 percentage points in 2014 In Defence,
we have improved margins despite dechming
revenue InLand & Sea, we closed five plants
and are rationahsing other parts of the
business for example, we are consolidating
production of steering gear in Norway and
waterjets into Finland We are driving down
cost by improving quahty, simphfying
logistics, reducing waste, and adopting
processes that allow us to make things
better and faster

In November, we announced a restructuring
programme 1n our Aerospace Division and
central functions, which 1s expected to
reduce headcount by 2,600 By the end of
2014, 545 people had left the business, with
the majonity of the reductions expected in
2015 This programme s expected to result
n restructuring charges of around

£120 mithon, of which £56 million was
recogmsed m our 2014 results

We anticipate annuahsed cost benefits of
around £80 milhon from 2016 onwards,
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with £50 million in benefits expected in
2015 Our total Aerospace 2014
restructuring activities cost £164 milhon
(af which £139 milhon was underlying)

However, in a complex and highly-requlated
business, we recognise that it will take
some time for the full benefit of our cost
programmes to feed through There are
also a number of headwinds in our Civil
aerospace busmess associated with our
future growth For example, we have
mvested in the capacity required to deliver
our record erder book, but delay 1n a number
of our customers’ major programmes has
meant some of this new capacity has come
on stream before 1t 1s needed, leaving us
with under-utihsed production facihties
We have also constructed a number of new
world-class faciities to replace older, less
productive plants For a period of transition
we are carrying the cost of both the old

and new facihties

Croup restructuring costs in 2014 were
£188 milhon, of which £149 milhon was
underlying Over the past two years, the
Group has reduced indirect headcount
by 18% We expect Group underlying
restructuring costs to be between £90
and £100 milhon in 2015

Cost performance will continue tobe a
major focus, and as we rationalise and
transform the Group, we have targeted a
20% reduction in our footprmtand a
doubhng of our lower-cost country sourcing
by 2020 We are now accelerating progress
towards these targets

Cash we continue to focus on improving
our free cash flow, particularly in the face
of near-term headwinds Our programmes
to reduce product and aftermarket costs,
lower our headcount and to reduce our
footprint all require upfront investment
but will dehver cost and cash benefits in
the medium term As revenue mncreases,
we expect to reduce our capital expendhture
and R&D as a percentage of sales The
customer progress highlighted earher 1s
improving our operational performance

OUR FIVE PRIORITIES

FOR THE GROUP

DURING 2014 WE OUTLINED THE PRIORITIES
FOR THE BUSINESS GOING FORWARD.

FIX THE BASICS (THE 4Cs)

Thisis about improving the bedrock of the
orgamsation focusingon our customers
and their needs, concentrating on what we
are good at, attacking cost across the Group
and managing our cash position effectively

CULTURE

We want a busmess-onentated, mnovative
and cosi-conscious culture, one that
understands our customers and delivers on
ther behalf We must have a culture where
ethical behaviour 1s fully embedded, so that
we don't just win but wan nght

CIVIL WIDEBODY

We are building on success In the last decade
we dehvered 1,600 Trents and in the next we
will deliver 4,000 We power over 50% of new
wrdebody arcraft Our next generation
engines, Advance and UltraFan™, will help
mamtam our leading market position

CIVILNARROWBODY

Narrowbodies represent 70% of the civit
arcraft market by volume and 50% by value
We have the requisite skills and technology
to return to this market and are deterrmined
to do so when the opportunity arises

Thisis impertant in the longer term,

not just because of the scale this market
segment offers but also because of the
chance 1t presents to develop greater
customer intimacy

MEDIUM-SPEED RECIPROCATING ENGINES
Medium-speed reciprocating engmes power
thevast majority of the marine vessels that
we design and equip We have world-class
technology, but 1t1s charactenistic of this
mdustry that the engine suppheris
particularly well placed to pull through

other technalogies, so cur lack of scale

n medium-speed engines confers a
disadvantage we need to address
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

CONTINUED

TECHNOLOGY

We have continued to invest in our

Land & Sea Dwision, bringing new
technology to market across the portfolo
In September, we unveiled the firstof a
new farmly of medium-speed reciprocating
engines for power on land and at sea

The new Bergen B33 45 offers a 20%
Increase m power per cylinder, while
reducing fuel consumption, emissions
and operating costs

MORE INFORMATION
ONPAGE 28
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Combined with increasing volumes, this will
enable us to reduce our inventory buffers

While a great deal of attention has been
focused, quite nightly, on the financial
performance of the Group, 1t 1s important
to recogmse sigmficant achievements in
2014 that will support the Group's future
profitable growth

1’ 500 Trent XWB

engines are on order The first
engmes were dehvered to
Qatar Arways in 2014

In Aerospace in December, we were
dehghted to celebrate the first delhvery of the
Trent XWB, powerning the new Airbus A350
XWB for launch customer Qatar Airways
The Trent XWB 15 the most fuel efficient
large aero engine operating in the world
today 1would hke to congratulate everyone
at Rolls-Royce who has worked so hard

over many years to support the successful
dehvery of this exceptional arcraft, for
which Rolls-Royce 1s the sole engine provider

At the Farnborough International Airshow
1n July, we announced the seventh member
of the Trent engime famly, the Trent 7000,
that will power the new Airbus A330neo
This new engine will incorporate technology
from our most recent Trents and wilk delver
a 10% mprovermnent in specific fuel
consumption and halve the noise energy
output compared to the current engine on
the A330 Rolls-Royce will be the exclusive
engine suppher on the A330neo, due to
enter service in 2017

We have continued to bring new world-class
facilities on stream 1in 2014 These include
the openming of our new advanced disc
manufacturing facihty at Washington in
the UK and the first production aerofoil
from our new Advanced Aerofoil
Manufacturing Facihty at Crosspointe,
Virgimain the US 2014 saw the
mauguration of our new large engine test
bed 1n Dahlewitz, Germany and the cpenming
of a new marmne customer training centre
outside Rio de Janerro in Brazil
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We marked a major rmlestone in the
development of carbon titamum (CT1) fan
blades with the launch of a test flight
programme on board a Boeing 747 flying
test bed CT1 technology delhvers hghter fan
blades that will be incorperated into future
aero engimes Combmed with a composite
fan casing, 1t forms a system that can reduce
weight by up to 1,5001b per arcraft, the
equivalent of seven passengers

In Land & Sea we have also continued to
strengthen our portfoho, bringing new
technology to market across the Division

In September, we unveiled the first ofa
new family of medum-speed reciprocating
engines for use on land and at sea The
new Bergen B33 45 offers a 20% increase

n power per cylinder, while reducing fuel
consumption, ermissions and operating
costs It1s our first new product to combine
the engmeering strengths of our traditional
Bergen engines operation and our new
Power Systems busimess Because of its
greater power range, the new engine
ncreases our addressable market in
medium-speed engires by 20%

In the naval market two important new
ships powered by our MT30 gas turbines
were officially named the muiti-mission
destroyer US5 Zumwalt and the Royal Navy
arcraft carrier Queen Ehzabeth

In the rail sector, Power Systems has
developed an MTU hybnd PowerPack that
generates additional power through the
braking control system This technology
offers a fuel saving of up to 25% with a
proportional reduction in etmssions

For off-highway vehicles, MTU's latest

Series 4000 engine has improved fuel
consumphion by 5% For a typical application
this can represent a saving of up to 100,000
htres of fuel and reduction of 350 tonnes of
CO, ermissions each year
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MTU's latest Senes 4000

5%

This year our Global Code of Conduct has

engine has improved fuel been ranked by the Red Flag Group as third
consumption by among those within the FTSE 100 compamies
that were assessed Fallowing the roll-out

of our Global Code, dilemma-based ethics
traimimg has been deployed to all

In our Nuclear business, we were

our employees to ensure continuing
attention on this important topic Traiming

encouraged that, in October, the European n ethics and comphance will continue in

Commssion approved the construction

2015 All employees will be required to

of the first new commercial nuclear power certify annually that they have completed

station to be built for a generationin

the UK, at Hinkley Point in Somerset The

Comrmssion concluded that new nuclear

power 1s vital for Bntamn’s energy securnity

their traiming We will be setting similar
standards for our supply chan through the
pubhcatton of cur Suppher Code of Conduct

and wilt be key to reducing carbon emissions  Responding to the difficult circumstances

from the UK’s electricity indusiry Hinkley

of 2014 has required fortitude and resihence

Point Cis the first of at least 11 new reactors  from the talented men and women who

planned for the UK, for which Rolls-Rayce
1s well positioned to supply components,
systems and engineering services

work for Rolls-Royce | would hke to thank
them for ther hard work and for the
enthusiasm | encounter wherever in the

Company |travel | am grateful to our
supphers and partners who make such an

31 Umversity Technology O important contribution to Rolls-Royce and
Centres This research network A w share our cammitment to contmuous

extends relationships we have
with world-leading universities

mmprovement | would like to thank our
customers who continue to place their faith

As the Chairman said, we continued to
strengthen the governance of the Group
We expect the lhghest standards of
behaviour from our employees and we

in our technology Meeting their current
and future needs 15 our lighest prionty

This year we held our inaugural Trusted
to Delver Excellence Awards to recognise
Rokis-Royce teams who have achieved

have been explicit that we will not tolerate outstanding results for their customers

business misconduct of any sort The
Serious Fraud Office investigation mto
concerns about bribery and corruption
involving intermediaries 1n overseas

Theimagmation, passion and ability

to execute demonstrated by ail the finahsts
15 mspinmg You can read more about these
awards on pages 32 to 33

markets continues and we are cooperating

fully with the investigating authorities

Returming our Group to profitable growth

Lord Gold 1s heading a review of our process ~ will demand firm resolve and comrmitrment
and procedures regarding comphanceand  and will take some time However, as I have

business ethics

described in this review, the business
fundamentals of Rolis-Royce remaim sound,
we have the night strategy and we are clear
about the action that 1s required Everything
| know about this great Company makes

me confident that the team will rise to

the challenge

JOHN RISHTON
Chief Executive
12 February 2015

tlm Strateqgically,

our two Divisions

address markets

where long-term growth
is assured and where
mcreasingly sophisticated
engmeernng solutions
will be required”
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INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY

Technology and innovation

are at the heart of Rolls-Royce.
We anticipate technology then
create products and services
that our customers need ahead
of market requirements.

In 2014, we spent £1.2 billion gross
in R&D and filed for 600 patents.

10 Rolls-Royce plc Annual report 2014

Our partnershp in seven Advanced
Manufacturing Research Centres (AMRCs)
bridges the gap between research and
ndustnal apphcation, providing facihities
for industnial partners and academcs to
develop new manufactunng technology

For example, mnovative manufacturing
techmques developed in our AMRC in
Sheffield, UK, are now deployed n our
state-ofthe-art disc facility in
Washington, UK




ENGINEERING STRENGTH

Qur 15,500° engineers, along with our
supply chain, commerciahise and deploy

the continuous stream of science developed
by our unmiversity partners into technology
then preducts Competitive technology
comes from combimng great people, tools
and processes These fundamental building
blocks are used across our two Divisions,
Aerospace and Land & Sea We also
continually invest in new talent and in 2014
we tecruited 354 graduates (254 of which
went into engineering) and 357 apprentices
Techrical people are the hfebloed of the
Company Our investment in techmcal and
leadership traiming allows us to contimuously
develop world-class professionals

INNOVATION

We have a track record over many years

of creating new products and services and
we continue to strive to be leading edge in
everything we do Innovation cannot be left
to chance It needs to be encouraged,
managed, selected and pulled through into
products and services Harnessing the total
mtellectual power of our people takes
enthusiasm and effort Cur new Innovation
Portal, Big Ideas Forums and Cpen
Innovation challenge have been successful
and each year we reward the most
mnovative ideas at our Sir Henry Royce
Technology Awards We look at innovation
in terms of technology and services and
also 1n the way we conduct engineering
and manufacturing This ensures that

we continuously ssimphify and improve
pracesses 1n order to be efficent and
remove waste
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The strength of our current product portfoho
results from consistent and long-term
nvestment in R&D and our abihty to bring
technology to iIndustnal apphcations

In addition to our exiensive in-house
technology capability, we have partnerships
with world-leading universities in order to
create new technology We continuously
mvest in our global network of 31 world-class
Umversity Technology Centres (UTCs) where
we build the foundation for the next
generation of products These technologies
feed into our demenstration programmes,
where robust vahdation takes place befare
proceeding in a structured and controlled
way 1nto new production

£1.2bn

R&D INVESTMENT

DEMONSTRATOR PROGRAMMES

During 2014, progress was made on our
many new technologies, for example, the
carbon titamum fan has flown for the first
time this year in the advanced low-pressure
systems (ALPS) demonstrator, a modified
Trent The compostte fan system has been
developed with the help of four UTCs and
five AMRCs and will offer over 7501bs of
weight saving on our future large engines
We have demonstrated a new mobile MTU
gas engme which has been in development
since 2013 This igh-speed gas engine offers
a fuel alternative whilst maintaining the
level of performance expected from our
high-speed diesel engines At our Dahlewitz
site 1n Germany, we are burlding a new test
facihty for power gearboxes These
gearboxes will be used on the next
generation Ultrafan engine and should offer
a 25% mprovement in fuel efficiency when
compared to the Trent 700

" totalasatend of 2014

OUR ‘VISION’ APPROACH

WE LOOK AT TECHNOLOGY ACQUISITION
OVERA 5, 10 AND 20-YEAR HORIZON

VISION 5

Vision 5 describes near-term technologies
that are ready to introduce into our products
For instance, this year we have successfully
demonstrated our low observabihty
propulsion and exhaust systern integration
capability on the BAE Systerns Tarams
unmanned aeral vehicle On reciprocating
engines our dual-fuel injector design enables
pre-mixed high pressure gas combustion
and allows the cperator ta switch from

gas to hquid fuel during operation

VISION 10

Vision 10 describes leadimg-edge, validated
technologies for apphcation n the 'medum
term’ Most of these are at demonstration
level today and will feature in the next
generation of products For example, the
lean burn combustion system for aero gas
turbines has been in development for some
years and offers a 60% reduction in the
pollutant NO, and particulate matter
{(smoke) compared to year 2000 levels It will
reach flight test in 2015 and 1s supported
by the European Clean Sky Programme

VISION 20

Vision 20 describes emerging, or as yet
unproven, technologies which may be
apphed across our product range in both
Aerospace and Land & Sea For example,

we are developing concepts for autanomous
ships to reduce operating costs and radically
simphfy onboard facihties

11
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MARKET OUTLOOK

The Group has identified markets where our skills and
technology add value for our customers and deliver value
for shareholders. As a long-term business we assess the

market potential over a 20-year horizon.

Through the customer-facing
busmesses that make up our two
Dwisions, we are delvering better
power in the am, onland and at sea.

Our technology, skills and customer
msight position us to have the nght
products and services today and
for the future

Aetospace potential
for OF and services
over the next 20 years

Land & Sea potential
for OE and services
over the next 20 years

£1,300bn’

t Rounded to the nearest 100bn

12 Rolls-Royce plc

AEROSPACE DIVISION

CIVIL AEROSPACE

We estimate that the global civil engine
market will be worth approximately
US$1,900 billion over the next 20 years,
with US51,250 billion being for original
equipment (OE) and US$650 ilhon for
aftermarket services Over half of this value
compnises engines for twin-aisle airliners
and large busmess jets

DEFENCE AEROSPACE

The defence market opportumty over the
next 20 years 15 U5$125-150 billon n O
and US5225-250 bilhon n services

Annual report 2014

LAND & SEA DIVISION

POWER SYSTEMS

We estimate the off-highway reciprocating
engme markets we address offer an
opportumty of £500 bilhon over the next
20 years for Ok The total service-related
market will offer a potential of around

a third of that OE value, or £150 balhon

MARINE

We forecast a business opportunity
(excluding reciprocating engines) across
the offshore, merchant and naval market
segments over the next 20 years of

£170 bilhon for OE and £80 bilhon for
assocated services

NUCLEAR

The demand for mission-critical equipment,
systems and engineering services for

o1l nuclear could reach £220 billon over
the next 20 years, while the demand for
associated reactor support services

could amount to £140 bilhion over the

same period




STRATEGY

Strategic Reporg

We are a power systems company competing globally. We win
in our chosen markets by focusing on, and connecting, three
powerful themes: customer, inmovation and profitable growth.

&

CUSTOMER

INNOVATION

PROFITABLE GROWTH ﬁﬁﬁ]

Placing the customer at the heart
of our orgamisation 1s key We
listen to our customers, share
1deas, really understand ther
needs and then relentlessly focus
on dehvering our promises

This 15 our hfeblood We
contimually mnovate to remam
competitive To drive mnovation,
we create the nght environment
— curious, challenging, unafraxd

of farlure, disciphned, open-
minded and able to change with
pace Most importantly, we ensure
our innovation 1s relevant to our
customers’ needs

By focusing on our customers

and offering them a competitive
portfoho of products and services,
we create the opportunity to grow
our market share We have to
make sure that we are not just
growng, but growing profitably
That means ensuring our costs

are compehitive We look after

our cash and we win nght

PEOPLE

S

DELIVERY OF OUR STRATEGY

SEE PAGES 34 TC 37 FOR MORE INFORMATION ON HOW SUSTAINABILITY PLAYS A PIVOTAL ROLE IN THE

Our people are the key enabler of our strategy We are committed to recruiting, developing and retaining
the best and to creating a chimate for success We are building a business-orientated, innovative and
cost-conscious culture, where our people feel connected to the needs of our customers, the needs of our
shareholders and the needs of our broader commumities.
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BUSINESS MODEL

We bring advanced technology
to market through integrated
power and propulsion systems
and services for use in the air,
on land and at sea.

Engineering excellence 1s a fundamental source of competitive
advantage across the Group Our methods, processes and
experience enable us to deliver complex, high-value programmes
Qur ability to optirmse and integrate entire systems 1s a core
competence informed by a close understanding of customer
needs and decades of doman knowledge

Addressing complementary markets from a shared capability and
technology base brings breadth and scale, diversity and balance,
enabhing us to invest efficiently, and providing the resiience
required to offset new project nsk Qur manufacturing model

1s consistent across the Group, we only produce parts ourselves
where we can create and sustain a competitive advantage

The balance of our supply chain is built around close and
long-standing relaticnships with key partners and supphers,

a model that provides flexibility of capactty and secures access
to world-class capabihity Some partners, as well as supplying
parts, share in the risks and rewards of the whole programme
from research and development to manufacture, through risk
and revenue sharing arrangements

Services are an essentral part of our business, building customer
relationships and providing revenue stability by moderating the
effects of new equipment order cycles Services offer strong growth
potential and the opportumty to align incentives through long-term
service contracts, providing visibility of costs to our customers and
helping us secure future revenues This is particularly the case

n Civil aerospace where contractual and air safety considerations
mean that we have rights that secure a large part of the
aftermarket spare parts business even where we do not have

a TotalCare® agreement

The operation of our business model over decades has resulted

n a substantial and growing nstalled base of engines at all stages
of the product life cycle Cash flows today from investments made,
N some cases many years ago, support investment for the future
We are focused on making this proven business model more
effective through relentless focus on costs to generate the funds
to sustam the investment necessary to remain competitive
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CONNECT TECHNOLOGY
TO CUSTOMER NEEDS

Our deep understanding of customer
needs drives the development of new
technologies and products

AEROSPACE

Gas turbines

Large & global

High

High

5-20 years

40+ years

Substantial and growing

/AN

Al —<X

N

ALLOCATE CAPITALTO
NEW GROWTH

We operate a disciphined capital allocation
process actoss the Group We imvest only
where we beheve we can create and
sustain a competitive advantage and
acheve a good return for shareholders




INVEST IN R&D AND
SKILLED PEOPLE

Developing and protecting leading-edge
technology and deploying it across our
businesses allows us to compete on aglobal
basis and creates mgh barriers to entry

Strategic Report

DESIGN AND MAKE
WORLD-CLASS PRODUCTS

We differentiate on performance We win
and retain customers by developing and
dehvering products that provide more
capability and offer better through-hfe
value than those of our competitors

/J\

J

N/ 8 =)
LAND & SEA
< POWER SOURCE -2 Reciprocating engines Nuclear
€& CUSTOMER BASE —> | Large & global Global
BARRIERS TO ENTRY Medwum/high High
g g

€~ INVESTMENT REQUIRED —> | Low/medium Low/medium
€& DEVELOPMENTTIME =) | 2-8 years 20 years
& PRODUCT LIFE —> | 20+ years 40+ years
& SERVICE OPPORTUNITY —» | Crowing Growing

() N

« &)

SECURE AND MAXIMISE GROW MARKET SHARE

SERVICE OPPORTUNITY AND INSTALLED BASE

Our equipment i1s 1n service for decades
Our deep design knowledge and in-service
experience ensures that we are best
placed to optimise product performance
and availlabihty

Our substantial order book for both
ongmal equipment and services provides
good visibility of future revenues and
provides a firmfoundation to invest
with confidence

15
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S REVIEW

As | reflect on my new role
as Chief Financial Officer
at Rolls-Royce, | would like
to underline the progress
we've made in 2014 and
outline my priorities for
2015 and beyond.

16 Rolls-Royce plc Annual report 2014

This has clearly not been an easy year
However, the Group 1s fundamentally strong
We are 1n the enviable position of having

a £74 billen order book of products and
services that will deliver revenue for decades
tocome We operate in markets with
excellent long-term growth dynarmics and
high barners to entry We are valued by our
customers Our innovative team s creating
products at the forefront of technology We
have set out firmly on the path to transform
ourindustnal structure Qur objective now
1s to translate these product successes,
growth markets and internal transformation
mto attractive returns and cash flow in the
medwum term

In 2014, we made good progress on our
business transformation, delvering both
in-year 1mprovements on our 4Cs such as
customer delivery performance and creating
the medium-term platform for improving
margins and cash flow

For example, in Aerospace we have reduced
our aftermarket costs for our volume engine,
the Trent 700, and also made gocd progress
on our corporate jet and defence contracts
Over the past two years, the Group has
reduced indirect headcount by 18% We also
sold our Energy gas turbines and compressor
business to Stemens on 1 December 2014
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SUMMARY

[ 2014 2013 Change ]
Qrder book £m 73,674 71,612 +3%
Underlying’ revenue £m 14,588 15505 -6%
Underlying® profit before tax £m 1,617 1,759 -8%
Return onsales 11 5% 11 8% -03pp
Reported revenue’ 13,736 14,642 -6%
Reported profit before tax’ 146 1,960 -93%
Net cash 666 1,939 -66%
Free cash flow £fm 254 781 -67%

* Underlying explanation 1s 1n note 2 on page 67

' 2013 re-presented to reflect Energy as a drscontinued operation
All figures in the narzative of the Strateqw Report are underlying unless otherwise stated

We know we need to accelerate our efforts
on cost and cash In November, we
announced a restructuring and cost
reduction plan that wall deliver £80 million
in annualised savings and we will make
further announcements at the approprate
time We will also look to reduce our
facilities” footprint, increase our activities
n lower-cost countries, pursue further
aftermarket cost reductions and continue
to make progress on inventory, investment
efficiency and cash management

Apersonal prigrity 15 strengthenimg and
streamiining our financial controls and
business information We have excellent

GROUP UNDERLYING RETURN ON

REVENUE (£m) SALES (%}
15505 120 113
ik wr {1
12209
10866 11277

L5 1,617

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

2011 2012 2013 2014

accounting and techmical skills, which are
cniticalin cur complex business | will be
working to dehver inancial and non-
financial KPIs that are more forward-looking
and have a greater focus on the business
fundamentals which are dnving our cash
and profit performance

Armid these changes there are certam
fundamentals that we will continue
to support These include

+ maintaining a strong balance sheet that
gives confidence to our customers and
enables our business to invest in future
programmes,

GROUP UNDERLYING
PROFIT BEFORE
TAXATION (£m})

1760

1434

&

955

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

- continuing to refine our capital allocation
processes and invest in R&D to develop
the next generation of products, and

+ managing nisk prudently including
hedging our foreign currency exposures
to reduce volatihty

There’s no doubt that the recent changes
n oland commodity prices, currencies
and geopohtical strains have increased
uncertainty We therefore need to plan
cautiously while accelerating our business
improvernent activity

Looking ahead, our product pertfolo
transition will see rising deliveries of new
cwvilengines that will sgnificantly increase
our mstalled base We will also continue to
grow our Land & Sea businesses This and
our mvestment in new technology and
industnal transformation will constram
nearterm margms and cash generation
However, as we move towards the medium
term and this growth and mvestment phase
moderates, we expect both margins and
cash conversion to improve

PAGES 52 TO 105
CONSQUIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

2014 has been a mixed year during which underlying
revenue fell for the first time in a decade, reflecting
reduced spending by our defence customers, macro
economic uncertainty and falling commodity prices.

GROUP UNDERLYING INCOME STATEMENT

I£ million 2014 2013 Change I
Revenue 14,588 15,505 (917)
Profit before financing 1,678 1,832 (154)
Net financing (61) (72) 11
Profit before taxation 1,617 1,760 {143}
Taxaton (387} (434) 47
Profit for the year 1,230 1,326 (96)
Cross R&D mvestment 1,249 1118 131
Net R&D charge 755 624 131

SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Revenue Profit before financing
£ mithan 2014 2013 Change 2014 2013 Change
Ciwl 6,837 6655 182 542 844 98
Defence 2,069 2,591 (522) 366 438 (72)
Aerospace Division 8,906 9,246 (340) 1,308 1,282 26
Power Systems 2,720 2,831 {111) 253 294 {41)
Manne 1,709 2037 (328) 138 233 {95)
Nuclear 684 667 17 48 10 38
Intra-segment (155) (147) (8) (13) 2 {15)
Land & Sea Dmision (excluding Energy) 4,958 5,388 (430) 426 535 (113)
Energy 724 871 (147) {3) 64 {67)
Land & Sea Division 5,682 6259 {577) 423 603 {180)
Central costs (53) (54) 1
Group (exchuding Energy) 13,864 14634 (770) 1,681 1767 (86)
Group 14,588 15505 (917) 1,678 1,831 (153)

GROUP UNDERLYING REVENUE

£14,588m

GROUP UNDERLYING PROFIT BEFORE
TAXATION

£1,617m

18 Rolls-Royce plc

Underlying revenue reduced £0 9 billion

to £14 6 hilhon, a reduction of 6%, of which
3% 1s due to adverse year-on-year foreign
exchange (FX) rate movernents The
remaining reduction reflects a 5% declme
m onginal equipment (OE) revenue and

a 1% dechne in services revenue Underlying
services revenue continues to represent
around half (48%) of the Group's underlying
revenue Group services revenue included
ncreases in Defence aerospace and Power
Systemns parhally offset by reductions inour
Marine, Nuclear and Energy businesses

Annual report 2014

Underlying profit before financing and
taxation reduced 8% to £1 7 billon We
saw a negative impact from lower volumes,
especially m Defence and Land & Sea,
mereased R&D mvestment (£140 million)
and higher restructuring charges

{£100 milhon), a one-off Marme charge
(£30 rmillion), and adverse FX (£43 rmllion)
These factors were offset by an )/mproved
trading margin which included
approximately £150 miliion benefit from
mmproved tetrospective TotalCare contract
profitabihty {£110 rmlhon detenoration

n 2013}, reflecting lower cost, changing
operating patterns and reduced contract
nsk Trading margins im Defence also




improved, driven by both cost reduction
action and an improved mix In Land & Sea
we incurred a loss at our Bergen subsidiary
(£33 mithon), reflecting weaker trading
performance Lower bonus and share
incentive costs resulted n a saving
of £178 million

PAGES 2270 31

FURTHER DISCUSSION OF TRADING IS INCLUDED

N THE BUSINESS REVIEWS
Underlying financing costs reduced by 15%
to £61 milhon reflecting reduced financial
nisk and revenue sharing arrangements
(RRSAs) habilities and other improvements

Underlying taxation of £387 million
represents an underlymng tax rate of 23 9%,
compared with 24 7% n 2013

PAGE 126
THE GROUP S TAX PAYMENTS

Net underlying R&D charged to the income
statement increased by 21% to £755 milhion,
reflecting a combination of increased

net investment of £98 million and lower
net capitahsation of £21 milhon (due

to the phasing of major new programmes,
in particular the certification of the

Trent XWB-84) and £12 million lower net
deferral of RRSA entry fees — see page 115
The net investment spend represents 5 8%
of Group underlying revenue, although 1t1s
expected that this will reduce shghtly n the
future towards the longer-term target of
around 5% Our gross R&D expenditure of
£1 2 bilhon includes funded programmes

REPORTED PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Consistent with IFRS and past practice,

the Group provides both reported and
underlying figures We believe underlying
figures are more representative of the
trading performance, by excluding the
impact of year-end mark-to-market
adjustments, principally the GBP USD hedge
book In addihion, post-retirement financing
and the effects of acquisition accounting are
excluded The adjustments between the
underlying ncome statement and the
reported mcome statement are setout in
more detail in note 2 to the Financial
Statements This basis of presentation has
been applied consistently

Strateqic Report

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

[¢ million 2014 2013 |
Underlying 1,617 1,760
Mark-to-market adjustments on denivatves (1,254) 217
Movements on other financial instruments (8) 8
Effect of acquisition accounting (142) {265)
Exceptional restructunng (39) —
Acquisitions and disposals 8 335
Post-retirement schemes (29) {30)
Other (ncduding discontinued operations) (N (5)
Reported (2013 restated to exclude discontinued operations) 146 1,960

The mark-to-market adjustments are
principally driven by movements in the
GBP USD exchange rate which moved from
16510156 during 2014

The effects of acquisition accounting

n accerdance with IFRS 3 are excluded

from underlying profit so that all businesses
are measured on an equivalent basis

Costs assocated with the substantial
closure or exit of a site, facility or actwity are
classified as exceptional restructuring and
excluded

Profits and losses ansing on acquisitions
and disposals during the year are excluded

Net financimg on post-retitement schemes
1s excluded from underlying profitand, in
2013, the cost of providing a discretionary
mmcrease to pensions was also excluded

UNDERLYING

UNDERLYING PROFIT

Appropriate tax rates are applhed to these
adjustments, the net effect of which was

a £239 milhon reduction in the reported tax
charge (2013 £54 million reduction) The
adjustment includes a £64 milhion reduction
i the value of recoverable advance
corporation tax recogmsed A reconcihation
of thetax chargeis included in note 5

NETR&DAS A

REVENUE BEFORE TAXATION PROPORTION OF REVENUE
(em) {£m) (%)
15505 1759 58
] 14,588 7 1617 —
, 12209 1434 47 45 47 A8
1277 1
Lozee 1157
955
2010 2011 2612 2013 2014 2010 2011 012 2013 2014 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED
SUMMARY BALANCE SHEET
Energy dispasal

£ millign 2014 Other changes [note 25} 2013
ntangible assets 4,804 (77) {106) 4,987
Property, plant and equipment 3,446 241 (187) 3,392
Joint ventures and assocates 539 {6) {56) 601
Net working capital {712) 694 {393) {1,013}
Net funds 666 {1,269} [G3] 1,939
Provisions {807) (108} 34 (733)
Net post-retirement scheme surpluses/{deficits) 555 1,348 - {793)
Net financial assets and habihites (833) {1120) - 287
Other net assets and llabihties {827) {294) - (533)
Net assets 6,831 {591} {712) 8134
Other items
USD hedge book Us$ bilhon 256 247
TotalCare assets 2,492 1,901
TotalCare habihties {2013 includes £245m not previously mcluded) (687) (559)
Net TotalCare assets 1,805 1,342
Customer financing contingent commiments

Cross 388 356

Net 59 59
BALANCE SHEET facilitres and toohing as the Group prepares  Net financial assets and habilities (note 16)

Intangible assets (note 8) represent
long-term assets of the Group These assets
decreased by £77 rmllion with additionat
development, contractual aftermarket
nghts, certificabion and software costs being
more than offset by annual amortisation
charges

The carrying values of the mtangible assets
are assessed forimpairment against the
present value of forecast cash flows
generated by the intangible asset The
principal nisks remam reductions in assumed
market share, programme timings, increases
m umt cost assumptions, and adverse
movements 1n discount rates There have
been no significant impairments in 2014

Property, plant and equipment (note 9)
ncreased by £241 rmillion due to the
ongoing development and refreshment of

tl t’ The Group

contimues to mamtain
a strong balance sheet,
providing reassurance
to our customers”
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for ncreased production volumes

Investments in joint ventures and associates
(note 10} remain stable as the share ¢of
retained profit was offset by dividends
receved

Provisions (note 17) largely relate to
warranties and guarantees provided to
secure the sale of OF and services The
mcrease 1s largely a result of the recogmtion
of restructuring costs

Net post-retirement scheme surpluses/
{deficits) (note 18) increased by

£1,348 muithon, principally due to relative
movements in the yeld curves used to value
the underlyimg assets and liabihties in
accordance with |AS 19 In addition, the
scheme rules on the largest UK scheme
were amended during the year, resulting

n the surplus being recognmised

{£544 mlhon 1mpact)

The Group's principal pension schernes
adopt a low nsknvestment strategy that
reduces volatility going forward and enables
the funding pesition to remaim stable
mterest rate and inflation risks are largely
hedged and the exposure to equities s
around 8% of scheme assets

Annual report 2014

mclude the fair value of derwatives and
financial RRSAs The reduction primarily
reflects foreign exchange derwvatives (£1,137
rmilhon) due to the sirengtherming of the US
dollar

The USD hedge book increased by 4% to
US$25 6 bilhon This represents around four
and a half years of net exposure and has an
average book rate of £1 to USS1 61

Net TotalCare assets relate to long-term
service agreement (LTSA) contracts (and
where appropnate the hmked OE contract)

n the Ciwvil aerospace business, including
the flagsmp services product TotalCare
These assets represent the timing difference
between the recogmtion of iIncome and
costs m the mncome statement and cash
receipts and payments The increase

largely reflects gh levels of linked Trent 700
and increasing Trent 1000 engine sales 1n
the year

Customer finanaing facihtates the sale

of OF and services by providing financing
support to certain customers Where such
support 1s provided by the Group, 1t 15 almost
exclusively to customers of the Civil
aerospace business and takes the form

of various types of credit and asset value
guarantees These exposures produce



contingent habihities that are outhined in
note 18 The contingent habilities represent
the maximum aggregate discounted gross
and net exposure in respect of delivered
awrcraft, regardless of the pomtin time at
which such exposures may anse

During 2014, the Group's gross exposure on
dehvered arcraft mcreased by £32 million,
due largely to the strengtheming of the US
dollar On a net basis, exposures remained
unchanged with a small reduction being
offset by the exchange rate movement

FUNDS FLOW

Movement in working capital —the increase
reflects the growth of the net TotalCare
asset and an increase i amounts due from
the parent company, offset by a reduction in
the amount of customer deposits

Expenditure on property, plant and
equipment and intangibles — the decrease
reflects a reduction in additions to property,
plant and equipment (£32 million),
participation fees and certification costs
{£26 milhon} and software and other
ntangible assets (£41 milhen), offset by
increased expenditure on contractual
aftermarket rights {£41 milhon)
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Pensions — contnibutions to defined FREE CASH FLOW
benefit pension schemes 1n 2014 included {£m}

£33 milhon to UK schemes to fund the 1026
discretionary mcreases agreed in 2013 ]
The service cost included a past-service
credit of £31 rmilhon ~ largely relatig
to restructuning {2013 past-service cost
£71 rmllion — largely relating to the 425
discretionary increases above), which
15 the main reason for the £116 million
ncrease in the cash contnibutions 1in excess [:| D {221)
of the PBT charge o

137 162

The Group’s funding of 1ts defined benefit 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
schemes 1s expected to reduce by around

30% 1n 2015, as a result of deficit funding

requirements ending and the

non-recurrence of the payment for

discretionary increases

Shareholder payments — the increase
reflects the Power Systems dividend to
Daimler (£14 rmillion increase)

Acquisitions and disposals include the
payment of £2,013 muilion (including

the fair value of dervatives held to hedge
the cost} for the additional 50% of Power
Systems offset by £1,027 milhon of

net proceeds from the disposal of the
Energy business

SUMMARY FUNDS FLOW

[ mitlion 2014 2013 Change
Cpeming net funds 1,939 1316

Closing net funds 666 1,939

Change in net funds (1,273) 623

Underlying profit before tax 1,617 1,759 {142)
Depreciation and amortisation 600 608 (8)
Movement 1n net working capital (985) {265) (720)
Expenditure on property, plant and equipment and mtangible assets (1,114) (1,172) 58
Other 89 (231) 320
Trading cash flow 207 699 (492)
Contnbutions to defined benefit post-retirement schemes in excess of PBT charge {152) (36) (116)
Tax {276) {238) (38)
Free cash flow (221) 425 (646)
Shareholder payments {76) (60} (16)
Acquisitions and disposals {965} 265 {(1,230)
Net funds of businesses acquired {30) 36 {66)
Foreign exchange 19 (43) 62
Change in net funds (1,273) 623

Average net funds (38) 350 (388)
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BUSINESS REVIEW — AEROSPACE

As a leading manufacturer
of aero engmes for the cwvil
large arrcraft, corporate jet
and defence markets, the
growing global requirerment
for cleaner, more efficient,
better power, continues to
create opportunities for our
Aertospace Division

TONY WOOD
President — Aerospace

Within the civil market we continue to see
mcreasing numbers of people traveling

by air The International A Transport
Association (IATA) reported that available
seat kilometres (a measure of civil air traffic)
grew by nearly 6% 1n 2014 and the long-term
growth outlook remains at around 5% per
annum for the foreseeable future

In the defence market, despite ongoing
pressure on budgets, aviation remains a
vital component of defence forces around
the world and we secured several important
new orders during the year

In 2014, our engines powered the first
dehvernies of two new airliners, one for each
of our major arrframe customers, Arrbus

and Boeing We launched the seventh
member of our Trent engine farmly, achieved
major milestones for existmg Trent engine

programmes and made important
announcements about covil engine
technologes for the future

Business Jet owners and operators continue
to seek greater speed, range and the highest
levels of service 2014 saw Rolls-Royce
selected by Gulfstream for a new ultra-long
range business jet and we powered a new
version of the fastest civilian aircraft in the
world into service for Cessna We contimue
to invest for the next generation of large
business jet engines

Our defence customers are focused on
extending the lives and improving the
efficiency of their in-service arrcraft
Rolls-Royce s helping air forces to do more
with less by delivering new or improved
engines and services Looking to the future,
we see opportumities to power new

OVERVIEW

CIVIL AEROSPACE

KEY HIGHLIGHTS

CIvIL
Undertying revenue (£m)

ga37 6655 68%7

CIVIL UNDERLYING
REVENUE BY SECTOR

CIVIL UNDERLYING
REVENUE MIX

First Trent XWB delivered and Trent XWB 97 version on test
= Trent 7000 chosen to power new Airbus A330nep

- latest Trent 1000 entered service on Boeng 787-9

and Trent 1000-TEN on test

BR725 selected for Gulfstream G650ER and AE 3007C2
entered service on Cessna Ortabon X+

.

.

(B 23,900 oo

1L

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

[ OE revenue 48%
[ services revenue 52%

O widebody 61%
O Corporate & regionai 39%

DEFENCE AEROSPACE

KEY HIGHLIGHTS

+ lockheed Martin agreernent signed for 600 AE 2100 engmes

A330 MRTT now fully operationalin UK and selected by
France and Simgapore

A400M transporter delivenies continue

Business resizing to reduce costs and improve
competitiveness 1s progressing

(B 7,000 oo
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DEFENCE
Underlying revenue (Em)

2591

2417
D 123 El H ]

2010 2011 2012 013 2014

Annual repart 2014

DEFENCE UNDERLYING
REVENUE MIX

[0 OE revenue 35%
[ services revenue 61%
[ Development 43

DEFENCE UNDERLYING
REVENUE BY SECTOR

[ Combat 39%
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programmes, such as the Korean K-FX
combat aircraft and the Anglo-French Future
Combat Air System

We continue to focus on reducing costs

to support our strategy of customer,
mnovation and profitable growth The
investments we have made in new
technology and capacity will enable us

to increase output and improve efficiency
Delay m a number of customer programmes
did result in some capacity being ready
earher than needed, however these
prograrmmes are now coming on stream In
June, we opened a new facility

m Washington, UK, speciahsing i advanced
manufacturmg techniques and robotics
which will halve the time to manufacture
fan and turbine discs We are acceleraiing
our plans to consolidate older facilities and
transition to newer ones Towards the end

L |
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of the year we announced a programme to
further improve operational efficiency and
reduce costs across the Aerospace Dwision
over the next 18 months

Although revenue remamed broadly flat
through 2014 due to current market
condihions and lower defence spending,
our cost reduction actions have yielded
benefits durnng the year and laid the
foundations required to support rmid-term
margin improvement for the Division

AEROSPACE LOCATIONS

CIVIL AEROSPACE

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

WHO WE ARE

The Cwvil aeraspace business 1s a majer
manufacturer of aero engines for the
commercial large arcraft and corporate jet
markets We power 35 types of commeraial
aircraft and have more than 13,000 engines
n service around the world

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Ciwvit order book increased 5% Our net
order intake was £11 7 bilhon Aftermarket
services now constitute 31% of the Civil
order book

Underlying revenue grew 3% {up 4% at
constant foreign exchange), on 8% growth
m O that was partially offset by a 1%
dechne in services OE growth was primanily
driven by a ramp up in Trent 1000 engine
production This was parhally offset by

a 9% reduction 1n business jet engine
dehvenes The decline in services reflects
the expected 24% decline in the RB211
programme Aftermarket revenue from
our Trent fleet increased 6%

Underlying profit improved by 12%,

driven by higher volumes and ymproved
aftermarket margins Profit benefited from
approximately £150 million i improved
retrospective TotalCare contract
profitabihty, reflecting lower cost, changing
operating patterns and reduced contract
risk Profit also benefited from lower
commercial and adrmimstrative (C&A)

and bonus costs This was partially offset
by £63 milhon in higher restructuring

costs and £151 miliion in higher R&D costs
The investments we are making in R&D and
restructuring will support future

profitable growth
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BUSINESS REVIEW — AEROSPACE

CONTINUED

CIVIL AEROSPACE — KEY FINANCIAL DATA

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 |
QOrder book £m? 48,490 51,942 49,608 60296 63,229
+3% +7% -4% +22% +5%
Engine delivenies’ 846 962 668 753 739
Underlying revenue £m 4,919 5,572 6,437 6,655 6,837
+10% +13% +16% +3% +3%
Underlying OF revenue £m 1,892 2,232 2,934 3,035 3,265
Underlying service revenue £m 3,027 3,340 3,503 3,620 3,572
Underlying profit before financing £m 392 499 743 844 942
-20% +27% +49% +14% +12%

all years before 2012 include |AE order book and engine deliveries include IAE V2500

OURYEAR

We have over 50% of the engines on order
for the widebody arlimer market A number
of developments during 2014 helped to
consolidate our position as the leading
suppher in this sector

The first Airbus A350 XWB aircraft, powered
by our Trent XWB engines, was delivered to
launch customer Qatar Airways at the end
of the year, marking the start of our largest
production programme Earlier, n July we
ran the more powerful 97,000ib thrust
version of the Trent XWB for the first hime
This version will power the larger Arrbus
A350-1000 due to enter into service in 2017
In June, Emirates announced the
cancellation of 1ts order for 70 A350 XWB
aircraft This was partially offset by new
orders and at the end of the year the

Trent XWB order book stood at more than
1,500 engines

The latest version of the Trent 1000 entered
mto service n July, powering Boeing 787-9
Dreamliners for Air New Zealand and ANA
Work progressed on the Trent 1000-TEN
which will be avanlable from 2016 and will
be capable of powering all vanants of the
Dreamhner

Airbus receved the 1,500th Trent 700 n
August, 20 years after the first engine was
dehvered Rolls-Royce powers 58% of the
Airbus A330s currently in service or on order
A new more fuel-efficient version, the
A330neo, will be exclusively powered by
our new Trent 7000 engine By the end

of the year we had received commitments
for Trent 7000 engines to power

120 A330neo arrcraft Thisincluded an
order from the major US airhne Delta for
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25 Trent 7000-powered A330neos together
with 25 Trent XWB-powered A350-900s

1’ 500 Trent XWB

engines have been ordered

Throughout 2014 we have been engaged

m Trent 900 sales campaigns to power new
orders for Airbus A380s Decisions onengine
choice have yet to be made 1n these ongoing
campaigns We continue to work closely
with Airbus to support the future of this
ymportant programme

We fook sigmficant steps in the
development of our future engine
programmes In February, we announced
two mnovative new engine designs, the
Advance turbofan and UltraFan which

will feature a power gearbox These will

be available from 2020 and 2025
respectively A new test bed for power
gearboxes Is to be built at our site in
Dahlewtz, Germany, representing an
mvestment of €65 million An additional
test bed for future extra-large engines of
up to 150,000ibs thrust was also opened

m Dahlewitz in November We maintained
our leading position in the business jet
market Our BR725 was selected to power
Gulfstream’s new ultra-long-range business
Jet, the GES0ER The year also saw the entry
mto service of the world’s fastest civiian
arrcraft, the AE 3007C2-powered Citation X+

To support operators of Rolls-Royce pewered
business jets we continued to expand our
global network of authonised service centres
The number of engines powering corporate

Annual report 2014

arcraft covered by our CorporateCare®
programme reached more than 1,600 The
level of TotalCare coverage

n the commeraial transport installed engine
base increased to 83% this year and 210
mcremental corporate Jets were signed

up to our CorporateCare programme

LOOKING AHEAD

In support of our future growth strategy,
we will make investments that enable us

to dehver our sigmficant order book and
develop the next generation of cvil engines
with new technologies, advanced
manufacturing techmgues and more
efficient processes

We will develop TotalCare m Iine with
changing market requirements for services
We will leverage our world-class daia
management capabiity through our newly
created Controls and Data Services business
We will remain focused on the 4Cs and will
embed a modern, dynamic and ethical \
culture across all areas of the business

DEFENCE AEROSPACE

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

WHO WE ARE

We are the leading engme maker for the
military transport market and the second
largest provider of defence aero-engine
products and services globally Defence
has 16,000 engines 1n service with

160 customers in over 100 countrnes

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Defence order book grew 12% n 2014,
the first ncrease since 2010 Total order
ntake ncreased 55% to £2 54 billion, from
£1 64 bilhon 1 2013

Underlying revenue fell 20% {down 18%

at constant foreign exchange), reflecting a
41% dechne in CE partially offset by

4% growth n aftermarket services OF
reductions were due to lower volumes
across several programmes, including major
delveries 1n 2013 of two export contracts
that were nearing completion £J200 to
Saud Arabia and Adour to India Services
revenue grew modestly, as LiftSystem™ and
TP400 maintenance started to ramp up




A smaller dechne in underlying profit of
16% (down 14% at constant foreign
exchange) reflects sigmficant cost reduction
actions and the favourable mix shift
towards aftermarket, which represented
61% of Defence revenue Profit also
benefited from lower C&A and benus costs

OURYEAR

Custorers in our principal markets of North
America and Europe face continued pressure
from constraints on government defence
spending As a consequence, pricing and
mnovation have become even more
important as our customers look for ways

to do more with less

In order to be closer to our customers whilst
reducing cost, we have concentrated our UK
mamntenance, repair and overhaul activity
into one site i Bristol We also moved
support for the Rolls-Royce LiftSystem® to
indianapels to support the F-35B bightming |l
aircraft programme as 1t progresses to
imtial Operating Capability with the US
Marine Corps m 2015 The £-35 programme
continues to ramp up, with orders received
for production and support of the
LiftSystem m 2014 totalling US$548 muiflion

We secured a major long-term agreement
with Lockheed Martin worth up to

US$1 bilhon to supply up to 600 AE 2100
engmes for the C-130J arcraft, in addition to
over US$200 million m support contracts for
AE 2100 engmnes Deliveries were made to
Turkey, France, Germany and the UK of the
TP400-powered Airbus A400OM transport
arcraft The 100th TP4C0 production engine
was delivered in Novemnber and in the same
menth, we announced an £18 million
mvestment in facilities at Bristol to support
this programme 2014 saw good progress m

DEFENCE — KEY FINANCIAL DATA
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the tanker awrcraft market where we are

a shareholder in AirTanker which operates
the A330 Multi Role Tanker Transport (MRTT)
on behalf of the Royal Air Force In 2014,

the A330 MRTT was also selected by the
defence forces of France and the Repubhc

of Smgapore

There was a softening of demand inthe
cwil hehcopter market and this impacted
our engine manufacturing load However,
along-term agreement was signed to install
upgraded M250 engines m future Bell
407GX hehcopters The M250 turboprop
variant was also selected by iangsu A-Star
of China to power its Extra EASQ0 arrcraft

m a deal worth over US$50 million

Service debvery contracts worth

US51,843 rmilhon were secured with
defence customers globally, many of which
wll provide our popular MissionCare® level
of engine support We have further
improved the time on wing for our v-22
Osprey customers, dehivering a 30%
reduction in support costs The 756 engine
enhancement kit, aimed at legacy C¢-130
Hercules and P-3 customers, was certified by
the US Air Force and has exceeded fuel
efficiency targets The US Navy declared
fmtial Operational Capability for the new
T56-powered E-2D Advanced Hawkeye
Airborne Early Warming Aircraft

In the unmanned arcraft market our
stealthy, mtegrated, propulsion system
successtully demonstrated its capability
n the second round of fhight tnals of the
UK’s Tarams demonstrator Our AE 3007
engine also powered the US Navy's Tniton
unmanned aenal system on its first
trans-America flight We were named a
‘supernior suppher’ by both the US Navy

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 ]
Order book £m 6,506 6,035 5,157 4071 4,564
+1% 7% -15% -21% +12%
Fngme delveries 710 814 864 893 744
Underlying revenue £m 2123 2235 2417 2591 2,069
+6% +5% +8% +7T% -20%
Undertlying OF reveniue £m 1,020 1102 1,231 1,385 816
Underlymg service revenue £m 1103 1,133 1,186 1206 1,253
Underlying profit before financing £m 309 376 395 438 366
+22% +22% +5% +11% -16%

and US Defense Logistics Agency 1in 2014
and recogrmised by Northrop Grumman for
our support of 1ts Global Hawk unmanned
aemal vehicle programme

Together with Snecma, we signed an
Anglo-French agreement for further
funded studes as part of the Future
Combat Arr Systemn

LOOKING AHEAD

We are focused on mamtaiming our leading
position in the transport and patrol markets
and will continue to invest n the industnal
and technological capability to support
future growthn this area We are actively
engaged n offermg propulsion solutions

to customers in India, Turkey and Korea as
they pursue ambitiens for indigencus
combat aircraft programmes

We anticipate continued pressure on
defence budgets and reman committed to
1mproving both the service lves of products
and our cost performance Cost reduction
activity will continue across our supply
chan, operaticnal footprint, and service
provision, ensuring our business 1s well
placed for the future in the defence sector
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BUSINESS REVIEW — LAND & SEA

As the world’s population
expands and becomes
more affluent, as trade
mcreases and we travel
more, the requirtement

for the technology produced
by our Land & Sea Dwision
will grow

LAWRIE HAYNES
President — Land & Sea

According to the World Bank, approxamately
200 milhon people per year will join the
middle classes i the decades ahead,
requiting the type of power that we dehver
to support their rising ving standards

and to transport the goods they will buy

Our Land & Sea Division provides power

for a wide range of vehicles and vessels

On land we supply engines to power vehicles
as varied as locomotives, battle tanks and
miming trucks, applymg world-teading
technology to set new standards of fuel
efficiency We also dehver distnbuted power
generation and support the world's civil
nuclear power imdustry At sea we supply

engines, propulsion and advanced
engmeering products for craft ranging from
submarines to complex anchor handlers and
seismic vessels used 1n the offshare ol & gas
industry This broad portfoho of products
and services has direct relevance to the
long-term demand for better power m our
fast-changing world

Whereas the power supplied from our
Aerospace Dwvision s based on gas turbine
technology, our Land & Sea Division 1s to

a large degree focused on reciprocating
engines Our high-speed reciprocating
engines go to market under the MTU brand
and medium-speed engimes are from Bergen

OVERVIEW
POWER SYSTEMS POWER SYSTEMS POWER 5YSTEMS POWER 5YSTEMS
i Underlying revenue (Em}* UNDERLYING UNDERLYING
KEY HIGHLIGHTS 2891 5730 REVENUE MIX REVENUE BY SECTOR
« Nearly 1,000 MTU a1l PowerPacks contracted by PESA
- taunch of new efficient Bergen B33 45 medium-speed engme
- New MTU Onsite Energy 4000 natural gas engime
- MTU and Werr agree to develop power systems for hydrauhc
fracking industry
Q%]% 10 70 0 013 2014 O OF revenue 70% O Marme 39%
» Employees 0O services revenue 30% O mdustnal 20%
O Energy 28%
[0 Defence & other 13%
MARINE MARINE MARINE UNDERLYING MARINE UNDERLYING

_ Underlying revenue {£m)* REVENUE MIX REVENUE BY SECTOR
KEY HIGHLIGHTS 2037
- largest ever UT vessel designed 1,709
- 40 years of leadership in offshore vessels celebrated
- Naming of HMS Queen Ehzabeth and launch of USS Zumwalt
+ Service network further expanded

O [ OF revenue 63% [ Naval 22%
QO@ 6 400 013 2014 03 Services revenue 37% O Merchant 19%

’ Employees D Offshore 59%

NUCLEAR NUCLEAR NUCLEAR UNDERLYING  NUCLEAR UNDERLYING
—_——— Underlying revenue (Em)* REVENUE MIX REVENUE BY SECTOR
KEY HIGHLIGHTS c67 684
+ New propulsion plant design submitted for Vanguard class

replacement submanne
- US regulatory approval granted for Spmime™ 1&¢C technology
- Business developed across US Europe (including UK

programme) and Asia Follawing the creation of

the Land & Sea Dwision in

O 53: ::;%?:;:ﬁ:]?ﬁ;t [ OE revenue 37% [J submannes 73%

QVB 3 9 00 2013 2014 avallpable prior to 2013 [ sernces revenue 63% O Conl Nudlear 27%
[l Employees
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Although the long-term requirement for

our technology s certain, a number of the
markets that we address are volatile During
2014, sharp falls in o1l and other commodity
prices caused a number of our customers

to delay or cancel orders In particular this
has affected parts of our Power Systems and
Marine businesses Power Systems was

also affected by the trade sanctions imposed
by the European Union on Russia

On land, business has grown across our
defence, power generation and services
markets and we have had success 1n
launching mnovative products i our MTU
Onsite Energy range to provide secure, clean

StrategicReport

power for industnal apphcations We
continue to invest in skills and capability
n our Civil Nuclear business ahead of
sigmficant growth 1n the world's nuciear
power capacity Although this business s
currently relatively small for Rolls-Royce,
we already provide compoenents, systems
or services to more than half the world's
435 operating reactors, enabling safe and
efficient power generation

At sea, our Naval busmess has done well
despite continued pressure on defence
budgets Nuclear reactors designed and
manufactured by us have been powering
the Royal Navy's nuclear submarine fleet

LAND & SEA LOCATIONS

for the last 55 years and our engineers are
currently designing the next generation
for the fleet of the future

The Division 1s firmly focused on cost
reduction and the management of cash

n allareas We have rationahsed a number
of our Marnine facihties and this work will
contmue in the year ahead We will also
drwe improvement in cost through better
supply chain management and continuing
to move more of our production to lower-
cost countries We will see further benefits
from this during the coming year

During 2014, we acquired the remaining
wnterest in Rolls-Royce Power Systems from
Daimler Power Systerns extends our
portfolio and adds deep techmcal
knowledge of high-speed engines and fuel
mnjection systems It also extends the scale
and scope of our market presence

We have strong long-term relationships
with customers, deep product knowledge,
powerful and clean engines, efficient
propulsion system designs and an
established global network These linked
to a truly experienced workforce provide
remarkably strong roots, from which the
Land & Sea Division can grow

1 in 5 of the world's

shipping vessels has Rolls-Royce
equipment installed
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BUSINESS REVIEW — LAND & SEA

CONTINUED

POWER SYSTEMS — KEY FINANCIAL DATA

2013 2014

Chan ge_|

Order book £m 1,927 1,971 2%
Underlying revenue £m 23831 2,720 -4%
Underlying OE revenue £m 2,004 1,893 -6%
Underlying services revenue £m 827 827 -
Underlying profit before financing £m 294 253 -14%

Foltawing the creation of the Land & Sea Dwiston 1n 2014 1nformation on a comparable basis 1s not available prior 0 2013

POWER SYSTEMS

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE REVIEW

WHO WE ARE

The business consists of the MTU, MTU
Onsite Energy, Bergen and L'Orange product
ranges MTU high-speed engines and
propulsion systems power ships, rallway
locomotives, defence and heavy off-highway
vehicles They are also used for apphcations
in the o1l & gas ndustries Diesel and gas
genset systems from MTU Onsite Energy
dehver heat and power Bergen medium-
speed engines are used 1n both marine and
land-based power generation applications
L'Orange 15 a world-leading speciahst
company that designs and manufactures
complex fuel injection systems for large
engines

FINANCIAL REVIEW
The Power Systems order book grew 2%
Order intake was £2 6 bilhon

Underlying revenue declined 4% mainly due
to adverse foreign exchange effects Growth
n defence and power generation was offset
by substantially lower sales to European
construction, industnal and agricultural
customers Marine revenue also dechned,
driven by weaker yacht markets Asn
previcus years, revenue was ased towards
the second half

Underlying profit dechined 14% due to
adverse foreign currency effects and losses
n the Bergen business Profit benefited from
lower C&A and bonus costs

OUR YEAR

Slower growth 1n Eurozone countries and
emerging economies presented challenges
to our busimess 1n 2014 However, the
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breadth of our portfolic presented
opportumties for growth in some parts
of the business

Our Naval marine business benefited from
stronger defence budgets in Asia and an
mcreased demand for security at seamn
the region, this resulted 1n orders to power
several types of rmilitary vessels

The market for the commercial marine
apphcation of both our medum and
high-speed diesel engines recovered in 2014
The demand for mega-yachts weakened in
2014 due to fewer vessels being built,
particularly m Europe

2014 saw the launch of a new farmly of
mechum-speed engmes for the marine
market, with future vanants for land-based
power generation The Bergen B33 45 uses
diesel or gas fuel and features a new
modular design that can be developed to suit
a wide range of ship types It uses less fuel,
has lower emmissions and produces 20% maore
power per cylinder than the previous Bergen
range Together with our Marine colleagues,
we secured orders for 1t to power two ships,
with the first entering operation in 2015,
there 1s also strong interest from the
merchant vessel market

Two projects further lnghhghted the
synergies between our Marne and Power
Systemns busmesses as part of a Rolls-Royce
UT ship design, we supplied MTU diesel-
electric propulsien systems and onboard
power generators for two platform supply
vessels for Chinese shipbwilder COSCO, and,
n Brazil, MTU engines were specified for
Rolls-Royce UT 535E ob-spill response vessels

Sales in the European construction,

mdustnal and agniculture sectors were
substanbially lower in 2014 compared with

Annual report 2014

the high volumes ordered in 2013 Sharp
falls 1n commodity prices led customers
mn the miming and o1l & gas industnes to
delay or cancel orders for OF

The Energy business for high-speed engmes
showed stronger growth in the higher power
ranges and 1n the market for packaged MTU
Onsite Energy power systems, for example

n data centres and other mdustrial
applications We iniroduced an upgraded
Series 4000 L64 natural gas engine with
improved efficiency

In the medium-speed market served by the
Bergen range, sales decreased Nevertheless
we see an ongoing trend towards gas fuel
One example 15 a 100MW power plant n
Mozambique wherte Bergen will deliver
gas-driven B35 40 generating sets

2014 saw an improvement 1n our land
defence business This was helped by a
production increase for the German infantry
fighting velmde, the MTU-powered Puma

Growth i the market for mjection systems
made by UOrange continued in 2014, driven
by increased demand for injection systems
used by dual-fuel engines

LOOKING AHEAD

We will mvest in future technologies such
as gas engmes for cornmercial marine
applications and are configuring our
different engine senes to meet tougher
emissions standards i Europe and North
America At the same time, we will continue
to improve efficiency and mamtaim our
focus on costs and cash i all areas

MARINE

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE REVIEW

WHO WE ARE

Marine supples complex propulsion and
handhng systems to the mantime market,
across three distinct sectors Offshore,
Merchant and Naval We have more than
4,000 customers, and our equipment s
mstalled on arcund 25,000 vessels




MARINE —KEY FINANCIAL DATA
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2013 2014 Change|
Order book £m 1,622 1,567 -3%
Underlying revenue £m 2037 1,709 -16%
Underlying OF revenue £m 1,288 1,070 17%
Underlying service revenue £m 749 639 -15%
Underlying profit before fimancing £m 233 138 -41%

2013 frgures restated due to transfer of Submarines to Nuclear business

We have an extensive range of technology
for propulsion and cargo handhng that
allows us to provide fully integrated systems
for a vaniety of ship types

Our capability in ship design means we can
also combine our technology into complex
vessels, where Rolls-Royce technology can
account for around 40% of the total value
of a typical offshore vessel and up to 10%
of a high specification naval combatant

As part of the Land & Sea Division, we now

also offer MTU high-speed diesel engimes as
part of our propulsion systems, particularly
for naval craft, fernes and offshore vessels

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Marine order book declined 3% 2014,
with a 1% reduction in order intake to

£1 82 bilhon At constant exchange rates,
the order book ncreased 6%

Underlying revenue decreased 16% {down
9% at constant foreign exchange), reflecting
a 17% dechne i OF and a 15% dechine in
services OF reduction was driven by a
combination of pricing and the expected
decline in Offshore, driven by 2013's weak
order intake Service revenue declmed in
Offshore and Merchant, as ship owners
deferred overhaul and maintenance

Underlying profit fell 41% Excluding foreign
exchange translation and a one-off charge
of £30 rmilhon to cover the resolution of a
quahty ssue, profit dechned 25% as a result
of lower revenue and an adverse mix,
reflecting pricing pressure and lower
services Tevenue The business also incurred
restructuring costs as it continued to
streamhne 1ts global footprint, reduce
indirect headcount, and consohidate
manufacturing actwity Profit benefited
from lower C&A and bonus costs

OUR YEAR

2014 saw continuing challenges in the
global mantime market, and there1sa
mixed picture across the market segments
in which we operate In the offshore support
sector, demand was encouraging for
sophisticated anchor handling vessels,
mcluding our own UT ship designs, which
mcorporate a wide range of Rolls-Royce
technology However, the rapid dechine in
the price of o1l in the second half of the year
dented confidence in the o1l & gas mndustry,
slowed demand and order mtake as we
approached year end, a trend we expect

to continue into 2015

In merchant shipping, many owners
continued to delay investment in new
ships and equipment, or are extending
maintenance intervals

Improving competitiveness remarns a key
prionity for the Marine business and we took
important steps in the year, including the
announcements of facility restructunng

or closures in South Korea, US, UK, Norway
and Sweden to consclidate our
manufacturing actvities at fewer locations
We made strong progress in improving the
external supply cham manragement and
reducing our indirect headcount

We are narrowing our product portfolio by
focusing on the products that provide the
most return to the business and add most
value to our customers We have exited
non-core praduct hines such as well
intervention equipment used for extracting
a1l from mature wells

We continue to focus on effictency and cost
reduction, addressing areas including our
supply chan, operational footprint and
indwrect headcount We have reduced the
number of supphers tc Marine by aimost

40%n the last four years (half of that in
2014) and reduced indirect headcount
by more than 500 people aver the past
two years

We are streamfiming our global footprint
and have consohdated manufacturing of
some key products either into fewer
locatiens or into the external supply chain

Our programmes to improve competitiveness
will contimue throughout 2015 and beyond,
as we aim to manage the impact ofa
slowdown 1n the o1l & gas sector Further
changes to the structure of the business

are planned

In the commercial market, our UT-Design
celebrated 1ts 40th successful year —it1s the
benchmark ship design for the offshore o1l &
gas industry, with almost 800 now n service
cr on order We continue to lead ship
mmnovation 1n this sector and this year we
contracted to supply the Jargest ever vessel,
the UT 777 for Island Offshore This vessel 1s
bemng built m Japan to a high specification
and will be deployed on drilling operations
m the Arctic

tltl A ship fit for a queen”

was how First Sea Lord, Sir George
Zambellas, described the new aircraft
carrier for the Royal Navy at1ts naming
ceremony held at Rosyth, UK, in July 2014

HMS Queen Ehzabeth has two Rolls-Royce
MT30 gas turbines as mam power units
and they drive Rolls-Royce propellers that
each weigh 33 tonnes and measure seven
metres in diameter
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BUSINESS REVIEW — LAND & SEA

CONTINUED

Naval continued to perform well We are
contracted to a number of key international
programmes which to date have been largely
unaffected by defence budget cuts These
include the UK Type 26 frigates and the US
Navy's Littorat Combat Ship and ship-to-
shore-connector hovercraft programmes
We also dehivered the first MT30 to the
Republic of Korea Navy for the first of its
eight new frigates Other highhights were
the naming of the US Navy's sophisticated
multi-misston destroyer USS Zumwalt and
launch of the Royal Navy's arcraft carrier
HMS Queen Ehzabeth, both of which are
powered by our MT30 gas turbine

QOur services business continues to adapt
to support to our customers’ needs and
this year we expanded our global workshop
network with a new facility in Bergen,
Norway

AT SEA

For 55 years we have been designing
and manufacturing the reactors that
power the Royal Navy's fleet of nuclear
submarines In 2014, we submitted
designs to our customer for the next
generation of propulsion plant

ON LAND

Our Nuclear business currently provides
components, systermns and services

to over half the world’s 435 operating
cvil nuclear reactors
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LOOKING AHEAD

Ship efficiency, and ship intelligence, where
the smart use of data in more complex ships
willimprove efficiency, will be key market
drvers m the future, as will the demand for
more environmentally-frendly power and
propulsion systems to drive down the costs
of operating ships

We are strongly positioned to provide efficient
solutions and have the necessary integration
capability as ships become more complex 1n
the future

Our unified bridge, which entered service
recently,1s one example of the type of
mtelhgent control systern that we believe will
become commenplace on new vessels over
the next five years

In the near term, we expect the market to
remain challenging especially in the Offshore
sector where we may see project deferrals
and temporary lay-ups of vessels as they come
off-charter

We have begun to transform our business to
improve our competitiveness in all areas and
this programme will continue, agam focusing
on consohdation of manufacturing, cur
external supply chain and reducing our
overhead costs We will adapt to the market
conditions 1 our biggest market sector,
Offshore, which accounts for around two-
thirds of our business, responding to the
uncertamties caused by the significant
decrease in o1l prices over recent months

NUCLEAR

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE REVIEW

WHO WE ARE

Rolls-Royce manages all aspects of
nuclear plant design, safety, manufacture,
performance and through-hfe support

for the UK Submarine Programme

in the cwvil nuclear market, we provide
nuclear reactor vendors and utility operators
with integrated, long-term support services
and solutions spanning the whole reactor
Iife cycle, from concept design through to
obsolescence management and plant-hfe
extension

Annual report 2014

We have been a key player in the nuclear
mndustry for over 50 years, with expertise
m component manufacturing, hcensing,
project and supply chaim management,
as well as world-class engineering

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The order book for the continuing business
declined 4%, reflecting lower crder mtake
following the receipt of a multi-year
submarines contract i 2013

Underlying revenue increased 3%, driven

by good growth in the Civil Nuclear services
busimess, which has been the focus of recent
acquisitions Our services capabihties
include remote mspection, plant-hife
extension and obsclescence management
and these performed well in 2014

Underlying profit increased £38 mllion,
mncluding £20 milhon from beiter operating
performance, lower C&A and bonus costs
and a non-repeat of 2013 one-time charges

OUR YEAR

In 2014, we made progress on our long-term
projects for the UK Submarine Programme
We submitted the design of the new
propulsion plant for the Vanguard class
replacement submarine for customer
approval Construction of the Core
Manufacturing Facihty in Derby, UK, has
progressed well and we successfully
ntroduced several innovations to the
programme which brought cost savings

for our custorner (as part of the foundation
contract designed to deliver savings of
£200 million aver ten years) Our support to
the Royal Navy submarine flotilla 1s mission
critical and contnbutes to mamtaming the
UK's continuous at sea deterrent

During 2014, we performed well against |
our strategie intent of growing a global

cwvil nuclear business as a technology- |
independent partner to the industry |

Cwil nuclear power 1s increasingly important |
to the energy policy of a growing number of
countries and regions such as China, India,

Middle Eastern countries and Central and

Eastern Europe Increased focus on low-



NUCLEAR —KEY FINANCIAL DATA
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2013 2014 Change
Order book £m 2,617 2,499 -4%
Undertlying revenue £m 667 684 3%
Underlying OF revenue £m 236 254 8%
Underlying services revenue £m 431 430 0%
Underlying profit before financing £m 10 48 380%

carbon electncity generation and security
of energy supply, continued to drive demand
for the upgrade, plant-ife extension and
replacement of nuclear capacity More
countres are considering adopting nuclear
power for the first time, with governments
seeking to develop a nuclear industnal and
supply chain strategy designed to benefit
local economies and capabihty (Turkey and
Poland being examples)

For the UK avil nuclear new build
programme, we continued to carry out early
works to support developers and operators
and we continue to recruit and develop
capability in hne with market growth
projections for future years The UK has one
of the largest new build programmes in the
western world with 11 reactors expected to
be built by 2030 European Umicn
Commmssion approval in 2014 of the
nvestment contract for the first new reactor
to be built at Hinkley Point C1n Semerset
was a significant milestone

Durning the year we were awarded a contract
by Fortum, the owner and operator of the
Loviisa nuclear power plant in Finland, to
modernise the safety and non-safety
instrumentation and control (1&C) systems
We also receved US Nuclear Regulatory
Commssion hcensing of Spinhine, our
safety-cntical 1&C technology, and this

will help us access new markets

We won a contract to supply and
commission pressure transmitter
technology for the Flamanwille 3 reactor

m France and continued to deliver against
our customer commitments on the world's
largest 1&C upgrade of the 20-strong French
fleet of reactors We continued to be
successful m China, as an important
supplier to the world's largest nuclear
programme

We introduced equipment obsolescence
services and engineering support to new
customers in the UK, France, Belgium,

and South Africa We also provided reactor
mspection services to EDF Energy’s UK
operations

LOOKING AHEAD

Our priorities will be focus on customers,
winning new orders and high-quahty
dehvery A key feature will be continuously
improving operational efficiency and
performance as we expand our products
and services, and the markets in which

we operate We will build on our
manufacturing capability, engineering
excellence and supply chamn relationships
to ensure that we contribute positively to
new buld programmes in the UK and other
international markets

ENERGY BUSINESS

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

We will focus on further extending the suite
of products and services that we offer to
operational reactor utiities to enable them
to acheve safe, efficient and rehable hfetime
operations while enabling us to further
grow our nuclear services presence

On 1 December, we concluded the sale of
our Energy gas turbines and compressor
busimess to Siemens for a £785 million cash

ENERGY — KEY FINANCIAL DATA

consideration, and a further £200 million
for a 25-year licensing agreement

2013 2014
Order book £m 1226 -
Underlying revenue £m 871 724
Underlying OF revenue £m 329 302
Underlymg service revenue £m 542 422
Underlying profit before financing £m 64 (3)
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OUR PEOPLE

The engagement of our
people is essential to the
success of our strategy.

In 2014 we launched the Trusted to Deliver
Excellence Awards Over 500 subrmssions were
recewed, each of which demonstrates the talent,
inmovation, commitment and ambition of
Rolls-Royce men and women

The achievements of all the entmies that resulted
n the final award winners showcased here, prove
what's possible when we put ourselves in
customers’ shoes
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CELEBRATING SUCCESS:
AWARD WINNERS’ STORIES

SIMPLE TOUCH SCREEN TO HELP
MARINE CUSTOMERS

MARINE
ALESUND, NORWAY

On the bnidge of a marine customer’s ship,
the team from Alesund saw the array of
different panels, uncoordinated operating
systems and audible alerts that face our
custorners every day They saw first-hand
what could be a source of frustration,
fatigue and a tngger for human error The
team redesigned an overlay to the operating
system This coordinated, both functionally
and visually, the range of essential controls
via a simplified touch screen to provide

a unified bndge design

100% RIGHT-FIRST-TIME DISC
PRODUCTION

SUPPLY CHAIN
WASHINGTON, UK

The £100 milhon investment in the High-
Performance Disc Manufactunng facility
m Washington set the record for the fastest
new Rolls-Royce facihty build m the Group's
history A combination of state-of-the-art
equipment, traminmg and up-skiliing
programmes has established a culture of
continuous improvement This has resulted
m 100% night-first-time production and it
means that the discs, which are integral to
gas turbme engines, can be dehvered 1n half
the time




CHALLENGING CONVENTIONAL
THINKING

ENGINEERING AND TECHNOLOGY
UK AND GERMANY
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IMPROVED TURBINE BLADE
QUALITY AT LESS COST

SUPPLY CHAIN
ROTHERHAM, UK

SAVING CUSTOMERS MONTHS
OF TIME IN COMMISSIONING

NUCLEAR
DERBY, UK

The engmeering and technology team
discovered that by challenging traditional
thinking about how arir flows through a
compressor, they could measurably improve
fuel efficiency They started with numenical
flow simulations and then worked with
teams across the globe to decrease air
leakage and improve performance For our
customers, the result means less energy lost
and improved long-term fuel efficiency for
their engmes The technology has already
been deployed 1n the Trent XWB engine and
will be followed by testing on Boeing 787
and A350-1000 aircraft

STANDING IN OUR CUSTOMERS’
SHOES

CIVILSMALL & MEDIUM ENGINES
MONTREAL, CANADA

Every quarter, the Montreal tearn rolls out
ared carpet on the factory floor Employees
from across the busimess stand up in front of
therr colleagues, role-playing the customers’
view of what we delver to them Employees
audition to tell the stories behind the order
forms and engine part senal numbers Others
volunteer to follow customers’ orders through
the manufacturing process — from order to
shipment This innovative approach is
spurring new highs in employee engagement,
creating a deeper understanding of what our
custormers need and has mcreased customer
satisfaction by almost 10%

A new standard has been achieved in the
high-performance turbine blade industry
at the Advanced Blade Casting Facihty m
Rotherham Lead times and scrap rates are
on-track to be halved The team integrated,
sharpened and automated cntical stages in
the manufacturing process and, in so doing,
mproved the production precision of our
complex single crystal turbine blades For
our customers, 1t means a perfect blade
delivered more efhiciently, more quickly and
at a dramatically reduced production cost

MONITORING THRUSTERS AT SEA
TO PLAN MAINTENANCE

ENGINEERING AND TECHNOLOGY
UK AND FINLAND

Azimuth thrusters give marine and offshore

vessels superior manoeuvrabihity Our ability

to assess the health of these thrusters at sea
saves our customers bime and meney by
preventing unscheduled and unnecessary
maintenance Until now, technology hasn’t
been able to monttor thrusters m smatl and
medium-sized ships —which represent 80%
of the marine market

Working n collaboration, our Strategic
Research Centre, Marine Services Azimuth
Thruster team and the University of
Sheffield’s Technology Centre came up with
the Thruster Wireless Link The new
technology enables us to read the vital signs
of all our operating thrusters on all sizes of
vessels and platforms it also opens a new,
lucrative market for our services For
customers, it means the ability to plan
mamtenance three to s1x months ahead

of time and avoid costly propulsion

failures at sea

The UK team that supports the buiid of the
Astute class of nuclear submarines has cut
the time and cost of dehvery dramatically
The complex pipework and valve systems
require a flushing process that used to take
a total of 190 days to complete Following
on-site visits, our team saw the opportunity
to collaborate with our partners to redesign
the process The mihal time required for
most flush paths was reduced from 60
hours to just one This will save the
customer four months of commssioming
time per submanne It means delivery of the
same high-quahty submarines quicker and
at a lower cost to the UK Government, one
of our most important customers

tlf:l We need to work with

people who make the whole
production process smarter and
more cost effective People like
these award winners”

Nicole Paseckr, VP and General Manager,
Propulsion Systems Division of Boeing
Commercial Airplanes, presented the
awards to the winners
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SUSTAINABILITY

Our strategy focuses on customer, innovation and profitable
growth to ensure a sustainable business.

OUR APPROACH

Sustamabihty s inherent to our
strategy For Rolls-Royce that means
dniving profitable growth whilst
achieving a positive economic,
social and environmental impact

BETTER POWER

HELPING QUR CUSTOMERS DO MORE,
USING LESS

BETTER FUTURE

COMMITTED TO INNOVATION, POWERING
BETTER, CLEANER ECONOMIC GROWTH

iAveragenumber of employees by region 2013 2014

We use our engimeering expertise to
develop and deliver integrated power
systerns for our customers, helping them
to do more using less Cur commitment
15 to continuously improve the
environmental perfermance of our
products and services

IMPROVING ENVIRONMENTAL
PERFORMANCE

Our environmental strategy reflects the
main focus of our investment and effort,
concentrating on three areas supporting
our customers by further reducing the
environmental impact of our products and
services, developing new technology for
future low-emission products, and
maintaming our drive to reduce the
environmental impact of our business
activibies

PRODUCT SAFETY

Our products are often deployed in rmssion
critical environments We are commtted
to dehvering products and services that
acheve the lighest standards of product
safety We have a consistent approach to
safety across the Group and systematically
pursue preoactive opportumties for
improvement

34 Rolls-Royce plc

Ths year, we nvested over £1 2 bilhon

m gross R&D As a result of engineermg
expertise and our strong tradition of
innovation, many of our products are
currently market-leaders in terms of
environmental performance Innovation

1s embedded n all our products and services
and s key to our competitive edge

OUR PEOPLE

The Group ernployed a total of 54,100
people n 2014 We know that our future
depends on the skills, knowledge and
passion of all of our people and work to
create an environment where all employees
can reach their full potential

We encourage diversity, engagement

and development We give full and farr
consideration to all employment
apphcations from people with disabiites,
and support disabled employees helping
themn to make the best use of their skills
and potential

A diverse workforce will help ensure our

contiued success as a global business and
contribute towards a better future

Annual report 2014

e 24 800 '25.“5_(10_
UsA 8500 7,900
JLanada 1800 1500
_Germany .. 10500 10500
Nordics 4,100 4,000

Rest of world 5700 5,700
| Average number of employees by busimess umt®
Gl aerospace 23400 23900

Defence aerospace 7900 7,000
Marine 6900 6,400
PowerSystems 10700 10,700
Nuclear 3,900 3,900
Energy 2,400 2,200
Total* 55,200 54,100

“Headcount data 1s calculated in terms of average full time
emplayees (FTEs} for 2014 Therefore this includes FTEs
associated with eur Energy gas turbines and compressar
busimess disposed of in Decermnber 2014 The transfer of this
business umt has had mimimal impact on the average
headcount numbers far the year Marine and Nuclear data for
2013 has been restated to refiect the transfer of our
Submarines business from Marnne to Nuclear

EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

We use a variety of channels to commumcate
with our employees, includmg face-to-face
and online communications We encourage
collaboration, employee suggestions and
feedback through these systems Inaddition
we have mechanisms 1n place for employees
to be able to rase concerns both formally
and anonymously, including through the
Rolls-Royce Ethics Lme

We have established frameworks for managmg
employee, trade umon and representative
participation, including formal information
and consultations Ourincentive schemes

and ali-employee share plans enable every
employee to have the opportunity to share

N our success

EARLY CAREER DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMMES
We continue to attract large numbers of igh
quahty graduates and apprentices, and have
well-established early career programmes in
11 countries worldwide

in 2014, we iniroduced non-engineering
graduate and apprenticeship programmes in
CGermany We continue to focus on expanding




our offerings beyond the UK, particularly
n India and Germany

We have won a number of awards this year,
ncluding TargetJobs Winner of ‘The most
popular graduate recruiter —engineerning,
design and manufacture’ in the UK, for the
fifth year runmng

HUMAN RIGHTS

Qur human nights approach 1s aligned
with our Global Code of Conduct It draws
together relevant mternal controls that
oversee the range of 1ssues encompassed
by human rights Our pohcy sets out our
commitment to respect the human nghts
of our employees through core labour
standards This covers employee
nvolvement, diversity and equabity, pay
and benefits, working hours, forced labour
and child labour

We comply with the local laws of the
countries where we operate In the event
that our Human Rights pohcy i/mposes
higher requirements than local law, we
adhere to that igher requitement We set
equivalent standards for our supply chain
through our Global Suppler Code of
Conduct This1s part of our broader aim to
align the standards of our supplers to those
of the Group

EMPLOYEE WELLBEING

We work to enhance the personal wellbemng
of our people to help them reach thewr full
potential We are committed to empowerning
and enabling employees to lead a healthy
hfestyle at work

We launched new wellbemng imtiatives across
our global locations this year These include
physiotherapy and employee assistance
programmes in the UK, employee sports
days in China and Germany, and a Wellbeing
Month across our US facihties Over 4,000
employees worldwide participated in the
Global Corporate Challenge, amassing a
combined total of over five billion steps

COMMUNITIES

Our commumty investment and education
outreach prograrnmes support our Group
strategy We recogmse that talented
engineers are the key to our future and work
actvely toincrease interest and encourage
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diversity amongst those taking science,
technology, engineering and mathematics
{STEM) subjects

GLOBAL PARTNERSHIPS

We engage mn chalogue and partnerships
with governments and industry bodies
ahgned to our business needs This year we
have worked with the UK Government on the
implementation of the Aerospace Growth
Partnership In the EU, we have focused on
preventing umntended consequences of the
nclusion of aviation n the European Umion
Ermissions Trading Scheme In North America,
we continue to engage with a range of
political stakeholders on 1ssues including
defence appropnations, aviation pohcy,
Federal Aviation Administration approval

of our products, and trade proposals

Our joint venture in Indra has now reached
full production and exports to our other
locations around the world Through our
subcontractors TCS and Quest we have
over 1,000 engimeers serving the Group’s
needs globally In China we are presentn
more than 30 locations including jont
ventures Our manufacturing and services
centres in Singapore are the heart of a multi-
business and multi-function regional hub,
where our first major Custormer Service
Centre opened in early 2015

BETTER BUSINESS

INVESTING IN TECHNOLOGY, PEOPLE
AND IDEAS TO IMPROVE ALL ASPECTS
OF OUR PERFORMANCE AND TO DRIVE
PROFITABLE GROWTH

ETHICS

High ethical standards, supported by good
governance, are fundamental to how we
run our business We have a strong focus on
ethics that helps ensure we win night every
time This year our Global Code of Conduct
has been ranked by the Red Flag Group as
third among those within the FTSE 100
companies that were assessed

Rolls-Royce does not make any corporate
contnbutions or donations to pohtical
parties or causes, as outhned 1n our Global
Code of Conduct

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT

We regard the health and safety of our
employees at work as paramount It i1s therefore
with particular regret that we report the death
of four employees in a single drowming inaident
which occurred in 2014 This tragic madent
took place outside work whilst deployed at a
customer location This incident s not reported
1 our annual data because 1t occurred outside
working hours We have sought to learn from
this inadent in terms of managing remote
field-service activities

We continue to monitor safety performance
in the workplace and are contmumg with the
process of integrating our Power Systems
business into our HS&E management system
At present, Power Systemns does not collect
1ts HS&E datain a manner consistent with
the Croup and therefore this data has

been excluded from our 2013 and 2014

HS&E figures

In 2014, our total reportable mjury (TRI) rate
fell by 16% to 0 37 TRIs per 100 employees,
compared to 044 1n 2013* In the UK we were
fined £200,000 and £176,000 in costs for a
source radiography event that occurred in
2011 We improve the performance of our
operations by reducing energy, greenhouse
gas emissions and waste We support our
external suppliers to do the same

The TRl rate excludes Power Systems and has been adjusted
toreflect the disposal of our Energy gas turbines and
compressor business in December 2014 Entities that were
part of the Energy business that were not part of the disposal
have beenincluded See note at the bottom of page 356

ACCELERATING PROGRESS

Our goal 1s to be tecagmised as a leading
sustainable business To achieve this we have
established a dashboard of ligher stretching
targets, showng progress towards improved
sustainability performance

These targets are basehned on our 2014
performance data, with the exception
of the ACARE Fhghtpath 2050 goals

Qur 2014 sustainabihty performance and
targets are detailed overleaf
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2014 PERFORMANCE

Sustamability 1s inherent to our strategy To be recognised as a leading sustamable busmess we
will dehver better power for our customers, use innovation to secure a better future, and
develop a better business, ready to meet the opportumities ahead

CUSTOMER

INNOVATION

PROFITABLE GROWTH

UltraFan next generation designs will offer at least
20-25% better fuel burn and €O, emissions than
first generation Trent engimes

Onland

Cur MTU technology mstalled on
Deutsche Bahn s diesel Coradia tint 54
and 81-type trams reduces particulate
emissions by 90% and contnbutes toreducing
fuel consumption and CO, ermissions Qur nuclear
technology 1s nstalled 1n over 200 reactors across
20 countnies worldwide, making a sigmficant
contribution to low-carbon electnaty generation

At sea

CQurinnovative ship design and

propulsion systems and pioneering use

of new cleaner fuel solutions are reducing
ermssions for our customers Our Environship
design reduces CO- by up to 40% compared to
conventional diesel powered vessels and recewved
the Heyerdahl Award this year

7,900 customers supported with

our product learning solutions

BETTER POWER BETTER FUTURE BETTER BUSINESS

In the air Qver

Our new Trent 7000 engine will deliver a 1 00 0 &]@ A Global Code of Conduct

10% wnprovement in specific fuel ) ] emp]oyee | 1ssued to all emFﬂOyeeS m @
consumption and halve the nowse energy STEM ambassadors g]obally N\~ 21 .
output compared te the current engine on the dlffeTETlt ]anguages

A330 Announced this year, our Advance and

Supporting a global network of
31 University Technology
Centres engaging over

700 academics

in fundamental research into
cutting edge technologies

Recruited

354 graduates
aa 357 apprentices

&)

£10.6 million invested in
supporting communities,
a 31% mcrease since 2013

250,000 mdividual courses

4 0 » 0 0 0 employees directly

accessed our learning system, completing

Hosted almost

14,000 ...oc0

Customer Traiming Centres

In 2014 we invested
£1.2 billion in gross R&D
and filed for 600 patents

Reduced year on-year energy consumption
normahsed by revenue by

16% since 2010 ®

nvested

£4 million

n energy efficiency improvernent projects

5 65 ktCO,e absolute total

GHG emissions from our operations®

¥®

& Qﬁﬁ

Occupational iliness

Total reportable

mjury {TRI) rate of occurrence rate of
0.37 0.05

per 100 employees per 100 employees
M® ®

Our health and safety performance
continues to improve with a

45% reduction

1n TRl rate since 2010

@®

Supported supphers to complete
2,500 1ndvidual courses

Rolls-Rayce has been hsted m the Dow Jones

Sustanability Index for the 13th consecutive year
We achieved an overall score of 66, well above the
average of 49 n the Aerospace and Defense sector

We have mmproved our CDP score to 89 This and
our maintained performance band rating ‘B’
demonstrates our commitment to continually
mproving our environmental performance

°_ Regulatory GHG emissions data detailed on page 49

& Limted assurance engagement undertaken by KMPG LLF, using the assurance standards ISAE 3000 and (SAE 3410, over the GHG and TRI data as highhghted More mformation detailed on page 49

@ we are n the process of mtegratimg our Power Systemns busmess mto our HS&E management system Energy, GHG, TRIand occupational iiness data from Power Systems s exchuded for 2014 The
figures presented have been adjusted to reflect the disposal of our Energy gas turbine and compressor business fn December 2014 Entities that were part of the Energy business that were not part
of the disposal have been inctuded.
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Our goal 15 to be recogrised as a leading sustamable busimess We have estabhished a dashboard

of igher stretching targets to accelerate progress

CUSTOMER o

INNOVATION

PROFITABLE GROWTH

BETTER POWER

BETTER FUTURE

BETTER BUSINESS

ACARE Flightpath 2050 goals

The Adwisory Council for Aviation Research

and Innovation n Europe (ACARE) has set
challenging goals for aviation to meet by 2050
These include reducing arcraft CO, ermssions

by 75% (per passenger kilometre), reducing nose
by 65% and reducimg oxides of mtragen (NOx)
by 90%, all relative to a typical new awrcraft
produced in 2000

Reach

&,
6 million people 0D

through the Rolis-Royce STEM

education programmes
and activities by 2020

All sites to achieve

Rolls-Royce employee

@)

(O Trent 7500 health and wellbeing
o O trent 00 LiveWell accreditation 0@
() Trents00 by 2020

E > () Trentg00

=0

Tl Trent 1000

e % Trent XWB Ensure our

& Sustamable Employee

2 Engagement Index O
» 15 greater, or equal to, C
-0 , 1 . | () | the Global High Performance

2000 2010 2020 2030 2040 2050
Entry mto sernvice

O Trent family
O ACARE flightpath 2050 target

This chart shows the improved efficiency levels
of each generation of Trent engine smce the
Trent 700 was introduced 1n 1995, and our
latest large civil engime, the Trent XWB

The Trent XWB1s the most efficient turbofan
aero engme flymng today

Norm™ by 2020

All employees to complete Global
Code of Conduct certification and
mandatory ethics traming by 2020

Reduce energy use

by30% |

normahsed by revenue by 2020

Reducegreenhouse gas | Reduce total sohd

ermissions by and hqund waste by
0, L8

50% J1|25% [

absolute normahsed by

by 2025 revenue by 2020

Reduce total Zero waste

reportable mjury .

(TRI) rate to 0 3 per to landfill

100 employees by by 2020

2020, to achieve first

quartile performance

All suppliers aligned to our
own ambitions

All supphers agree Strategic supphers
adherence to the revised | supported mannual
Global Suppher Code of | Carbon Disclosure

Conduct Project submissions
by 2016 by 2016
Strategic suppher Strategic supphers

adherence to the revised | supporied to reduce
Code will be momtored | ther energy and waste
by 2016 by 2016

AN

Discover more online

L wwwrolls-royce com/sustainability

* Prowided by Towers Watson
** Excluding hazardous waste incmeration
wath energy recovery only
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

We continue to build strong foundations for future growth
in challenging economic conditions.

Financial perforrmance mdicators are shown below Non-financial performance indicators are shown in the
Sustamabihty section on pages 34 to 37

CUSTOMER

ORDER BOOK

+3%

+5% excluding
Energy

WHY WE MEASURE IT

The order baok provides an indhcator of future business Wwe
measure 1t at constant exchange rates and hst prices and include
both firm and announced orders In Owil aerospace, 1t 1s common
far a customer to take options for future orders in addition to firm
orders placed Such options are excluded from the order book In
Defence aerospace, long-term programmes are ofien crdered foy
only one year at atime In such aircumstances, even though there
may be no alternate engme choice available to the customer,
only the contracted busmess s mcluded 1n the arder book
Comnservately, we only nclude the first sever years' revenue

of long-term aftermarket contracts

HOW WE HAVE
PERFORMED

The order bock grew m all
businesses except Marme
and Nuclear

The disposal of the Energy
busimess n 2014 reduced
the order book by £0 9bn

&

£bn

716 737
s92 622 601

il

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

ORDER INTAKE

-28%

Order intake 1s a measure of new business secured during the

year and represents new firm orders, net of the movement im the
announced order book between the start and end of the peniod

Any orders wiich were recorded in previous periods and which

are subsequently cancelled, reducing the order book, are mcluded as
arteduction to mtake We measure order intake at constant exchange
rates and hst prices and, consistent with the order book pohcy of
recording the first seven years tevenue oflong-term aftermarket
contracts include the addrtion of the followng year of revenue on
long-term aftermarket contracts

The reduction mamly reflects
lower order mtake in Givil
aerospace fromahigh n
2013 and includes the
cancellabon of Emirates’
A350 XWB order

Defence agrospace order
intake increased by 55%

£bn

194
163 161

il

2010 2011 2012 2013 2004

UNDERLYING
REVENUE

-6%

-3% excluding FX

e PAGE 13
STRATEGY

38

Momitoring of revenues provides a measure of busmess growth
Underlymg revenue 1s used as 1t reflects the impact of our

FX hedging pohcy by valuing foreign currency revenue at

the actual exchange rates achieved as a result of setthng FX
contracts This provides a clearer measure of the year-on-year
trend

PAGES 14 AND 15
BUSINESS MODEL
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PAGES 34 TO 37
SUSTAINABILITY

The reductron reflects
an 8% fall in OE revenue
and a 3% dechine in
services revenue

£m
15505 14588

10866 11277 12209

Il

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014



INNOVATION

NET R&D
EXPENDITURE

AS APROPORTION
OF UNDERLYING
REVENUE

5.8%

Strateqec Report

WHY WE MEASURE IT

This measure reflects the need to generate current returns

as well as to nvest for the future We measure R&D as the
self-funded expenditure before both amounts caprtahsed in
the year and amortisation of previously-capitahsed balances
We expect to spend approximately 5% of underlying revenues
on R&D although ths proportion will fluctuate depending on
the stage of development of current programmes We expect
this proportion will reduce madestly over the medium term

HOW WE HAVE PERFORMED
The increase reflects
increased investment due
to the phasing of major
new programmes
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CAPITAL
EXPENDITURE

AS A PROPORTION
OF UNDERLYING
REVENUE

4.6%

To deliver onits commitments to customers, the Group invests
sigmficant amounts inats infrastructure All proposed
mvestments are subject to ngorous review to ensure that they
are consistent with forecast activity and will provide value for
meoney We measure annual capital expenditure as the cost of
property, plant and equipment acquived during the penod and,
over the medium term, expect a propertion of around 4%

PROFITABLE GROWTH

The level of expenditure
reflects the ongoing
mvestment i facihties
and toohng as the Group
prepares for increased
production volumes

4l a0

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

UNDERLYING PROFIT | WHY WE MEASUREIT HOW WE HAVE PERFORMED £m
BEFORE FINANCING We measure underlying profit before financing on a basis that The reduction reflects
shows the economic substance of the Groups hedging strategies | FX changes, restructuring 1678
- 80/ n respect of the transactional exchange rate and commodity costs, a one-off product 1490
(4] price movements In particular (a) revenues and costs rectification charge and 100 1.206
-5% excluding FX denomimated in US dollars and eurcs are presented on the basis higher R& D, partially offset
of the exchange rates acmeved dunng the year (b) strmilar by benefits on TotalCare
adjustments are madein respect of commodity derivatives and contracts and lower
{c) consequential adjustments are made to reflect the impact banus costs
of exchange rates on trading assets and habahities and long-term 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
contracts on a consistent basis
AVERAGE We measure average cash based on the weekly balance of net The reduction reflects the £
m
CASH/DEBT funds/debt These balances are reported at prevailing exchange mpact of the purchase of o

-£38m

rates and 1n recent periads, year-on-year movements n average
cash balances reflect the sigmificant acquisitions and disposals
which have taken place, most notably RRPS in 2011, IAE
restructuring in 2012, the purchase of the remarming 50% of RRPS
and the disposal of our Energy gas turbines and compressor
business mn 2014 The impact on average cash balances will
depend on when these transactions took place during the year

the remaimng 0% of Power
Systems in August

The sale of the Energy
busmessin December
had a mimimal impact
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FREE CASH FLOW

£254m

In a business requiring sigmiicant imvestment, we monitor cash

flow to ensure that profitability 1s converted mto cash generation,

both for future investment and as a return to shareholders

We measure free cash flow as the movement n net funds/debt
during the year, before movements arisimg from payments

to shareholders, acquisitions and disposals and FX

The reduction mamly reflects
lower profits and movements
n customer deposits and
movements in balances with
the parent company

During 2015, we intend to re-consider the dashboard of financial and non-financial KPIs
against which we beheve the Group should be measured

425
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

Managing our risks to deliver better power for a changing world

Rolls-Royce benefits from operating a risk
management framework within a nisk-
conscious orgamsation Risk management

15 built into our day-to-day activities and
forms an integral part of how we work From
our engineering design, through to engime
production, servicing and how we run our
operations, risk management s a key
enabler for delivering our brand promise
‘trusted to deliver excellence’

are in a good posttion to assess how far
controls and actions are effective

The Executive Leadership Team (ELT) assists
the Board n determiming the nature and
extent of the principal nisks 1t 1s willing to
take in achieving 1ts strategic objectives
During 2014, as part of the full and half-year
results process, the ELT reviewed key nsks
which had been reported by the Divisions
and functions These were cross-checked
with the risks that the ELT had 1dentified
from its own assessments, frorn which

1t developed a hst of principal nisks

CGiven the rapid growth of the business over
the past few years and the changing risk
environment that we work 1n, we have been
reviewng how far the risk management
framework continues to meet our needs
across the Group This work 15 now largely
complete and we will be rolling out some
improvements across the orgamsation to
help ensure greater consistency across the
different parts of our operations Part of this
review has looked at sk governance and
how the Board assesses our principal nsks
and satisfies 1tself that these are being
managed appropriately

When the ELT reviews the principal risks

it takes into account changes in external
strategic factors such as the competitive
environment, technology, cyber securnty
and macro-economic developments as well
as potential operational, financial and
comphance risks Changes i our nisk profile
are mghhghted to the Board The Board

can regularly review and challenge whether
the Group’s princspal risks are the rnight ones
to focus on and have an opportumty to
discuss with semor management how they
are being managed The Board 1s very
conscious of the need to both keep the hst
of principal risks under active review and

to consider potential risks as an exphot part
of1ts discussions

RISK GOVERNANCE

The review of our risk management
framework has been conducted alongside

a governance review The Board has decided
that, from January 2015, the principal risks
will be reviewed by the Board or the most
appropnate board comrmttees of Rolls-Royce
Holdings plc to make sure that there s
sufficient focus and mdependent oversight
on the risks During the year, the relevant
committees will carry out ‘deep dives' to
review their allocated risks in detail and then
report to the Beard This will ensure that we

OUR RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

The Board 1s responsible for the Group's
systern of internal contro! and for
maintaining and reviewing its effectveness

perspective This system of internal control

from a financial, operational and compliance

Our nisk framework ensures that
nisks are identified, managed and
communicated at every level of
the Croup

ELT & board
committees

Key risks are subject to review and / Dwiston/functions \

challenge by the ELT and are used )
to assist the Board in deterrmming /

our principal risks

Business units

AN

Programmes

AN
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1s designed to identify and manage, rather
than ehminate, the risk of failure to aclieve
business objectives and to provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against matenal
misstatement or loss Our nsk management
process 1s a key element of the Group's internal
control systern and will develop 1n ine wath
our activities, and 1n response to the risks

and uncertainties that arise

Risk management s implemented using a
Group-wide framework and software tool
and a network of tramed experts

Divisions and therr business units and
functions are accountable for identifying

and managing nsk in line with Group
requirtements and they formally review risks
at least twice yearly Business continuity plans
are put in place by the businesses to mitigate
continuty risks

Risk thresholds are set at each level across the
Group and any risks identified that meet the
agreed threshold are captured im the Group
nisk software tool and escalated te Group
level as part of a well structured reporting
and review systermn

This framework benefits from overall
coordination by the Group’s enterprise risk
team, led by the director of risk, which1s
responsible for dissermimating nisk pohcy and
processes To help ensure full coverage and
efficiency we are currently conducting a risk,
control and assurance mapping exercise to
give the Board and comrmittees that have
oversight responsibility a clearer picture of
how the mternal control and risk management
framework 1s working 1n practice

lomnt ventures constitute an mncreasingly large
part of the Group's activities Responsibihty for
mternal control procedures in joint ventures
hes with the managers of those operations
We seek to exert influence over such joint
ventures through board representation
Management and internal audit reqularly
review the activities of these joint ventures
and the director of internal audst and the
Audit Committee have been taking a close
lock at audit coverage in this area
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The Board 15 very aware that the
effectiveness of nsk management 1s ighly
dependent on behaviours, as a good process
does not automatically lead to a good
outcome QOur ethics and comphance
improvement programme, aimed at
securing comphance with our ethical
standards, will help The launch of the new
Global Code of Conduct 1s remforaing the

Strategic Report

values and behaviours requited, which n
turn will strengthen our risk culture

PRINCIPAL RISKS

During the year, the ELT, Board and the
commuttees of the Rolls-Royce Holdmgs plc
Board focused on the principal nsks and
the actions being taken to manage them
Thisinvolved discussing changes to the

nisk register, considening key risk threshotds
and agreeing changes to limits, reviewing
the risk indicators for principal risks, and,
hearing from management how risks

that exceed the revised thresholds will

be managed

The following table describes the principai nsks facing the Group notwithstanding that there are other nisks that may
occur and may impact the achhevernent of the Group’s objectives

RISK OR UNCERTAINTY AND POTENTIAL IMPACT

HOW WE MANAGE IT

PRODUCT FAILURE

Product not meeting safety expectations, or
causing sigmficant mpact to customers or the
environment through failure in quahty control

- Operating a safety first culture

- Applying our engineering design and vahdatior: process from imtial design,
through production and into service

- The Safety and Ethics Commuttee reviewing the scope and effectiveness
of the Group’s product safety pohces to ensure that they operate to the
highest mdustry standards

+ Operating a safety rnanagement system (SMS), governed by the product safety
review board, and subject to continual improvement based on experience and
mndustry best practice Product safety training 1s an integral part of our SMS

- Improving our supply chain quality

- Cnsis management team charred by the Director - Engimeering and Technology
or General Counsel as appropriate

This prinaipal risk 1s subject to review by the Safety and Ethics Commttee

BUSINESS CONTINUITY

Breakdown of external supply chain or internal
facilities that could be caused by destruction of
key facihties, natural disaster, regional conflict,
financialinsolvency of a critical suppher or scarcity
of materials which would reduce the ability to
meet customer commitments, win future business
or achieve operational results

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

+ Contimwing investment in adequate capacity, and modern equipment and
facihities (see Aerospace Busimess review on page 23)

- {dentifying and assessing ponts of weakness in our internal and external
supply chain, our IT systems and our people skills

Selecting and developing stronger suppliers
- Developing dual sources or dual capability

- Developing and testing imaident management and business continuwity plans

Cnisis management team chaired by Birector — Engineering and Technology
or General Counsel as appropnate

Customer excellence centres providing improved response to supply
cham distuption

This prinapal nisk is subject to review by the Audit Committee

Customer innovation Profitable growth
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

CONTINUED
RISK OR UNCERTAINTY AND POTENTIAL IMPACT HOW WE MANAGE IT
COMPETITOR ACTION « Accessing and developing key technologies and service offerings which

differentiate us competitively (see Innovation and Technology on page 11)

The presence of large, financially strong
competitors in the majonty of our markets means
that the Group 1s susceptible to sigmificant price
pressure for original equipment or services even » Partnering with others effectively
where our markets are mature or the competitors
are few Our main competitors have access to
significant government funding programmes

as well as the ability to invest heavily in technology | * Protecting credit ines
and industnal capability

« Focusing on bemg responsive to our customers and improving the quahty,
delvery and rehabihity of our products and services

- Driving down cost and improving margins (see Chief Executive’s review
on page 6 and Chief Financial Officer’s review on pages 16 and 17)

+ Investing i innovation, manufacturing and production, and continuing
governance of technology programmes
+ Understanding our competitors

This principal risk is subject to review by the Board

POLITICAL RISK » Where possible, locating our domestic facilities and supply chain in
countries with a low level of pohtical risk and/or ensuring that we
Geopolitical factors that lead to an unfavourable maimtain dual capabihty

business climate and sigmficant tensions between
major trading parties or blocs which could impact
the Group’s operations For example exphcit trade
protectiomsm, differing tax or regulatory regimes, The international network of Rolls-Royce and its business unmits proactively

potential for corflict, or broader pohtical 1ssues moritoring local situations

Maintaiming a balanced business portfolio with high barriers to entry and
a diverse customer base (see Chief Executive’s review on pages 5 and 6 and

business model on pages 14 and 15)

- Diversifying global operations to avoid excessive concentration of risks
n particular areas

Proactively influencing regulation where 1t affects us (see Sustainability
on page 35)

This prinaipal risk 1s subject to review by the Board

MAJOR PROGRAMME DELIVERY + Major programimes are subject to Board approval (see Additional financial
mformation on page 126)

Fallure to dehver a major programme on time,
within budget to specification or techmical
performance falling sigmficantily short of
customer expectations, or not dehvering the
planned business benefits, would have potentially
significant adverse financial and reputational » Conducting technical audits at pre-defined ponts and performed by a team
consequences, mcluding the nsk of impairment that1s independent from the programme

of the carrying value of the Group's intangsble
assets and the impact of potential tigation

+ Reviewing major programmes at levels and frequencies appropriate to their
performance against key financial and non-financial dehverables and potental
risks throughout the programme’s Iife cycle (see Additional financial
nformation on page 126)

- Requiring programmes to address the actions arising from reviews and audits
and momitoring and controlling progress through to closure

+ Applying knowledge management principles to provide benefit to current
and future programmes

This principal risk 1s subject to review by the Board

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES Customer mnovation Profitable growth
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RISK OR UNCERTAINTY AND POTENTIAL IMPACT J

HOW WE MANAGEIT

COMPLIANCE

Non-compliance by the Group with Jegislation
or other regulatory requirements in the heavily
regulated environment in which 1t operates

(for example export controls, use of controlled
chermcals and substances, and anti-bribery and
corruption legislation) compromsing the ability
to conduct business in certain junsdictions and
exposing the Group to potential reputatonal
damage, financial penalties, debarment from
government contracts for a penod of time, and for
suspension of export privileges or export credit
financing, any of which could have a matenal
adverse effect

This prmaipal nisk is subject to review by the Safety and Ethics Committee

+ Taking an uncompromising approach to comphance

+ Qperating an extensive comphance programme This programme and the
Global Code of Conduct are disseminated throughout the Group and are
updated and reinforced from time-to-time to ensure their continued relevance,
and to ensure that they are comphed with both in spint and to the letter The
Global Code of Conduct and the Group’s comphance programme are supported
by appropnate traiming

-

Alegal and comphance team 15 1n place to manage our comphance programme
and any ongoing regulatory investigations

- Lord Gold has reviewed the Group's current comphance procedures and the
Group has continued to /mplement an improvement plan

-

Implementing a comprehensive REACH comphance programme This includes
establishing appropnate data systems and processes, working with our
suppliers, customers and trade associations and conducting research on
alternative matenals

MARKET SHOCK

The Group 15 exposed to a number of market risks,
some of which are of a macro-economic nature
For example, o1l price or foreign currency exchange
rates, and some which are more speaific to the
Group, such as hquidity and credit nisks, reduction
m air travel or distuption to other customer
operations Significant extraneous market events
could also maternally damage the Group's
competitiveness and/or creditworthiness This
would affect operational results or the outcomes
of financial transactions

+ Maintaiming a strong balance sheet, through healthy cash balances and
a continuing low level of debt

+ Providing finanaal flexibibity by maintaiming high levels of hquidity and
an imvestment grade ‘A’ credit rating (see Additional financial information
on page 127)

+ Sustaining a balanced portfolio through earning revenue both from the sale
of ongimal equipment and aftermarket services, providing a broad product
range and addressing diverse markets that have differing business cycles

» Deciding where and what currenoes to source 1n, and where and how much
credit sk 1s extended or taken The Group has a number of treasury pohcies
that are designed to hedge residual risks using financial derivatives (foreign
exchange, interest rate and commodity price nsk — see Additional financial
mformation on page 126 and note 16)

This principal risk 1s subject to review by the Audit Committee

IT VULNERABILITY

Breach of IT secunity causing controlled or critical
data to be lost, made maccessible, corrupted or
accessed by unauthorised users impacting the
Group's operations or reputation

The Strateqic Report was approved
by the Board on 12 February 2015

- Establishing “defence in depth’ through deployment of multiple layers of
software protechon and processes including web gateways, filtering, firewalls,
mntrusion, and advanced persistent threat detectors and mntegrated reportimg

» Runming security and network operations centres

« Actively sharing IT Secunty information through industry, government
and security forums

This principal nisk 1s subject to review by the Audit Committee
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

IAN DAVIS CHAIRMAN
Appointed to the Board March 2013
and as Chairman May 2013
Key areas of expenence Finance, government
and overseas expenence
Other current appointments
= Johnsen & Johnson Inc, non-executive director
+ BPplc, non-executive director
UK Cabinet Office Board, non-executive member
- Apax Pariners LLP, senior adviser
Previous relevant expenence
» McKinsey & Company 1979 — 2003
+ Chairman and worldwide managing
director of McKinsey 2003 — 2010
He served as a consultant at McKinsey to a range
of global ergamsations across the private, public
and not-for-profit sectors

JOHN RISHTON CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Appointed to the Board March 2007 and

as Chief Executive March 2011

Key areas of expenence Finance, sales and

marketing, and overseas experience

Other current appointments

+ Umilever NV and Umlever plc, non executive director

Previous relevant expenence

« Fard Mater Company, held a varety of positions
m the UK and Europe 1979 —-1994

- Bntish Airways Plc 1994 - 2001

- Bntish Airways Plc, chief finanaial officer
2001-2005

- Royal Ahold, CFO from 2006 —2007 and CEQO
from 2007 — 2011
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LEWIS BOOTH CBE

SENIOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Appointed to the Board May 2011

Key areas of expenence Finance, industrnal

and overseas expenence

Other current appomtments

- Mondelez International Inc, director

- Gentherm Inc, director

- University of Liverpool in Amenca Inc, director

Previous relevant expenence

+ Ford Motor Company, semor positions in Eutope,
Asia Afnca and US, 1978 — 2009

» Ford Motor Company, executve vice president
and CFO 2008 - 2012
He was awarded a CBE m 2012 for services to the
UK autometive and manufactunng industnes

DAME HELEN ALEXANDER

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appointed to the Board September 2007

Key areas of expenence Media, business

and finance

Other current appointments

- UBM ple chairman

« Port of London Authonty, chairman

- esure Group plc, deputy chairman

+ Ban Capital, sermor adwiser

« EDF's UK Adwsory Board, member

- Unwersity of Southampton, chanceller

+ She1s also mvolved with other not-for-profit
orgamsahons n media, the arts and education

Previous relevant expenence

» Economist Group chief executve 1997 — 2008

« Economust InteThgence Unit, managing director
1993-1997

« BT Group plc, non-executive director 1998 - 2001

- Notthern Foods ple, non-executive director
1994 —-2002

-« CBI, president 2009 — 2011

- Centnca ple, non-executve director 2003 -2011
She was awarded a DBE m 2011 for services
to business
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RUTH CAIRNIE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Appointed to the Board September 2014
Key areas of expenence International marketing
and supply chain, and overseas expenence
Other current appomtments
Associated British Foods plc, non-executive director
« Keller Group plc, non-executive director Rotterdam
School of Management, member of adwisory board
Previous televant expenence
Royal Dutch Shell plc 1976 - 2014 executive vice
president strategy & planmng and other senior
ternational roles, including managmg the global
commernal fuels business

SIR FRANK CHAPMAN NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Apponted to the Board November 2011
Key areas of expenence Engineenng and industnal
Other current appointments
- Golar LNG Lirmted, chairman
Previous relevant expenence
Appoimtments within BP Pl ¢, 1974-1978 and
Royal Dutch Shell ple, 1978 - 1996
+ BG Group plc CEQ 2000 - 2012
He was kmighted 1n 2011 for services to the
o1l & gas industnes

WARREN EAST CBE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Appointed to the Board January 2014
Key areas of expenence Technology and engineenng
Other current appomtments
- De La Rue plc, non-executive director
» Dyson Ltd, non-executive director
+ BT Group ple, non-executive director
Micron Technology Inc non-executve director
Previous relevant expenence
ARM Holdings plc, chef executive 20012013
+ ARM Holdmgs plc, vanous sermor appeintments
1994 -2001
He was awarded a CBE m 2014 for services to the
technology industry



LEE HSIEN YANG NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Appomnted to the Board January 2014
Key areas of experience Telecommumications
government, engineenng and finance
Cther current appomntments
+ General Atlanbic LLC, special adwisor
- (vt} Aviation Authorty of Singapore chairman
« General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pte Ltd, chairman
- The Islamic Bank of Asia Private Limited, chairman
« The Australian and New Zealand Banking Group
Ltd, drector
+ Lee Kuan Yew School of Public Policy member
of the board of governors
« INSEAD South East Asia Counal, president
- Singapore Exchange Limited, director
Previous relevant experience
- Singapore Telecommunicaiions Limited,
chief executive 1995 — 2007
« Fraser and Neave Liited, chairman
and non-executive director 2007 — 2013

JOHN MCADAM NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Appointed to the Board February 2008
Key areas of expenence Retail and industnal
Other current appointments
« Umited Utihties Group PLC, chairman
Rentokil lmbal plc, chairman
J Sansbury plc semor independent director
Previous relevant expenence
+ Umlever PLC, senior posttions within Birds Eye
Walls, Quest and Umchema from 1974 —1998
« QI Paints, chairman and CEO 1998 — 2002
+1C1 ple chief executive 2003 — 2008
- Severn Trent ple, non-executive director
2000- 2005
- Sara Lee Corporation, non-executive director
2008 —2012

The names of the directors who held office
durning the year are set out above, with the
exception of lain Conn who retited on 1 May
2014, and Mark Morns who left the
Company on 4 Novemnber 2014

Directors Report

JOHN NEILL CBE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Appomnted to the Board Novernber 2008
Key areas of expenence Engineering, industnal
and finance
Cther cwrrent appomtments
« Urupart Group of Compames, chairman
and group chief executive
+ Atlantis Resources Lirmited, chairman
Business in the Commumity, council
and board member
« Soaiety of Motor Manufacturers and Trades,
vice president
« BEN, the automotive mdustry chanty, vice president
« The Insttute of the Motor Industry, vice president
Previous relevant expenence
- Bank of England director
« Royal Mail non-executive director
- Charter tntemational plc, non-executive director
He was awarded a CBE 1n June 1594 for semvices
to the motor industry

JASMIN STAIBLIN NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appeinted to the Board May 2012

Key areas of expenence Technology, engineenng

and overseas expenence

Other current appointments

« Alpig Helding AG, CEO

+ Georg Fischer AG, non-executive directar

» Federal Institute of Technology the ETH Domain,
board member

Previous relevant expenence

« ABB Swatzetland Ltd, CEO unil 2012

JAMES GUYETTE PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER OF ROLLS-ROYCE NORTH AMERICA INC
Appointed to the Board January 1998
Key areas of expenence Sales, marketing
and airhne operations
Other current appomtments
+ PrivateBancorp Inc, chairman
« pricehne com, lead ndependent director
Previous relevant expenence
United Airlines, executive vice president
markebing and planning 1969 1997

At 31 December 2014, all the directors were
also directors of Rolls-Royce Holdings plc, the
ultimate parent company As directors of the
ultimate parent company, there 1s no
requirement to disclose therr rermuneration
or therr interests in the shares of Rolls-Royce
group comparnes in this Directors’ Report, as
they are included n the Annual Report of
Rolls-Royce Holdmgs plc

DAVID SMITH CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Appointed to the Board Novemnber 2014
Key areas of expenence Finance
Other current appomtments
- Motability Operations Group plc,
non executive director
- Bntish Motor Industry Hentage Trust, trustee
Previous relevant expenence
« Ford and Jaguar Land Rover, vanous semor
positions spanmng 25 years
- Jaguar Land Rover, CEC 2008 — 2010
- Edwards, chief inancial officer 20102013

COLIN P SMITH CBE DIRECTOR — ENGINEERING

AND TECHNOLOGY

Appointed to the Board July 2005

Key areas of expenience Engineering

Other current appomtments

- Counall for Science and Technology, member

Previous relevant expenence

- Rolls-Royce ple, 197410 date He has held a vanety
of key positions including Drector —Research and
Technology and Director of Engineerng and
Technalogy — Cwil aerospace
InJune 2012 he was awarded a CBE for services
to UK engimeenng

PAMELA COLES COMPANY SECRETARY

Appomted Company Secretary in October 2014

Key areas of experience Corporate governance

and company faw

Previous relevant expenence

- Centrica plc, head of secretanat 2008 — 2014

- Held a vanety of company secretary roles
ncluding Rank Group plc, group company
secretary and a member of the executive
committee

- RAC ple, company secretary and head of legal
Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Secretanes
and Adrinistrators since 1997
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

THE BOARD'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL CONTROL AND

RISK MANAGEMENT

The directors are responsible for the Group's system of internal
control and for mamtaiming and reviewing its effectiveness from
both a financial and an operational perspective The Group's risk
management process 15 a key element of the internal control
system This system of internal control 15 designed to 1dentify and
manage, rather than eliminate, the nisk of failure to achieve busimess
objectives and to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
agamst matenal misstatement or loss The Group's system of
internal controls 15 designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against matenal
misstatement or loss

The Board will continue routinely to challenge management in
order to ensure that the systern of internal controlis constantly
mproving and remains fit for purpose A major review of our risk
management framework has been conducted over the past year
and ymplementation s now underway The Board, with the advice
of the Rolls-Rayce Holdings plc Audit Committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the systems of imternal contro! for the year under
review and to the date of this report

The structure of the Group was changed n 2014 to bring greater
organisational and management coherence to the work of our mamn
two Divisions, Aetospace and Land & Sea Through this change we
are aiming to encourage better coordmation across the different
actties, secure benefits from greater integration and reinforce
accountabiities Each of the Divisions 1s described in more detail
on pages 22 to 31 As part of the ongoing work looking at
governance across the Group, we will continue to review our
processes and structures within the Divisions and as we integrate
Power Systems We are further strengthening governance at
divisional level through our sector audit committees

Also, as part of the ongoing review, the Board 15 considering how
internal controls and the risk management framework are
operating \n practice (as outhned on pages 40 to 43} We view this
as fundamental to understanding and discussing the mam
challenges to the business, both strategic and operational The
Executive Leadership Team will continue to review all pnincipal and
emerging risks Each identified principal risk will also be considered
by the Board who will allocate certain risks to the most appropriate
board committee of Ralls-Royce Holdings plc Those commttees
will then report back to the Board with their views on how those
nisks are being managed and controlled

The Aucht Committee will continue to rewiew all principal risks
and the averall internal controls and risk management framework
as part of its year-end activities This will remain an area of focus
n 2015

46 Rolls-Royce plc Annual report 2014

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Group has a comprehensive budgeting system with an annual
budget approved by the Board Revised forecasts for the year are
reported at least quarterly Actual results, at both a business and
Group level, are reported monthly against budget and vanances are
kept under scrutiny The new Chief Financial Officer 1s undertaking
an in-depth review of our management reporting and budgeting
processes to ensure that they fully provide what we need, taking
into account the size and shape of the Group and the structure of
our operations

Financial managers are required to acknowledge in wnting that
thewr routime financial reporting 1s based on reliable data and that
results are properly stated in accordance with Group requirements
in addition, for annual reporting, business presidents and finance
directors are required to confirm that their business has comphed
with the Group’s finance manual

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The key objective 1s assist the Board 1n ensunng the mtegnity of 1its
financial statements In addressing the key objective, the committee
reviewed financial statements with both management and the
external auditor, concentrating on

FINANCIAL REPORTING
« reviewing the financial results announcements and financal
statements and monitor comphiance with relevant regulations,

- reviewng the appropriateness of accounting pohoes and the
supporting key judgements and estimates,

INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERNAL AUDIT
assessing the scope and effectiveness of the systems to1dentify,
manage and monitor financial and nen-financial nsks,

+

reviewng the procedures for detecting, monitoring and
managing the risk of fraud,

« review1ing the scape, resources, results and effectiveness of
internal audit, and




EXTERNALAUDIT

- overseeing the relationship with the external auditor, reviewing
the effectiveness of the external audit process and making
recommendations to the Board regarding the external audrtor’s
appomtment

As described 1n the business model on pages 14 and 15, the
development of gas turbine engines for use wn cvil arrcraft
apphcations involves large upfront invest ments, which may be
shared with supplers, and which are expected to be recovered over
long periods from the sale of original equipment, and subsequently
the aftermarket from the sale of spare parts and engine
maintenance work Much of the aftermarket repair and overhaul

15 provided through long-term service agreements Given this long
exposure, which may extend to for decades from the imtial concept,
the amount of revenue and profit recognised during any period
requires a significant number of accounting judgements and
estimates Consequently, one of the committee’s primary
responsibilities 1s to ensure that the bases for these judgements
and estimates are robust

To suppert the Board in carrying out 1ts review of internal controls
and nsk management, the commttee reviewed the process by
which the Board reaches its conclusion This mvolved consideration
of the key findings from the ongoing oversight, momtoring and
reporting processes, management representations and
independent assurance reports

Fram 2015 onwards, as a result of a broad ranging review of the
risk governance approach, the overall assessment will combine
oversight of principal nisk management undertaken by each board
committee or the Board In this way we aim to make sure that the
Board's oversight of risks and misk management 1s nigorous mits
coverage and depth, making sure that principal risks are assessed
n detail and that one committee has an integrated review of how
the internal control framework 1s operating

In hne with this, during 2014, the committee carmed out an
assessment of financial controls, primarily based on a self-
assessment of these controls by each of the businesses A prionty
for 201515 to standardise and, where necessary, enhance the
Group's inanaial internal conirel framework, against which this
assessment 1s made

This wall create greater consistency, particularly in the Group's small
operations, and reinforce ownership and accountabihty for effective
internal control throughout the orgamsation
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THE ROLLS-ROYCE HOLDINGS PLC ETHICS COMMITTEE

AND THE REFERRAL TO THE SERIOUS FRAUD OFFICE

We reported last year that the Senous Fraud Office (SFO) had begun
aformalinvestigation The comrmittee received reqular updates on
the requlatory investigations The Group 1s continuing to co-operate
fully with the authorities 1n the UK, US and elsewhere As the
mvestigation 1s stillongoing we are unable to qive any further
details or a timescale when the investigation will conclude

The Group has continued to implement the recommendations
made in Lord Gold's interim report in 2013 and has developed

an ethics and comphance improvement programme to dehver

the recommendations In December 2014, Lord Gold 1ssued a second
intenim report and the recommendations made in that report have
been accepted by the Company and incorperated into the
improvement plan

During the year, we received updates on this improvement
programme and the Group has made good progress Throughout
the year, Lord Gold and the director of risk have held focus groups
made up of employees throughout our domestic and international
operations to obtan feedback on the Group's ethics and compliance
Improvernent programmes
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SHARE CAPITAL

Throughout 2014, the Company’s authorised share capital was £400
mmillion, compnising 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 20p On 31
December 2013, there were 1,630,996,508 ordinary shares in 1ssue

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

DISCLOSURES IN THE STRATEGIC REPORT

The Board has taken advantage of section 414C{11) of the
Companies Act 2006 to include disclosures in the
Strategic Report on

pagels)
- disabled people and employee involvemnent 34
» the future development, performance and position of the Group 1to 43
« the fimancial position of the Group 16 to 31
+ R&D actinties 10and 11
- the pnincipal nsks and uncertantbes 40to 43
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Each member has one vote for each ordimary share held Holders
of ordinary shares are entitled to recewe the Company’s Annual
Report, attend and speak at general meetings of the Company, to
appaint one or more proxies or, 1f they are corporations, corporate
representatives, and to exercise voting nights

The ordimary shares are not histed

POULITICAL DONATIONS
The Group's policy 15 not to make pohtical donations and therefore
did not donate any money to any pohtical party duning the year

However, it 1s possible that certain activities undertaken by
the Group may uninientionally fall wathin the broad scope
of the provisions contained in the Companies Act 2006 (the Act)

Curing the year, expenses mcurred by Rolls-Royce North America
Inc i providing administrative support for the Rolls-Royce North
America Pohtical Action Committee (RRNAPAC) was US$52,690
(2013 US569,430) PACs are a common feature of the US peltical
system and are governed by the Federal Election Campaign Act

The PAC 15 independent of the Group and independent of any
political party The PAC funds are contributed voluntanly by
employees and the Company cannot affect how they are apphed,
although under US Law, the business expenses are paid by the
Company Such contnibutions do not require authorisation by
shareholders under the Companies Act 2006 and therefore do
not count towards the hmits for political donatons and
expenditure




GREENHOUSE GAS £EMISSIONS

Our greenhouse gas ermssions reporting excludes data from our
Power Systems business for 2013 and 2014, as detailed on page 36
In 2014, our total greenhouse gas {GHG) ermssions from our
facilities, processes, and product test and development was 565
kilotonnes carbon dioxide equivalent (ktCOZe) This represents an
increase of 2% compared with 554 kiCO2e m 2013 (see table below)

Total GHG emissions (ktCO,e) 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014°
Direct ermssions — facibiies

processes, product test and

development (Scope 1) 321 218 219 241 231
Inchirect emmssions —facihties,

processes, product test and

development (Scope 2) 349 327 313 313 334
Total for facihties, processes,

product test and development 570 545 532 554 565
Direct emmissions — power

generation to grid {Scope 1) 153 155

Indirect emmssions — power
generation to gnd (Scope 2) 12 14

Total for facilihes, processes,
product test and development,
and power generation to gnd

718 734

Normahised (by revenue}
emissions tation for facihties,
processes, product test and

development (ktCO,e/fm) 0058 0056 0049 0048 0047

* We engaged KPMCG LLP to undertake a limited assurance engagement reporting to
Rolls Royce Holdings ple using the assurance standards ISAE 3000 and ISAE 3410 over
the GHG and TRI data that have been highhighted in this report with & and as set cut on
page 36 of this teport and m the table above Their fulf statement as well as our
methodalogy for reporting and the critena used as set out 1nour Basis of Reperting
document 15 available on our website at www rolls-royce com/sustamability The level
of assurance provided for a hrmited assurance engagement 1s substantially lower than
areasonable assurance agreement in order to reach theiropimon they performed a
range of procedures over the GHG and TRI data imcluding evaluating the work performad
and conclusions reached by the Rolls Royce Internal Audit team agreeing a selection of
the datato the cerresponding source documentatieon and reviewing the data cellabion
and vahdation processes at the head office level including formulae used and manual
calculations performed A summary of the work they performed is included within thewr
assurance epinion Mon financial performance mformation greenhouse gas
quantification i particular 1s subject te more inherent mitations than financial
information It 1s 1important to read the energy GHG and TRI data in the context of the
full emrted assurance staternent provided by KPMG LLP and the reporting cnitena as set
out in the Rolls Royce Basis of Reporting document

The figures 1n the table do not mclude emissions associated with
our Power Systerns business We are 1n the process of integrating
our Power Systems business into our HS&E management system
The figures presented have been adjusted to reflect the disposal of
our Energy gas turbine and compressor business 1n December 2014

Entities that were part of the Energy business that were not part
of the disposal have been included

Power generation relates to the operation of commercial gas-fired
power stabions and the figures have been adjusted to include
ermissions associated with Tnigno Energy S 1 We have used the GHG
Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard (revised
edition) as of 31 December 2014 data gathered to fulfil

out requirements under the Carbon Reduction Commiment (CRC)

Directors Report

Energy Efficiency scheme, the UK Government's GHG reporting
guidance and DEFRA's emissions factors for company reporting
for 2014 as the basis of our methodology

Through our active participatian mn the International Aerospace
Environment Group we have helped to mtroduce new guidance

on greenhouse gas ermssions reporting in June to enable consistent
commumications and reporting for aerospace industry companies
The Guidance 1s a voluntary consensus standard designed to
supplement the World Resources Institute’s {(WRI) GHG Protocol

It earned the WRI ‘Built on GHG Protocol’ mark after public
comment consultation

BRANCHES

We are a global company and our actwities and interests are
operated through subsidianes, branches of subsidiaries, jomt
ventures and associates which are subject to the laws and
regulations of many different jurisdictions Qur principal
subsidianes and joint ventures are listed on page 123 and 124

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
There have been no events affecting the Group since 31 December
2014 which need to be reflected in the 2014 financal statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Details of the Group’s financial mstruments are set out in note 16
to the Financial Statements

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related party transactions are set out in note 23 to the
Financial Statements

MANAGEMENT REPORT

The Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report together are the
management report for the purposes of the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules 4 1 8R
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
ANNUAL REPORT AND THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors, as histed on pages 44 and 45, are responsible for
preparing the Annual Report and the Group and parent company
financial statements i accordance with apphcable law and
regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and parent
company financial statements for each financial year Under that
law they are required to prepare the Group finanaal statements in
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and applicable law and
have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in
accordance with UK Accounting Standards and apphcable law (UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under company law the directors must not approve the finanaial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and parent company and of
their profit or loss for that period

In preparing each of the Group and parent company financial
statements, the directors are required to

select suitable accounting pohcies and then apply them
consistently,

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

for the Group financial staternents, state whether they have been
prepared 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

- for the parent company financial statements, state whether
apphcable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject
to any maternial departures disclosed and explained m the parent
company financial statements, and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless 1t 1s nappropnate to presume that the Group and the
parent company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explam the parent and
Group's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financaia) position of the parent company and enable them
to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 They have general responsibihity for takimg such steps as
are reasonably open to them to safequard the assets of the Group
and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregulanties

The directors are responsible for the mamtenance and integrity of
the corporate and financial information included on the Group's
website Legislation in the UK govermng the preparation and
dissermination of finanoal statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions
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RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENTS UNDER THE DISCLOSURE AND
TRANSPARENCY RULES

Each of the persons wha 1s a director at the date of approval of this
report confirms that to the best of lns or her knowledge

1) each of the Group and parent company financial statements,
prepared in accordance with IFRS and UK Accounting Standards
respectively, gives a true and fair view of the assets, habilities,
financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the
undertakings included 1n the consohdation taken as a whole, and

1) the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 43 and Directors’ Report on
pages 44 to 50 includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Company
and the undertakings included m the consolidation taken as a
whole, together with a description of the principal nisks and
uncertamnties that they face

GOING CONCERN

As described on page 127, the Group meets 1ts fundmg
requitements through a mixture of shareholders’ funds, bank
borrowings, bonds and notes At 31 December 2014, the Group had
borrowing faclities of £3 5 bilhon and total hqundity of £4 1 bilhon,
mcluding cash and cash equivalents of £2 9 billion and undrawn
facihities of £1 3 bilhon £67 rmillion of the facihties mature in 2015

The Group’s forecasts and projections, taking into account
reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show that the
Group has sufficient financial resources The directors have
reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group are well
placed to manage their business nsks and to contmue m operational
existence for the foreseeable future, despite the current uncertan
global economic outlook

Accordingly, the directors continue to adopt the going concern basis
n preparing the conschdated financial statements

DISCLOSURE GF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS
Each of the persons who 1s a director at the date of approval of this
report confirms that

1) sofar as the director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information of which the Company’s auditor 1s unaware, and

1) the director has taken all steps that he or she ought to have taken
as a director in order to make himself ar herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s
auditor 1s aware of that mformation

This confirmation 15 given, and should be interpreted, in accordance
with the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

By order of the Board
PAMELA COLES

Company Secretary
12 February 2015
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Re presented”

2014 2013
Notes £m £m
Contimuing operations
Revenue 2 13,736 14,642
Cost of sales (10,533) (11,482)
Gross profit 3,203 3,160
Other operating income 3 10 65
Commeraial and admmnistrative costs {1,124) (1,236)
Research and development costs 3 (793} (658)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 10 94 149
Operating profit 1,390 1,480
Profit on acquisition/reclassification of joint ventures 2 119
Profit on disposal of businesses 24 6 216
Profit before financing and taxation 2 1,398 1,815
Financing income 4 32 327
Financing costs 4 (1,284) (182)
Net financng (1,252) 145
Profit before taxation 146 1,960
Taxation 5 (151) (377}
Profit for the year from continuing operations {5) 1,583
Discontiued operations
Profit for the year from ordinary activities 2 4 56
Profit on disposal 24 138 -
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 142 56
Profit for the year 137 1,639
Attributable to
Ordinary shareholders 148 1,627
Non-controlling interests {11) 12
Profit for the year 137 1639

Re presented to reflect the Energy business as a discontinued operation The televant notes have also been re presented
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Financial Statements

2014 2013
Notes £m £fm
Profit for the year 137 1,639
Other comprehensive income
Items that wiil not be reclassified to profit or loss
Movements in post-retirtement schemes 18 1,192 48
Related tax movements S {431) 10
761 58
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Foreign exchange translation differences on foreign operations {158) (64)
Reclassified to income statement on disposal of businesses {29) -
Share of other comprehensive income of joint ventures and assocates 10 (13) {5}
Related tax movements 5 (2) 1
(202 {69)
Total comprehensive imcome for the year 696 1,628
Attnibutable to
Ordiary shareholders 729 1,617
Non-controlhing interests (33) 11
Total comprehensive income for the year 696 1,628
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Notes £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 8 4,804 4987
Property, plant and equipment 9 3,446 3,392
Investments —joint ventures and associates 10 539 601
Investments — other 10 31 27
Other financial assets 16 107 674
Deferred tax assets 5 369 316
Post-retirement scheme surpluses 18 1,740 248
11,036 10,245
Current assets
Inventories 11 2,768 3,319
Trade and other receivables 12 6,820 5,940
Taxation recoverable 19 16
Other finanaial assets 16 22 74
Short-term investments 7 321
Cash and cash equivalents 13 2,862 3,990
Assets held for sale 1 6
12,499 13,666
Total assets 23,535 23911
LIABILITIES
Current habihties
Borrowings 14 (68} (207)
Other financial habilibes 16 (187) {102)
Trade and other payables 15 {7,680) (7936)
Current tax habilities {184) (204)
Provisions for habilities and charges 17 {(433) (348)
{8,552) (8,797)
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 14 {2,193) (2,164)
Other financial habihties 16 (717} {360)
Trade and other payables 15 {2,445} (2,138)
Non-current tax habihities {10} (10)
Deferred tax habhties 5 (1,228) (882)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 17 (374) (385)
Post-retirement scheme deficits 18 {1,185) (1,041)
(8,152) (6,980)
Total habihties (16,704) (15,777}
Net assets 6,831 8,134
EQUITY
Equnty attributable to ordinary shareholders
Called-up share capital 19 326 326
Share premium account 631 631
Cash flow hedging reserve (81) (68}
Other reserves 75 247
Retained earmngs 5,875 6,300
6,826 7436
Non-controlling mterests 10 S 698
Total equity 6,831 8134
The financial statements on pages 52 to 105 were approved by the Board on 12 February 2015 and signed onats behalf by
dé‘ 0[ )‘ [0 (
JOHN RISHTON Chief Executive DAVID SMITH Chief Financial Officer
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

L

Financial Statements

2014 2013
Notes £m £m
Reconcihation of cash flows from operating activities
Operating profit from continuing operations 1,390 1480
Operating {loss)/profit from discontinued operations (1) S6
Operating profit 1,389 1,536
{Profit)/loss on disposat of property, plant and equipment (3) 7
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 10 (94} (160)
Dnadends recewved from joint ventures and associates 10 73 99
Return of capital from joint ventures 3 -
Gain on consphdation of previcusly non-consohdated substchary {(3) -
Amorhisation and impairment of intangible assets 8 367 A28
Depreciation and imparment of property, plant and equipment 9 375 372
tincrease/(decrease) in provisions 129 {17)
Decrease ininventories 166 119
Increase in trade and other recevables (1,341) (834)
Increase in trade and other payables 202 349
Cash flows on other fimancial assets and habhties held for operating purposes (30} 9
Net defined benefit post-retirement cost recogrised i profit before financing 170 279
Cash funding of defined benefit post retirement schemes {322) (315)
Share-based payments 20 21 79
Net cash inflow from operating actwities befare taxaton 1,102 1,951
Taxation paid (276) {238)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 826 1,713
Cash flows from imvesting activities
Additions of unhsted investments (11} {1)
Disposals of unlisted investments - 1
Additions of intangible assets (477) {503)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (648) (669)
Government grants received 11 21
Disposals of property plant and equipment 65 7
Acquisttions of businesses 24 (3) (37
Acquisition of non-controlhng mmterest (1,937) -
Redassification of Joint ventures to subsidianes 24 - 245
Acquisition of preference shares in subsidiary - {34)
Disposals of discontinued operation 24 1,027 -
Disposals of other businesses 24 273
[nvestments i jomt ventures and associates (17) {43)
Net cash outflow from investing activities {1,966) (740)
Cash flows from financing actwities
Repayment of loans {233) {133)
Proceeds from increase 1n loans and finance leases 49 1,013
Net cash flow from decrease m borrowings and fimance leases {184) 880
Interest recewed 18 15
Interest pard (63} (58)
Decrease/{(increase) in short-term investments 313 {313)
Dindend paid to non-controlling mterest (76} (60)
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from fimancing activities 8 464
Change n cash and cash equivalents (1,133) 1,437
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 3,987 2,584
Exchange gams/(losses) oncash and cash equivalents 8 (39
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2,862 3,987
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
£m £m
Reconcihation of movements in cash and cash equivalents to movements 1n net funds
Change n cash and cash equivalents (1,133) 1,437
Cash flow from decrease/(increase) m borrowings and finance leases 184 (880)
Cash flow from {decrease)/increase in short-term investments (313) 313
Change in net funds resulting from cash flows {1,262) 870
Net funds (excluding cash and cash equivalents) of busmesses acquired (30) (204)
Exchange gains/(iosses) on net funds 19 (43)
Fair value adjustments (s9) 105
Movement in net funds (1,332) 728
Net funds at 1 January excluding the fair value of swaps 1,940 1,212
Net funds at 31 December excluding the fair value of swaps 608 1,940
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings 58 {1)
Net funds at 31 December 666 1,939
The movement in net funds {defined by the Group as including the items shown below} 15 as follows
At Net funds At
1January Funds  of busmesses Exchange Fair value 31 December
2014 flow acquired differences  adjustments  Reclassifications 2014
£m £m £m £m £m fm £m
Cash at bank and 1n hand 982 (228) (a5) - - 739
Money market funds 1,157 {470) 5 - - 692
Short-term deposits 1,851 (438) 18 - - 1,431
Overdrafts (3) 3 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 3,987 {1,133) 8 - - 2,862
Short-term investments 321 {313) - {1) - - 7
Current borrowings excluding overdrafts {204) 229 {30) - {(2) (60) (67)
Non-current borrowings {2,163) (3) - 14 (57) 60 (2,149)
Finance leases (1) {42) - (2} - - (as)
Net funds excluding fair value of swaps 1,940 (1 262) {30) 19 (59) - 608
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings {1) 59 58
Net funds 1,939 (1,262} (30) 19 - - 666
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2014

L

Financial Statements

Attributable to ovdinary shareholders

Cash flow controrl‘l?:g
Share Share hedgmg Translation Retamed mterests Total
capital  premmum reserve!  Resetve  earmings Total {NCI) equity
Notes £m £Em £m £m £m £m im im
At 1 January 2013 326 631 (63) 310 5,449 6,653 63 6,716
Profit for the year - -~ - - 1,627 1,627 12 1639
Foreign exchange translation differences on
foreign operations - - - (63) - {63) (1) {64)
Movement on post-retirement schemes 18 - - - - 48 48 - 48
Share of other comprehensive income of
joint ventures and associates 10 - - (5) (1) - (6) - (6)
Related tax movements 5 - - - 1 10 11 — 11
Total comprehensive income for the year - - {5) (63) 1685 1,617 11 1,628
Dwidend paid (900) (900} - (900)
Share-based payments - direct to equity? - - - - 53 53 - 53
Reclassification of Rolls-Royce Power Systems AG? - - - - - 669 669
Transactions with NCi - - - - - (45) {45)
Related tax movements 5 - - - - 13 13 - 13
Other changes i equity inthe year - - - (834) {834) 624 {210)
At1 January 2014 326 631 (68) 247 6,300 7,436 698 8,134
Profit for the year - - - - 148 148 (11) 137
Foreign exchange transtation differences on
foreign operations - -~ ~ (141) - (141) (17) (158)
Reclassified to ncome statement on disposal of businesses - - - (29) - {29) - {29}
Movement on post-retirement schemes - - - - 1,199 1,199 (7) 1,192
Share of other comprehensive iIncome of
joint ventures and associates 10 - - (13) - — {13) - (13)
Related tax movements 5 - - - {2) (433) {435} 2 (433)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - {13} (172) 914 729 (23) 696
Share-based payments —direct to equity? - - - - 18 18 - 18
Purchase of NCI's remaning mterest in subsidiary* - - - - (1,353}  (1,353) (584)  (1.937)
Transactions with NCI - - - - - — (76) (76)
Related tax movements 5 - - - - (43 {4) - {4
Other changes in equity in the year - - - - {(1,339) (1,339) {660) (1,999)
At 31 December 2014 326 631 (81) 75 5,875 6,826 5 6,831

! See accounting pohcies note 1

? Share-based payments — direct to equity 1s the net of the credit to equity in respect of the share based payment charge to the income staterment and the actual cost of shares vesting

excluding those vesting from own shares

* On1January 2013 the Group exercised nghts that resulted in Rolls Royce Power Systems AG (RRPS formerly Tognum AG} being classified as a subsidiary and conschdated
* 0On 26 August 2014 the Croup purchased the remaiming 50% of Rolls Power Systems Holding GmbH from Daimler AG for £1 937m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

THE COMPANY

The consohdated financial statements of Rolls-Royce plc (the ‘Company’) for the year ended 31 December 2014 consist of the consohdation
of the financial statements of the Company and 1ts subsidiaries (together referred to as the ‘Group’) and include the Group's interest in
jointly controlled and associated entities

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

In accordance with European Umon (EU) regulations, these financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), as adopted for use in the EU effective
at 31 December 2014 (Adopted IFRS)

The Company has elected to prepare its parent company financial statements under UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practices
These are set out on pages 106 to 122 and the accounting pohicies 1n respect of Company financial statements are set out on page 108

These consohdated financial statements have been prepared on the historicat cost basis except where Adopted IFRS requires the
revaluation of financial mstruments to fair value and certan other assets and habilities on an alternative basis — most sigrificantly
postretirement scheme obhgations are valued on the basis required by IAS 19 Employee Benefits — and on a going concern basis as
described on page 50

The consahdated financial statements are presented in sterhing which is the Company’s functionat currency

The preparation of financial statements m conformity with Adopted IFRS requires management to make judgements and estimates that
affect the reported amounts of assets and habilities at the date of the finanaal statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses dunng the reporting penod Actual results could differ from those estimates

KEY AREAS OF JUDGEMENT

INTRODUCTION

The Group generates a sigmficant portion of its revenues and profit on aftermarket arrangements anising from the installed oniginal
equipment (OE) fleet As a consequence, the Group will often agree contractual prices for OE dehveries that take into account the
anticipated aftermarket arrangements Accounting policies reflect this aspect of the business model, m particular the pohcies for
the recogmtion of contractual aftermarket nights and the linkage of OF and aftermarket arrangemenits

When a civil large engine 1s sold, the economic benefits received usually far exceed the cash recevable under the contract, due to the
rights to valuable aftermarket spare parts business However, because the value of this night cannot be estimated with enough precision,
accounting standards require that the revenue recogrised n the accounts on sale of the engme is restncted to a total amount that results
1 a break even position The amaount of the revenue recogmised 1n excess of cash receivable 1s recogmsed as an intangible asset, which 1s
called a ‘contractual aftermarket right’ (previously referred to as a 'recoverable engine cost’, this change has been made to reflect better
the nature of the asset)

There 15 only one circumstance where accounting standards require the recogmtion of more of the value of the aftermarket nghts when
anengine s sold This occurs where a long-term aftermarket contract (generally a TotalCare agreement — TCA) and an engine sale
cantract have been negotiated tegether In this aircumstance, the part of the aftermarket rights covered by the TCA can be valued much
more precisely and is recogmised at the time of the engine sale through accounting for the engine sale and TCA as a single contract
Nevertheless, the accounting profit recogrised s still less than the economic benefits on the sale as there will be other valuable
aftermarket nghts (for instance for the period beyond the TCA term or for the sale of parts which are outside the scope of the TCA)
which cannot be recognised

The Group enters into arrangements with long-term supphers to share the risks and rewards of major programmes —nisk and revenue
sharing arrangements {(RRSAs) The accounting policy for these arrangements has been chosen, consistent with Adopted IFRS, to reflect
their commeraial effect

The key judgements i determining these accounting policies are described below

CONTRACTUAL AFTERMARKET RIGHTS (CARs)

On dehvery of Cwil aerospace engines, the Group has contractual nights to supply afterrarket parts to the customers and its intellectual
nights, warranty arrangements and, where relevant, statutory airworthiness or other regulatory requirements provide reasonable control
over this supply The directors consider that these rights meet the defimition of an intangible asset in 1AS 38 intangible Assets However, the
directors do not constder that 1t 1s possible to deterrmine a rehable fair value for this intangible asset Accordingly, an mtangible asset (CAR)
15 only recogmsed on the occasions where the contractual price of the engine 15 below the cost of manufacture and then only to the extent
of this deficit, as this amount 1s reliably measureable An equal amount of revenue 1s recogmised at the same point Where a long-term
aftermarket contract 1s hnked to the OE contract (see below), the contractual price of the engine (including amounts allocated from the
aftermarket contract) 1s above 1ts cost of manufacture, consequently no CAR1s recogmised

MEASURE OF PERFORMANCE ON LONG-TERM AFTERMARKET CONTRACTS

Alarge proportion of the Group's activities relate to long-term aftermarket contracts, in particular TotalCare and similar arrangements
n the Aerospace segment Under these contracts, the Group’s primary obhigation 1s to maintain customers’ equipment in an operational
condhition and achieves this by undertaking vanous activities, such as engine moritering, me mantenance and repair and overhaul, over
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the period of the contract In general, the directors consider that the stage of performance of the contract should be by reference to the
obhgation to maintain an operational fleet and that this is best measured by the operation of the fleet Accordingly, stage of performance
1s measured by reference to flying hours of each fleet under contract

LINKAGE OF ORIGINAL AND LONG-TERM AFTERMARKET CONTRACTS

Where the key terms of a long-term aftermarket contract are substantwvely agreed {eg 1n a term sheet) at the same time as an OE contract
with the operator, the directors consider these to be hinked for accounting purposes and they are treated as a single contract, as this best
reflects the overall commeraial effect Where the OE contract 1s not with the operator, eg where vt 1s with an OE manufacturer or alessor,
the contracts are not linked as they were not negotiated on a urified basis

RISK AND REVENUE SHARING ARRANGEMENTS (RRSAs)

RRSAs with key supphers (workshare partners) are a feature of our Civil aerospace business Under these contractual arrangements the
key commercial objectives are that (1) during the developrnent phase the workshare partner shares im the risks of developing an engine
by performing 1ts own development work, providing development parts and paying a non-refundable cash entry fee, and (n) during the
production phase 1t supphes components in return for a share of the programme revenues as a 'life of type’ supplier {ie as long as the
engine remains 1n service} The share of development cosis borne by the workshare partner and of the revenues it receives reflect the
partner’s proportionate cost of providing 1ts production parts compared to the overall manufacturing cost of the engine The share s
based on a jointly agreed forecast at the commencement of the arrangement

These arrangements are complex and have features that could be indicatve of a collaboration agreement, including sharing of nsk and
cost n a development programme, a long-term supply agreement, sharing of intellectual property, or a combination of these In summary,
and as described below, the directors’ view 15 that the development and preduction phases of the contract should be considered separately
m accounting for the RRSA, which results in the entry fee being matched agamst the non-recurring costs mcurred by the Group

Having considered the features above, the directors considered that there s no directly apphcable IFRS to determine an accounting pohcy
for the recognition of entry fees of this nature in the income statement Consequently, in developing an accounting treatment for such
entry fees that best reflects the commercial objectives of the contractual arrangement, the directors have analysed these features in the
context of relevant accounting pronouncements iIncluding those of other standard setters where these do not conflict with IFRS) and have
weighed the importance of each feature in faithfully representing the overall commercial effect The most important considerations that
need to be batanced are the transfer of development risk, the workshare partner recewing hitle standalone value from the payment of the
entry fee, and the overall effect being collaboration between the parties which falls short of being a joint venture as the Group controls the
programme Alsoimportantin the analysis 1s the fact that, whilst the Group and the workshare partner share risks and rewards through
the Iife of the contract, these risks and rewards are very different during the development and product:on phases

In this context, the entry fee might be considered to represent an amount paid as an equahsation of development costs, a payment to
secure a long-term supply arrangement, a purchase of intellectual property, or some combination thereof The accounting under these
different scenanos could include recogmtion of the entry fee to match the associated costs in the income statement, being spread over
the hfe of the programme as a reduction 1in the cost of supply during production, or bemg spread over the time peniod of the access to the
mtellectual property by the workshare partner

The directors consider that the most important features of the arrangement are the risk sharing and that the entry fee representsa
contribution to the development costs that the Group incurs m excess of its proportionate programme share The key judgements taken

m reaching this view are the entry fee 1s determmed by the parties on that basis and the contract specifies that, in the event thata
dervative engine 15 to be developed, additional entry fees will also be calculated on this basis, the workshare partners describe the entry
fee i this way, although the workshare partner recerves hittle stand-alone value from paying the entry fee, the entry fee together with 1its
own development activities represent 1ts aggregate investment 1n the collaboration, the amount of the entry fee does not include any
amount 1n excess of that necessary to equalise forecast development costs, the Group 1s not ‘on nisk’ for the full development costs it incurs
but for that amount less the entry fees recewed, and, as far as can be determined, this appears to be common industry accounting for
arrangements of this type, under both Adopted IFRS and US accounting standards {which the directors do not beheve conflicts with IFRS

1N this regard)

The resulting accounting policy {described on page 62) represents the commercial effect of the contractual arrangements n that the
Group recognises only those development casts to which it 1s exposed {and thus reflects the sigmificant transfer of development nisk to
the workshare partner) and the costs of supply of parts during the production phase 1s measured at the workshare partner’s share of
programme revenues (which we consider to be a commercaial fair value} The directors do not consider that accounting which would result
in entry fees only being recognised in the production phase would appropriately reflect the sharing of development risk Accordingly, the
directors believe that the policy adopted best reflects the commeraial objectives of the arrangements, the nature of the relationship with
the workshare partner and 1s in accordance with Adopted IFRS

As described in the 2013 Annual Report, an alternative view 1s that the RRSA contract cannot be divided nto separate development and
preduction phases, as the fees and development components received by the Group during the development phase are exchanged for the
obhgation to pay the suppher a predetermined share of any sales recerpts during the praduction phase On this basis the entry fees
receved would be deferred in their entirety and recogmsed over the period of production The size of the difference between the two
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approaches 1s monitored and 1s not currently expected to become matenal in the foreseeable future The impact of the different
approaches on profit before tax and net assets, which is not considered to be matenal, 1s as follows

2014 2013
Reported Underlymng profit Reported profit  Underlying profit
profit before tax before tax Net assets before tax before tax Net assets
£m £m £m £m im £m
Adopted policy 146 1,617 6,831 1960 1,760 8,134
fference (30p (30) (402} (37} (37) (383)
Alternative pohcy 116 1,587 6,429 1,923 1,723 7,751

! |fthe alternative policy were adopted the difference would be included in profit before financing which would change from £1 398 as reported to £1 368m
? The 2013 adjustment includes a consequential adjustment to transactions with joint ventures which was not reflected in the 2013 Annual Repart

INTERNALLY GENERATED DEVELOPMENT COSTS

IAS 38 requites that internally generated development costs should only be recogrised if strict critena are met, in particular relating to
technical feasibility and generation of future economic benefits The directors consider that, due to the complex nature of new equipment
programmes, these critena are not met until relatiely late 1n the programme — Civil aerospace programmes represent around half of
development costs recognised, for these, the critena are generally satisfied around the time of the imtial engine certification

CUSTOMER FINANCING CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has contingent habihties in respect of financing support provided to customers In order to assess whether a provision should
be recogmsed, judgement as to the hkelhhood of these crystallising i1s required This judgement 1s based on an assessment on the
knowledge of the customers’ fleet plans, the underlying value of the security provided and, where approprate, the customers’
creditworthiness

KEY SCURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In applying the accounting policies, estimates are made in many areas, the actual outcorne may differ from that calculated The key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant nisk of causing matenal adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and habilities within the next financial year are set out below The estimation of the relevant assets and habihities
nvalves the combination of a number of assumptions Sensitivities are disclosed 1n the relevant notes where this 1s appropriate and
prachicable

FORECASTS AND DISCOUNT RATES
The carrying values of a number of items on the balance sheet are dependent on the estimates of future cash flows arising from the
Group’s operations, in particular

- The assessment of whether the goodwill and other intangible assets (carrying value at 31 December 2014 £1,658 million, 31 December
2013 £1,864 rmilhion) ansing on the consohdation of RRPS 1s impaired 15 dependent of the present value of the future cash flows expected
to be generated by the business

- The assessment as to whether there are any indications of impairment of development, participation, certification and contractual
aftermarket rights recognised as intangible assets {carrying values at 31 December 2014 £2,533 rmlhon, 31 December 2013 £2,499
million) is dependent on estimates of cash flows generated by the relevant assets and the discount rate used to calculate a present value
These estimates include the performance of long-term contractual arrangements as described below, as well as estimates for future
market share, pricing and umit cost for uncontracted business The risk of impairment 1s generally higher for newer programmes and, for
customer speaficintangible assets (CARs), for launch customers

ASSESSMENT OF LONG-TERM CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

The Group has long-term centracts that fall into different accounting periods and which can extend over sigmficant peniods — the most
sigmficant of these are long-term service arrangements in the Civil aerospace business The estimated revenues and costs are inherently
mmprecise and significant estimates are required to assess engine flying hours, time on wing and other operating parameters, the pattern
of future maintenance actwity and the costs to be incurred, and life cycle cost improvements over the term of the contracts The estimates
take account of the inherent uncertainties and the risk of non-recovery of any resulting contract balances

POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group's defined benefit pension schemes and similar arrangements are assessed annually in accordance with IAS 19 The accounting
valuation, which 1s based on assumptions deterrmined with independent actuarial advice, resulted 1n a net surplus of £555 mithon before
deferred taxation being recognised on the balance sheet at 31 Decernber 2014 (31 December 2013 net defiait £793 mulhon) The size of the
net surplus/deficit 1s sensitive to the market value of the assets held by the schemes and to actuanal assumptions, which include price
mflation, pension and salary increases, the discount rate used 1n assessing actuarial habilities, mortahty and other demographic
assumptions and the levels of contributions Further details are included 1n note 18
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PROVISIONS

As described in the accounting policy on page 65, the Group measures provisions {carrying value at 31 December 2014 £807 milhon,
31 December 2013 £733 million) at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obhgation at the balance sheet
date These estimates take account of information available and different possible cutcomes

TAXATION

The tax payable on profitsis determined based on tax laws and requlations that apply in each of the numerous junsdictions in which the
Group operates Whaere the precise impact of these laws and requlations 15 unclear then reasonable estimates may be used to determine
the tax charge included in the financial statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Group's significant accounting pohcies are set out below These accounting pohicies have been apphed consistently to all penods
presented in these consolidated financial statements and by all Group entities

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The Group consolidated financial statements include the finanoial statements of the Company andits subsidiary undertakings together
with the Group's share of the results of joint arrangements and associates made up to 31 December In Ime with comrmon practice m
Germany, a small number of immatenial subsidiaries of Rolls-Royce Power Systems are not consohdated and are carried at cost in other
mvestments If such subsichanes becorme matenal, they are consohdated The difference between the net assets recogmised and the
mvestment cost elimmated s recogmised in other aperating income

Asubsidiary1s an entity controlled by the Company Control exists when the Company has power over an entity, exposure to variable
returns from its involvement with an entity and the abihity to use its power over an entity so as to affect the Company's returns

Ajoint arrangement 1s an entity in which the Group holds a tong-term interest and which 1s jointly controlled by the Group and one
or more other venturers under a contractual arrangement Joint arrangements may be either joint ventures or joint operations, all
the Group's join{ arrangements have been classified as joint ventures An associate 1s an entity, being neither a subsidiary nor a joint
arrangement, in which the Group holds a long-term mterest and where the Group has a sigmficant influence The results of jomt
ventures and associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting

Any subsidhary undertakings, joint ventures or associates sold or acquired during the year are included up to, or from, the dates of change
of control Transactions with non-controlling mierests are recorded directly in equity

All mtra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consohdation Adjustments are made to ehminate the
profit or loss ansing on transactions with jeint ventures and associates to the extent of the Group's interest in the entity

REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenues comprise sales to outside customers after discounts, excluding value added taxes

Sales of products (both original equipment and spare parts) are recognised when the sigmificant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods are transferred to the customer, the sales price agreed and the receipt of payment can be assured — this 1s generally on delvery On
occasion, the Group may participate 1n the financing of OF, most commonly by the provision of guarantees as described in note 17 In such

circumstances, the contigent obligations arising under these arrangements are taken into accountn assessing when the sigmficant risks

and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customer As described on page 58, a sale of OF at a contractual price below 1ts
cost of manufacture 1s considered to give rise to revenue to the extent that an intangible asset, (contractual aftermarket right), is
recogmsed at the same time

Sales of services are recogmised by reference to the stage of completion based on services performed to date As described on page 58, the
assessment of the stage of completion 1s dependent on the nature of the contract, but will generally be based on flying hours or
equivalent for long-term aftermarket arrangements where the service 1s provided on a continuous basis, costs incurred to the extent
these relate to services performed up to the reporting date, or achievement of contractual milestones where relevant

As described on page 59, sales of products and services are treated as though they are a single contract where these components have
been negotiated as a single commercial package and are so closely interrelated that they do not operate independently of each other and
are considered to form a single transaction with an overall profit margin The total revenue 1s allocated between the two components
such that the total agreed discount to list prices 1s allocated to revenue for each of the two components pro rata, based on hist prices The
revenue 1s then recogmised for each component on this basis as the products are delwvered and services provided, as described above
Where the contractual price of the OE component 15 below the revenue allocated from the combined arrangement, this will give nise to
an asset included i ‘amounts recoverable on contracts’ This asset reduces as services are provided, increases as costs are incurred, and
reduces to zero by the end of the contract Where the balance 15 a hability, 1t 1s recogmised in ‘accruals and deferred income’

Provided that the outcome of construction contracts can be assessed with reasonable certainty, the revenues and costs on such contracts
are recogmsed based on stage of completion and the overall contract profitabiity Full provision s made for any estimated losses to
completion of contracts, having regard to the overall substance of the arrangements
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Progress payments received, when greater than recorded revenue, are deducted from the value of work 1n progress except to the extent
that payments on account exceed the value of work in progress on any contract where the excess 15 included n accruals and deferred
income within trade and other payables The amount by which recorded revenue of long-term contracts 15 1n excess of payments on
account 1s classified as amounts recoverable on contracts and 1s separately disclosed within trade and other recewvables

TOTALCARE ARRANGEMENTS

As described above, these are accounted for on a stage of completion basis, with the stage of completion based on the proportion of flying
hours completed compared to the total estimated under the contract In making the assessment of future revenues, costs and the level of
profit recogrised the Group takes account of {1) the forecast ufilisation of the engines by the operator, (n} the forecast costs to maintain the
engines in accordance wrth the contractual requirements — the principal variables being the time between shop visits and the cost of each
shop visit, and (1) the recoverabnhty of any contract asset ansing The Group benchmarks the forecast costs against previous programmes,
recogmsing that the rehabilty of the forecasts will improve as operational expenence of the engine increases To the extent that actual
costs differ from forecast costs or that forecast costs change, the cumulative impact 1s recognised 1 the period An allowance1s made
agamnst contract assets anising, based on both the customer’s creditworthiness and an assessment of the importance of the particular
engine fleet to the customer Again, changes in this allowance are recogmsed in the period

RISK AND REVENUE SHARING ARRANGEMENTS (RRSAs)

As described on page 59, the Group enters mnto arrangements with certain warkshare partners under which these suppliers (1) contrbute
to the forecast costs of developing an engime by performing thewr own development work, providing development parts and paying a
non-refundable cash entry fee, and (1) supply components for the production phase for which they recewe cansideration, whichis an
agreed proportion of the total programme revenues Both the suppliers’ contnbutions to the forecast non-recurring development costs
and ther consideration are determined by reference to ther proportionate forecast scopes of supply relative to that of the engine overall
Once the forecast costs and the scopes of supply have been agreed at the inception of the contract, each party1s then accountable for

1ts own incurred costs No accounting entries are recorded when the supphers undertake development work or when development
components are supplied Cash sums recewved are recognised m the income statement, as a reduction in research and development

costs incurred, to match the expensing of the Group's related costs —where the cash sums are received in advance of the related costs
being expensed or where the related costs are capitahsed as intangible assets, the recogrition of the cash received s deferred (in accruals
and deferred 1ncome) to match the recogmition of the related expense or the amortisation of the related intangible asset respectively

The payments to suppliers of their shares of the programme revenues for their production components are charged to cost of sales as
programme revenues arise

The Group has arrangements with partners who do not undertake development work or supply parts Such arrangements are considered to
be financial mstruments as defined by IAS 32 Financial instruments Presentation and are accounted for using the amortised cost method

GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT
Where a government or siimlar body has previously mvested in a development programme, the Group treats payments to that body as
royalty payments, which are matched to related sales

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recogmsed n the income statement so as to match them with the related expenses that they are intended to
compensate Where grants are received 1in advance of the related expenses, they are included in the balance sheet as deferred mcome
Non-monetary grants are recogmsed at fair value

INTEREST
Interest recevable/payable 1s credited/charged to the income statement usimg the effective interest method Where borrowing costs are
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a quahfying asset, such costs are capitalised as part of the specific asset

TAXATION
The tax charge/credit on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax

- Current tax1s the expected tax payable for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable n respect of previous years

- Deferred tax s provided using the balance sheet habihty method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of the assets and habihities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes and is calculated using the
enacted or substantively enacted rates that are expected to apply when the asset or habihty 1s settled

Tax1s charged or credited in the income statement or other comprehensive income (OCl) as appropriate, except when it relates to items
credited or charged directly to equity in which case the tax 1s also dealt with in equuty

Deferred tax habihties are recogmised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments m substdianes and joint ventures, except
where the Group 1s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future Deferred tax 1s not recognised on taxable temporary differences arising on the ymtial recogmtion of goodwill or
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for temporary differences anising from the imtial recogmtion of assets and iabilities in a transaction that 1s not a business combination
and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit

Deferred tax assets are recogmised only to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available agamst which the
assets can be utihsed

Accruals for tax contingencies require management to make judgements and estimates of exposures in relation to tax audit issues Tax
benefits are not recogmsed unless the tax posibions will probably be sustained Once considered to be probable, management reviews
each matenal tax benefit to assess whether a provision should be taken against full recognition of that benefit on the basis of potential
settlement through negotiation and/or htigation All provisions are included in current habilities Any habihty relating to interest on tax
habihibes 15 provided for in the tax charge

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Transactions denominated in currencies other than the funchional currency of the transacting Group undertaking are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rates ruling on the date of the transaction Monetary assets and habihities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the relevant funchional currency at the rate ruhing at the yearend Exchange differences arising on foreign
exchange transactions and the retranslation of assets and hamhties into functional currencies at the rate ruling at the year-end are taken
nto account in determiming profit before taxation

The trading results of Group undertakings are translated into sterhng at the average exchange rates for the year The assets and habilities
of overseas undertakings, including goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on acquisition, are translated at the exchange rates ruling
at the year end Exchange adjustments arising from the retranslation of the opening net investments, and from the translation of the
profits or losses at average rates, are recogmised in OCI The cumulative amount of exchange adjustments were, on transition to IFRS in
2004, deemed o be nil

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
|AS 39 Fmancial Instruments Recogmition and Measurement requires the classification of financial instruments into separate categones for
which the accounting requirement is different The Group has classified 1ts financiat instruments as follows

- short-term investments are generally classified as available for sale,

« short-term deposits (principally comprising funds held with banks and other finanoal institutions), trade receivables and short-term
mvestments not designated as available for sale are classified as loans and receivables,

- borrowings, trade payables and financial RRSAs are classified as other habihities, and

- derwatives, compnising foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and commodity swaps are classified as fair value through profit
orloss

Financial instruments are recognised at the contract date and imihally measured at fair value Their subsequent measurement depends
on therr classification

- Available for sale assets are held at fair value Changes in fair value ansing from changes in exchange rates are included in the mcome
statement All other changes in fair value are taken to equity On disposal, the accumulated changes m value recorded in equuty are
included in the gain or loss recorded in the income statement

Loans and receivables and other habihities are held at amortised cost and not revalued {except for changes in exchange rates and
forecast contractual cash flows, which are included 1n the income statement) unless they are mncluded 1n a fair value hedge accounting
relationship Where such a hedging relationship exists, the instruments are revalued 1n respect of the risk being hedged, with the change
m value included in the \ncome statement

Fair value through profit or loss items are held at fair value Changes m fair value are mcluded in the income statement unless the
mstrument s included in a cash flow hedge If the instruments are included 1n an effective cash flow hedging relationship, changes in
value are taken to equity When the hedged forecast transaction occurs, amounts previously recorded m equity are recognised in the
mcome statement

Financial instruments are derecogmised on expiry or when all contractual nghts and obhgations are transferred

HEDGE ACCOUNTING
The Group does not generally apply hedge accounting m respect of forward foreign exchange contracts or comrodity swaps held to
manage the cash flow exposures of forecast transactions denomimated in foreign currencies or in commaodities respectively

The Group apphes hedge accounting in respect of transactions entered into to manage the fair value and cash flow exposures of its
borrowings Forward foreign exchange contracts are held to manage the fair value exposures of borrowings denominated in foreign
currencies and are designated as fair value hedges Interest rate swaps are held to rnanage the interest rate exposures and are designated
as fair value or cash flow hedges of fixed and floating rate borrowings respectively

Changes in the fair values of denvatives designated as fair value hedges and changes 1n fair value of the related hedged item are
recogmsed directly in the income statement
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Changes in the fair values of derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges and are effective are recogmised directly in equity Any
meffectiveness in the hedging relationships 1s included in the income statement The amounts deferred in equity are recognised in the
mcome statement to match the recogmtion of the hedged 1tern

Hedge accounting 15 discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated, exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting At that time, for cash flow hedges and if the forecast transacthion remains probable, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging
instrument recogmsed 1n equity s retained in equity unt the forecast transaction occurs Ifa hedged transaction 1s no longer expected to
accur, the net cumulative gan or loss previously recognised in equity 1s transferred to the mcome statement

The portion of a gain or loss on an mstrument used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation that 1s determined to be an effective
hedge 15 recognised directly 1n equity The ineffective portion is recogmised immediately in the income statement Gans and losses
accumulated in the translation reserve will be recycled to profit when the foreign operation is sold

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

On the acquisition of a business, fair values are attributed to the identifiable assets and habihities and contingent habilities unless the faw value
cannot be measured reliably, in which case the value 1s subsumed into goodwill Where fair values of acquired contingent habihties cannot be
measured rehiably, the assumed contingent hability 1s not recogmsed but 1s disclosed in the same manner as other contingent habilities

Goodwll recogmsed represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration over the fair value to the Group of the net of
the identifiable assets acquired and the habilities assumed On transibon to IFRS on 1 January 2004, business combinations were not
retrospectively adjusted to comply with Adopted IFRS and goodwill was recogmised based on the carrying value under the previous
accounting pohcies Goodwill in respect of the acquisition of a subsichary 1s recogmsed as an intangible asset Goodwll ansing on the
acquisition of joint ventures and associates 1s included 1n the carrying value of the investment

CERTIFICATION COSTS AND PARTICIPATION FEES

Costs incurred i respect of meeting regulatory certification requirements for new avil aero-engine/aircraft combinations including
payments made to arrframe manufacturers for this and participation fees are carried forward in intangible assets to the extent that they
can be recovered out of future sales and are charged to the income statement over the programme hife, up to a maximum of 15 years from
the entry into service of the product

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
In accordance with |AS 38 intangrble Assets, expenditure incurred on research and development 1s distinguished as relatingeither to a
research phase or to a development phase

All research phase expenditure 1s charged to the income statement Development expenditure 1s capitalised as an mternally generated
intangible asset only 1f 1t meets strict critena, relatimg in particular to technical feasibihty and generation of future econormic benefits As
described on page 60, the Group considers that 1t 1s not possible to distinguish reliably between research and development activities until
relatively late 1in the programme

Expenditure capitalised 1s amortised over its useful economic ife, up to a maximum of 15 years from the entry into service of the product

CONTRACTUAL AFTERMARKET RIGHTS

As described under key judgements on page 58, the Group may sell OE to customers at a price below its cost, on the basis that it also
recelves valuable aftermarket rights Such a sale s considered to give rise to an intangible asset which 1s recogrised, 1n accordance with 1AS
38, at the same tume as the revenue at an amount equal to the cash deficit and 1s amortised on a straight-line basis over the period that
highly probable aftermarket sales are expected to be earned

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS

The fair value of customer relationships recagnised as a result of a business combination relate to the acquired company's estabhished
relationships with 1ts existing customers that result in repeat purchases and customer loyalty Amortisation occurs on a straight-hne basis
over 1ts useful econormic ife, up to a maximum of 15 years

SOFTWARE
The cost of acquiring software that 1s not specific to an item of property, plant and equipment s classified as an intangible asset and
amortised over its useful economic hfe, up to a maximum of five years

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment in value
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Depreciation 1s provided on a straight-hne basis to write off the cost, less the estimated residual value, of property, plant and equpment
over therr estimated useful ives No depreciation is provided on assets in the course of construction Estimated useful hives are as follows

1 land and buildings, as advised by the Group's professional advisers
a) freehold buildings — five to 45 years (average 25 years)
b} leasehold buildings — lower of adviser’s estimates or period of lease
¢) nodepreaiation 1s provided on freehold land

i) plant and equipment —five to 25 years {average 13 years)

) arrcraft and engines - five to 20 years (average 14 years)

OPERATING LEASES

Payments made and rentals received under operating lease arrangements are charged/credited to the income statement on a straight-
line basis

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Imparrment of non-current assets 1s considered in accordance with 1AS 36 Impairment of Assets Where the asset does not generate cash
flows that are ,ndependent of other assets, impairment s considered for the cash-generating umit to which the asset belongs Goodwill
and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually Other mtangible assets, property. plant and equipment
and investments are assessed for any indications of impairment annually 1f any indication of imparment 1s identified, an ympairment test
15 performed to estimate the recoverable amount

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be below the carrying value, the carrying value 1s reduced to
the recoverable amount and the impairment loss recognised as an expense The recoverable amount 1s the ligher of value in use or fair
value less costs to sell, if this s readily avarlable The value in use 1s the present value of future cash flows using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset

INVENTORIES

Inventores and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net reahsable value on a first-in, first-out basis Cost comprises direct
matenals and, where apphcable, direct labour costs and those overheads, including depreciation of property, plant and equipment, that
have been incurred 1n bringimg the inventanes to their present location and condition Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling prices less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents ncludes cash at bank and 1n hand, investments in money-market funds and short-term deposits with a
maturity of three months or less on inception The Group considers overdrafts (repayable on demand) to be an mtegral part of its
cash management actiities and these are included in cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the cash flow statement

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obhgation as a result of a past event, and it 1s probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the obhgation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the effect 1s material

POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Pensions and sirmlar benefits (principally healthcare) are accounted for under 1AS 19 Employee Benefits

For defined benefit plans, obligations are measured at discounted present value, using a discount rate derived from lmgh quahty corporate
bonds denormnated in the currency of the plan, whilst plan assets are recorded at fair value Surpluses in schemes are recognised as assets
only if they represent econormic benefits avariable to the Group in the future A hability 1s recogrised to the extent that the mimmum
funding requirements in respect of past service will give rise to an unrecognisable surplus

The service and financing costs of such plans are recogrised separately in the income statement

- current service costs are spread systematically over the hives of employees,
- past-service costs are recogmsed immedhately, and
- financing costs are recogrised in the periods in which they anise

Actuanal gans and losses and movements in unrecagmsed surpluses and mimmum funding habilities are recogmsed immediately i OC
Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group provides share-based payment arrangements to certain employees These are principally equity-settled arrangements and are
measured at fanr value (excluding the effect of non-market based vesting conditions) at the date of grant The fair value1s expensed on a
straight-ine basis over the vesting period The amount recogmised as an expense 1s adjusted to reflect the actual number of shares or
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options that will vest, except where additional shares vest as a result of the Total Shareholder Return (TSR) performance caondition in the
Performance Share Plan (PSP)

Cash-settled share options (grants 1n the International ShareSave plan} are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date The Group
recogmses a habihty at the balance sheet date based on these fair values, taking into account the estimated number of options that will
actually vest and the relative completion of the vesting period Changes in the value of this habihity are recognised in the Income statement
for the year

See note 21 for a further description of the share-based payment plans

SALES FINANCING SUPPORT

In connection with the sale ofits products, the Group will, on occasion, provide finanaing support for its customers These arrangements
fall mto two categories credit-based guarantees and asset-value quarantees In accordance with the requirements of IAS 39 and IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts, crecit-based guarantees are treated as msurance contracts The Group considers asset-value guarantees to be
non-financial habilities and accordingly these are also treated as insurance contracts As described on page [+], the directors consider the
hkelihood of crystallisation 1n assessing whether provision 1s required for any contingent habihties

The Group's contingent habilities relating to financing arrangements are spread over many years and relate to a number of customers
and a broad product portfolio, and are reported on a discounted basis

REVISIONS TO ADOPTED IFRS IN 2014

With effect from 1 lanuary 2014, the Group has adopted IFRS 10 Consohdated Financial statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and IFRS 12
Drsclosure of Interests in Other Entities The principal potential effect was that certain entities previously classified as joint ventures might
be classified as joint operations, requiring the Group’s share of the individual assets and habilities of these entities to be mcluded in the
financial statements rather than the equity accounting method previously apphed The Group has reviewed its matenal joint ventures
and has concluded that nene are to be classified as joint operations under the requirements of IFRS 11 Disclosures required by IFRS 12

are ncluded in note 10

REVISIONS TO IFRS NOT APPLICABLE IN 2014
Standards and interpretations 1ssued by the IASB are only apphcable if endorsed by the EU

Once endorsed, IFRS 9 Financial Instruments will simphfy the classification of fimancial assets for measurement purposes, but s not
anticipated to have a sigmificant impact on the financial statements

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers {effective for the year ending 31 December 2017, not yet endorsed by the EU) provides a
single, principles-based five-step model to be applied to all sales contracts, based on the transfer of control of goods and services to
customers It replaces the separate models for goods, services and canstruction contracts currently included i 1AS 11 Construction
Contracts and I1AS 18 Revenue Civen the nature of the Group's long-term contracts, it 1s hkely that the adoption of IFRS 15 wiil require
sigmficant judgement

Based on animtial assessment, IFRS 15 may have a sigmficant impact on the timing of recogmtion of revenue on individual long-term
contracts, although this impact 1s hikely to be sigmficantly reduced at a Group level when all lorg-term contracts (with different start and
end dates} are combined The Group will continue to assess the impact during 2015

The Group does not consider that any other standards, amendments or interpretations issued by the IASB, but not yet apphcable, will have
a sigmficant impact on the finanoial statements
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2 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

The analysis by Dwision (business segment) 1s presented in accordance with IFRS 8 Operating segments, on the basis of those segments
whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Board (the Chief Operating Decision Maker as defined by IFRS 8), as follows

AEROSPACE DIVISION

Cwvil —development, manufacture, marketing and sales of commercial aero engines and aftermarket services

Defence - development, manufacture, marketing and sales of nilitary aero engines and aftermarket services

LAND & SEA DIVISION

Power Systemns —development, manufacture, marketing and sales of diesel engimes and power systems

Marine —development, manufacture, marketing and sales of marine-power propulsion systems and aftermarket services

Nuclear & Energy  —development, manufacture, marketing and sales of nuclear systems for civil power generation and naval propulsion
systems (Nuclear) and power systems for the offshore 011 & gas mdustry and electrical power generation (Energy}
and aftermarket services The Energy business was sold on 1 December 2014 - see note 24

The operating results reviewed by the Board are prepared on an underlying basis, which the Board consider reflects better the economic
substance of the Group's trading during the year Additiona! disclosure of the two segments is also provided The principles adopted to
deterrmine underlying results are

Underlying revenues — Where revenues are denormnated i a currency other than the functional currency of the Group undertaking,
these reflect the achieved exchange rates ansing on settled derivative contracts

Underlying profit before financing — Where transactions are denomimated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Group
undertaking, this reflects the transactions at the achieved exchange rates on settled dervative contracts In addition, adjustments have
been made to exclude one-off past-service credits on post-retirement schemes, exceptionalrestructuring costs and the effect of
acquisition accounting

Underlying proht before taxation — In addition to those adjustments m underlying profit before financing

- inctudes amounts reahsed from settled dervative contracts and revaluation of relevant assets and habihties to exchange rates forecast
to be achieved from future settlement of dervative contracts, and

- excludes unreahsed amounts ansing from revaluations required by IAS 39 Frnancial Instruments Recognition and Measurement, changes
n value of financial RRSA contracts arising from changes in forecast payments and the net impact of financing costs related to post-
retirement scheme benefits

Taxation — the tax effect of the adjustments above are excluded from the underlying tax charge Inaddition, changes in the amount of
recoverable advance corporation tax recogmised that anse from the above adjustments, are also excluded

This analysis also includes a reconcihation of the underlying results to those reported in the consolidated income statement
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2 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS CONTINUED

Aerospace Land & Sea Total
Power Nuclear & Intra- Inter reportable
Civil Defence Total Systems Marine Energy  segment Total segment segments
Year ended 31 December 2014 £m £m £Em £m £m £m £Em £€m £m £m
Underlying revenue from sale of original
equipment 3,265 816 4,081 1,893 1,070 556 (78) 3,441 - 7,522
Undertlying revenue from aftermarket services 3,572 1,253 4,825 827 639 852 (77) 2,241 - 7,066
Total underlying revenue 6,837 2,069 8,906 2,720 1,709 1,408 {155) 5,682 - 14,588
Underlying operating profit excluding share of
results of joint ventures and associates 849 350 1,199 256 138 82 (13} 423 - 1,622
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 93 16 109 (3) - 3 - - - 109
Underlying profit before financing and taxation 942 366 1,308 253 138 45 (13) 423 - 1,731
Segment assets 10,976 1,683 12,659 3,607 1,820 1,124 (22) 6,529 {1,269} 17,919
Investments in jomt ventures and assocates 507 13 520 7 5 7 - 19 - 539
Segment habilities (7,885) (1,891} (9,776) (1,118) (1,196) {993) - (3,307) (1,269) (11,814}
Net assets/(habihtres) 3,598 {195) 3,403 2,496 629 138 (22) 3,241 - 6,644
Investment m intangible assets, property plant
and equipment and jomt ventures and associates 836 78 914 144 36 62 - 242 - 1,156
Depreciation amortisation and impairment 381 49 430 221 38 53 - 313 - 742
Year ended 31 December 2013’
Underlying revenue from sale of original
equipment 3,035 1,385 4,420 2,004 1,236 617 (72) 3,785 - 8,205
Underlying revenue from aftermarket services 3,620 1,206 4,826 827 801 921 {75) 2,474 - 7,300
Total underlying revenue 6,655 2,591 9,246 2,831 2,037 1538 (147) 6,259 - 15505
Underlying operating profit excluding share of
results of joint ventures and associates 708 424 1,132 286 233 63 2 594 - 1,726
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 136 14 150 (2 - 11 - 9 - 159
Underlymng profit before fimancing and taxation 844 438 1,282 294 233 74 2 603 - 1,885
Segment assets 10,011 1,606 11,617 3,935 1,837 1,727 {10) 7489 {734) 18,372
Investments in Jomt ventures and associates 495 17 512 29 5 55 - 89 - 601
Segment habilities (4,822) (1092} (5914) (4,864) {530} {646) - (6,040) 733 (11,221)
Net assets/(habilities) 5.684 531 6,215 (soo) 1,312 1,136 {10} 1,538 1) 7752
Imvestiment in intangible assets, property, plant
and equipment and joint ventures and associates 891 103 934 142 23 80 - 245 - 1,239
Depreciatwon and amortisation 349 53 402 272 63 63 - 398 - 800

! The spht between CE and aftermarket revenue for the year ended 31 December 2013 m Manine and Nuclear & Energy has been amended compared with that included on page 87 of
¥ ay g

the 2013 Annual Report
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2 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS CONTINUED
RECONCILIATION TO REPORTED RESULTS

Tota! reportable Underlying Total Underlymg  Discontinued
segments centralitems underlying  adjustments business Group
Year ended 31 December 2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue from sale of onginal equipment 7,522 - 7,522 61 (283) 7,300
Revenue from aftermarket services 7,066 - 7,066 (200) {430} 6,436
Total revenue 14,588 - 14,588 (139) {713} 13,736
Operating profit excluding share of results of joint ventures
and associates 1,622 {53)! 1,569 (274) 1 1,296
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 109 - 109 (13) (2} 24
Profit on transfer of jont ventures to subsidharnes - - - 2 - 2
Profit on disposal of businesses - - - 6 - 6
Profit before financing and taxahon 1,731 (53) 1,678 {279) (1) 1,398
Net financing (61) {61} {1,191) - (1,252)
Profit before taxation {114) 1,617 (1,470) (1) 146
Taxation (387) {387) 239 (3) {151)
Profit for the year from contimuing operations 1,226 (1,367) - {5)
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 4 - 138 142
profit for the year 1,230 {1,231) 138 137
Attnbutable to
Ordinary shareholders 1,241 (1,231} 138 148
Non-controlling imterests {11) - - {11)
Year ended 31 December 2013
Revenue from sale of onginal equipment 8,205 - 8,205 70 (328) 7,947
Revenue from aftermarket services 7300 - 7,300 (62} (543) 6 695
Tctal revenue 15,505 - 15,505 8 (871) 14642
Operating profit excluding share of results of joint ventures and
associates 1,726 {53)* 1,673 {297) (45) 1331
Share of results of Joint ventures and associates 159 - 159 1 (11) 149
Profit on transfer of joint ventures to subsidianes - ~ - 119 - 119
Profit on disposal of businesses - - - 216 - 216
Profit before financing and taxation 1,885 (53) 1,832 39 {56) 1,815
Net financing (72) {72) 220 (3) 145
Profit before taxation {125) 1,760 259 (59) 1,960
Taxation (434) (434) 54 3 (377)
Profit for the year from contimuing operations 1,270 313 - 1,583
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 56 - - 56
Profit for the year 1,326 313 - 1,639
Attributable to
Ordinary shareholders 1,225 402 — 1,627
Non-controlhing interests 101 (89) - 12
? {entral corporate costs
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
2014 2013
£m £m
Revenue 713 871
Profit before taxation 1 59
Tax on ordinary actwities 3 {3)
Profit far the year from ordinary activities 4 56
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations 136 -
Tax on profit on disposal of discontinued operations 2 -
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 142 S6
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (127) 51
Net cash outflow from investing activities {35) (51)
Net cash inflow from financing activities - -
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (162) -
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2 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS CONTINUED
UNDERLYING ADJUSTMENTS

2014 2013
Profit before Net Profit before Net
Revenue fimancing fmancing financing financing Taxation
£m im im £m £m £m

Underlying performance 14,588 1,678 (61) 1,832 (72) {434)
Revenue recogmsed at exchange rate
on date of transaction (139) - - - - -
Realised (gainsjon settled
denvative contracts? - (87} (5) {10) (5) -
Net unreahised fair value changes to
dervatwve contracts? - (15) (1,141) - 250 -
Effect of currency on contract accounting - 13 - {18) - -
Revaluation of trading assets and habihties — (11} {8) - — -
Exchange differences and other unrealised
changes m value - - (8) - 8 -
Effect of acquisition accounting? - (142) - (265) - -
Pensions discretionary increase - - (64) - -
Net post-retirerment scheme financing - - {29) - (26} -
Profit on reclassification of joint ventures
to subsidhanes - 2 - 119 - -
Profit on disposal of businesses - ] - 216 - -
Exceptional restructuring* - (39) - - - -
Cther* — (6) - 61 (7) -
Related tax effect - - - - - 54
Total underlying adjustments (139) {279) {1,191) a5 220 54
Discontinued operations {713) (1) - (56) (3) 3
Reported per consohdated mcome statermnent 13,736 1,398 {1,252) 1815 145 (377)

~

Realised gains on settled derwvative contracts include adjustments to reflect the gans inthe same penod as the related trading cash flows
Unreahsed fair value changes to dervative contracts (i} include those included an equity accounted joint ventures which are included in profit before financing and {n) exclude those

for which the related trading contracts have been cancelled when the fair value changes are recogmsed immediately 1n underlying profit

w e w

RECONCILIATION TO THE BALANCE SHEET

The adjustment ehminates charges recognised as a result of recogmsing assets in acquired businesses at far value
Restructuring 15 excluded from the underlying performance when 1t relates to the closure of a sigmificant business or a site
In 2013 otherincluded the exclusion of other operating income £63m and the revaluation of preference shares m RRPS AG which were acquired

2014 2013

£m £m
Reportable segment assets 17,919 18,372
Investments in joint ventures and associates 539 601
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term imvestrents 2,869 4,311
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings 80 47
Inceme tax assets 388 332
Postretirement scheme surpluses 1,740 248
Total assets 23,535 23,911
Reportable segrment habihties (11,814) {11,221}
Borrowings (2,261) (2,371
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings (22} (48)
Income tax habiibies (1,422) (1096)
Post-retirement scheme deficits (1,185) (1,041)
Total habilities {16,704} (15,777
Net assets 6,831 8134
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2 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS CONTINUED

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
The Group’s revenue by destination from continuing operations s shown below

2014 2013

£m £m

United Kingdom 1,599 1,677
Norway 322 520
Germany 734 972
Switzerland 670 868
Spamn 113 174
Italy 201 233
France 292 259
Russia 86 111
Rest of Europe 575 637
Urted States of Amenica 3,751 3910
Canada 472 474
South Amenica 407 302
Saudi Arabia 327 544
Rest of Middle East 418 339
Incdha 161 230
China 1,290 1,038
South Korea 485 452
lapan 272 235
Malaysia 280 235
Smgapore 396 544
Rest of Asia 493 596
Africa 115 87
Australasia 207 143
Gther 70 62
13,736 14,642

No single customer represented 10% or more of the Group’s revenue

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-current assets, excluding financial instruments, deferred tax assets and post-retirement benefit
surpluses, by the geographical area in which the assets are located, are as follows

£m im

Umted Kingdom 3,864 3,649
North America 827 872
Nordic countnes 724 823
Germany 2,493 2,739
Other 912 924
8,820 9,007

71




Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AND OTHER INCOME
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

2014 2013
fm £m
Expenditure in the year (818) (725)
Capitahsed as intangible assets 83 110
Amortisation of capitahsed costs (125) {130)
Net research and development cost (860} (745)
Entry fees received 51 126
Entry fees deferred in respect of charges in future years (38} (50)
Recogmtion of previously deferred entry fees 54 11
Net cost recogmsed n the income statement (793} (658)
Undertlying adjustments relating to effects of acquisition accounting and foreign exchange 63 59
Discontmued operations {25) (25)
Net underlying cost recogmised in the mcome statement (755) (624)
OTHER INCOME
In October 2011, Rolls-Royce and United Technologies Corp (UTC) announced their intention to form a new joint venture to develop an
engne to power future mid-size arrcraft (120-230 passenger arcraft) In September 2013, the parties agreed not to proceed with the
partnerstip Other operating income n 2013 mncludes £63 million as a result of this
4 NET FINANCING
2014 2013
Petr Per
consohdated consolidated
meome Underlying mcome Underlying
statement finanang* statement financing?
Note £m £m £m im
Financaing wncome
Interest recevable 17 17 15 15
Fair value gains on foreign currency contracts? 16 2 - 287 -
Financial RRSAs — foreign exchange differences
and other unrealised changes in value - - 8 -
Finance mcome on post-retirtement scheme surpluses 18 13 - 17 -
32 17 327 15
Financing costs
Interest payable (63} {63) (58} {(58)
Fair value losses on foreign currency contracts? 16 (1,127) - {3) -
Financial RRSAs — financing 16 {5) (5) 9) {9)
Financial RRSAs — foreign exchange differences
and other unreahsed changes in value 16 (8) - - -
Fair value losses on commodity derivatives? 16 (15) - (34) -
Finance cost on post-retirement scheme deficits 18 (42) - (43) -
Net foreign exchange losses (13) - (5) ~
Other financing charges (11) {10) (30) (20
{1,284) {78) (182) (87)
Net financing (1,252) {61) 145 (72)
Analysed as
Net interest payable {46) {46) (43) {43)
Net post-retirement scheme financing (29) - {26) -
Net other financing {1,177} {15) 214 {29)
Net financing (1,252) f61) 145 {72)
! See note 2
? Net (loss) / gan on fair value iterns through profit or loss 16 (1,140) - 250 -
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5 TAXATION
UK Overseas Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m £m Em
Current tax
Current tax charge for the year 8 7 240 301 248 308
Less double tax relief - (1) - - - (1)
8 6 240 301 248 307
Adjustments in respect of prior years 1 2 12 29 13 31
9 8 252 330 261 338
Deferred tax
Deferred tax (credit)/charge for the year (72) 212 77 (68) (149) 144
Adjustments i respect of prior years (14} (8} {11) (37} (25) (45)
Derecogmtion of advance corporation tax 64 - - - 64 -
Credit resulting from reduction in tax rates - {59) - (1) - (80)
(22) 145 (88) (106} {(110) 39
Recogmsed in the mcome statement (13} 153 164 224 151 377
OTHER TAX (CHARGES)/CREDITS
o Equity
ltems that will not Items that may
bereclassified be reclassified
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Current tax
Share-based payments —direct to equity 3 5
Deferred tax
Movement in post-retirement schemes (431) 10
Share-based payments — direct to equity {7) 8
Netnvestment hedge (2) 1
(431) 10 {2) 1 () 13
TAX RECONCILIATION ON CONTINUING OPERATIONS
2014 2013
im £m
Profit before taxation 146 1,560
Less share of results of Joint ventures and associates [note 10) (94) {149)
Profit before taxation excluding joint ventures and associates 52 1,811
Norminal tax charge at UK corporation tax rate 21 5% (2013 23 25%) 11 421
UK R&D credit (6) (13)
Rate differences 71 29
Profit on reclassification of joint ventures o subsidianes - (27}
Other permanent differences 22 12
Benefit to deferred tax from previcusly unrecognmised tax losses and temporary differences E))] ]
Tax losses 1 year not recognised in deferred tax 4 6
Adjustmentsn respect of prior years {12) {14)
Derecogmtion of advance corparation tax 64 -
Reduction i closing deferred taxes resulting from decrease i tax rate - (60)
151 377
Underlying items {note 2) 390 431
Non-undetlying items {239) (54)
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5 TAXATICN CONTINUED
TAX ON DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

2014 2013
£m £m
Tax [credit)/charge on profit/loss on ordimary activities {(3) 3
Tax credit on profit on disposal of discontinued operations (2) -
(s) 3
DEFERRED TAXATION ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
2014 2013
£m im
At 1 January (566) (242)
Amount credited/(charged) to imcome statement 120 (53}
Amount (charged)/credited to other comprehensive income (433) 11
Amount credited/(charged) to equity (7) 8
Acquisition of businesses (3) (282)
Exchange differences 30 (8)
At 31 December {859) (566)
Deferred tax assets 369 316
Deferred tax habilities {1,228) (882)
The analysis of the deferred tax pesition 1s as follows
At Recogmsed At
1January n Income Recogmsed Recogmised Dnsposal Exchange 31 December
2014 statement moC wequity  of businesses differences 2014
£m £m fm fm £m £m fm
Intangible assets {511} 41 - - - 15 (455)
Property, plant and equipment (210) 20 - - (6) 1 {195)
QOther temporary differences B0 23 (2) (10} (1) 97
Amounts recoverable on contracts (380) {146) - - - - (526)
Pensions and other post-retirement scheme benefits 153 (54) {431) — - 8 (324)
Foreign exchange and commodity financial
assets and habihities (92) 226 - - - 1 135
Losses 323 65 - 3 4 (2} 393
R&D expenditure credit 7 9 - - - - 16
Advance corporation tax 64 (64) - - - - -
(566) 120 {433) @ (3) 30 {859)
Included m  Taxation 110
Discontinued operations 10
At Recogmsed At
1lanuary inncome Recogmsed Recogmsed Acquisttion Exchange 31 December
2013 statement [li]e] ] inequity  of businesses differences 2013
£m £m £m fm £m fm £m
Intangible assets (232) 34 - - (311) (2) (511)
Property, plant and equipment (158) 17 — - (70) 1 (210)
Other temporary differences 12 g 1 3 60 (5} 80
Amounts recoverable on contracts (351) (29) - - — - (380)
Pensions and other post-retirement scheme benefits 110 - 10 - 36 (3} 153
Foreign exchange and commaodity fimancial
assets and habilities (56) {36) - - - - (92)
Losses 369 {55) - 5 3 1 323
R&D expendrture credit - 7 - - - - 7
Advance corparation tax 64 - - - - - 64
(242 (53} 11 8 (282) (8) (566)
Included m  Taxation (39)
Discontinued operations {14)
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5 TAXATION CONTINUED
UNRECOGNISED DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Fimancial Statements

2014 2013

£Em £m

Advance corporation {ax 182 118
Losses and other unrecogmised deferved tax assets 35 39
Deferred tax not recogmsed on unused tax losses and other 1tems on the basis that future economic benefit 1s uncertain 217 157

DEFERRED TAXATION ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The UK corporation tax rate reduced to 21% from 1 Apnl 2014 and will reduce further to 20% from 1 April 2015 As the reduction was
substantively enacted prior to year end, the closing deferred tax assets and habihties have been calculated at this rate

The deferred tax asset recogmised relating to advance corporation tax has reduced during the year due to a decrease in the net deferred
tax iabilities against which the asset can be offset The mamn reason for this is the unreahised fair value change on dernvative contracts

The temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, for which a deferred tax habtlrty
has not been recogmised, aggregate to £512 rmlhon (2013 £573 millien) No deferred tax habity has been recognised on the potential
withholding tax due on the remittance of undistributed profits as the Group s able to control the timing of such remittances and it s

prabable that consent will not be given n the foreseeable future

6 EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

2014 2013
Number Number

Average number of employees!
Umted Kingdom 24,500 24 800
Urited States of Amernica 7,900 8,500
Canada 1,500 1,600
Germany 10,500 10,500
Nordic countnes 4,000 4,100
Rest of world 5,700 5700
54,100 55,200
Cwil 23,900 23,400
Defence 7,000 7900
Aerospace Division 30,900 31,300
Power Systems 10,700 10,700
Marine 6,400 6900
Nuclear & Energy? 6,100 6,300
Land & Sea Dwvision 23,200 23900
Group 54,100 55,200
£m £m

Group employment costs?

Wages and salaries 2,646 2,843
Social security costs 362 374
Share-based payments (note 20) 21 79
Pensions and other post-retirement scheme benefits (note 18) 328 421
3,357 3717

! See page 34
? The dhsposal of the Energy business on 1 Decernber 2014 reduced employees by 2 000
? Remuneration of key management personnel 15 shown in note 23
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7 AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Fees payable to the Company's auditors and its associates were as follows

2014 2013
£m £m
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the Company's annual financial statements 18 15
Fees payable to the Company s auditors and its associates for the audit of the Company’s subsidianes pursuant to legislation 37 41
Total fees payable for audit setvices 55 56
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and its associates for other services
Audit related assurance services o8 05
Taxation compliance services 07 08
Taxation advisory setvices - 01
nternai audit services - 02
All other services o4 10
74 82
Fees payable in respect of the Group's pension schemes
Audit 02 02
Taxation comphance services - 01
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8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Financial Statements

Certviication
costs and Contractual
particaipation  Development aftermarket Customer
Goodwll fees  expenditure nights'  relationships Software Other Tota)
£m £m £fm im fm fm £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2013 1,111 740 1,028 499 45 385 142 3,950
Exchange differences {18} 3 5 - (3} () 17 3
Additions —~ 185 110 52 69 87 503
Acquisttions of businesses 773 - 508 - 433 - 286 2,000
Disposals {s) - (5} - - - - (10)
At1January 2014 1,861 928 1,646 551 475 453 532 6,446
Reclassifications? (8 - 4 - 11 19 (28) {2)
Exchange differences (112) (8) {43) - (17} {1) (28) (209)
Additions - 159 100 93 - 83 42 477
Acquisibons of businesses 1 - - - - = - 1
Disposal of business {67) - - {(35) - (11) - {113)
At 31 December 2014 1,675 1,079 1,707 609 469 543 518 6,600
Accumulated amortisation
Al 1)anuary 2013 9 225 323 295 12 144 41 1,049
Exchange differences (1} - @ - (8) - 5 {11)
Charge for the year® - 40 130 28 61 54 91 404
Imparrment 17 - 3 - 4 - - 24
Disposals 3] - (s) - - - - {7)
At 1January 2014 23 265 444 323 69 198 137 1,459
Reclassifications? {8) ~ 4 - (11} S 6 (4)
Exchange differences - - (5) - (4) - (6) (19}
Charge for the year® - 46 125 37 42 63 53 366
Imparment 1 - - - - - - 1
Disposal of busimess - - - - - N - (7}
At 31 December 2014 16 311 564 360 96 259 190 1,796
Net book value
At 31 December 2014 1,659 768 1,143 249 373 284 328 4,804
At 31 December 2013 1,838 663 1,202 228 406 255 395 4,987
At1January 2013 1102 515 705 204 33 241 101 2,901

1 Previously referred to as recoverable engine costs

? 10 2013 following the acquisition of RRPS the Group revised the classification of intangible assets During 2014 a number of mimor inconsistencies 1n these classifications have been
wdentified and amendad The net movement of £2m relates to software previousiy included in property plant and equipment
* Charged to cost of sales except development costs which are charged to research and development costs

GOODWILL

In accordance with the requirements of IAS 36 imparrment of Assets, goodw:ll 15 allocated to the Group's cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combinatien that gave rise to the goodwill as

follows

CASH-GENERATING UNIT {CGU) OR GROUP OF CGUs

Frimary reporting 2014 2013

segment fm £fm

Rolls-Royce Deutschland Ltd & Co KG Aerospace 215 230
Commeraial marme —arnising from the acquisitions of Vinters Lirited and

Scandinavian Electric Holdings AS Land & Sea 552 620

Commercial marine —arising from the acquisition of ODIM ASA Land & Sea 77 88

Rolls-Rayce Power Systems AG Land & Sea 760 785

Other Various 55 115

1,659 1,838
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8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS CONTINUED

Goodwill has been tested for impairment durimg 2014 on the following bass

-

The carrying values of goodwiit have been assessed by reference to value in use These have been estimated using cash flows from
the most recent forecasts prepared by management, which are consistent with past experience and external sources of mformation
on market conditions Given the long-term and established nature of many of the Group's products (product hves are often measured
in decades), these forecasts generally cover the next ten years Growth rates for the period not covered by the forecasts are basedon a
range of growth rates (2 0 — 2 75%) that reflect the preducts, industries and countnes m which the relevant CGU or group of

CGUs operate

The key assumptions for the impairment tests are the discount rate and, in the cash flow projections, the programme assumptions,
the growth rates and the impact of foreign exchange rates on the relationship between selling prices and costs Imparrment tests are
performed using prevailing exchange rates

The pre-tax cash flow projections have been discounted at 13% (2013 13%), based cn the Group's weighted average cost of capital,
adjusted for specific nsk where appropriate  The rate used for Rolls-Royce Power Systems AG takes account of the discount rate used
for the agreement of the puchase price

The principal value in use assumptions for goodwill balances considered to be mdividually significant are

- Rolls-Royce Power Systems AG — Volume of equipment delivenies, pricing achieved and cost escalation These are based on current and

known future programmes, estimates of capture of market share and long-term economic forecasts The principal foreign exchange
exposures are on translating income in a variety of non-funchional currencies imto eures For the purposes of the impairment only, cash
flows from recent management forecasts for a five-year period have been included Cash flows beyond five years are assumed to grow at
2% (2013 management forecast for ten years, thereafter 2% growth) Followmng the recogmition of RRPS at fair vatue on 1 January 2013,
reasonably possible changes 1n the key assumptions would cause the value in use of the goodwll to fall below 1ts carrymng value Such
changes include a reduction in the level of cash generation of 14%, or an increase in the assumed discount rate of 4%

Rolls-Royce Deutschland Ltd & Co KG — Volume of engine deliveries, flying hours of installed fleet and cost escalation These are based on
current and known future programmes, estimates of customers’ fleet requirerments and long-term econormic forecasts The principal
foreign exchange exposure s on translating US dollar income into euros For the purposes of the impairment test only, cash flows
beyond the ten-year forecasts are assumed to grow at 2 5% (2013 2 5%) The directors do not consider that any reasonably possible
change n the key assumptions would cause the value in use of the goodwill to fall below 1ts carrying value The overall level of business
would need to reduce by more than 81% to cause an impairment of this balance

Vinters Limited — Volume of equipment deliveries, capture of aftermarket and cost escalation These are based on current and known
future programmes, estimates of customers’ fleet requirements and long-term econormic forecasts The principal foreign exchange
exposures are on translating income in a vanety of non-functional currencies into Norwegnan kroner For the purposes of the
impairment test only, cash flows beyond the ten-year forecasts are assumed to grow at 2 5% (2013 2 5%) The directors do not consider
that any reascnably passible change in the key assumptions would cause the value in use of the goodwill to fall belowits carrying value
The overall level of business would need to reduce by more than 75% to cause an impairment of this balance
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8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS CONTINUED

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Certification costs and participation fees, development costs and contractual aftermarket nghts have been reviewed for impairment n
accordance with the requirements of 1AS 36 impairment of Assets Where an impairment test was considered necessary, 1t has been
performed on the following basis

- The carrying values have been assessed by reference to value in use These have been estimated using cash flows from the most recent
forecasts prepared by management, which are consistent with past expenience and external sources of information on market
conditions over the hives of the respective programmes

- The key assumptions underlying cash flow projections are assumed market share, programme timings, unit cost assumptions, discount
rates, and foreign exchange rates

+ The pre-tax cash flow projections have been discounted at 11% (2013 11%), based on the Group's weighted average cost of capital

- Noimpairment is requited on this basis However, acombination of changes in assumptions and adverse movements in vanables
that are outside the Group's control {discount rate, exchange rate and airframe delays), couid result n impairment m future years

As described 1n the Directors’ Report, the Group s currently engaged in a number of Trent 900 sales campaigns The carrying value of

ntangible assets relating to the Trent 900 programme assumes that a proportion of these campangns are successful If no further orders

are obtained, the carrying value of these imtangible assets (£142 rmilhon) may be i/mparred

9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and Plant and Aarcraft In course of
buildings equpment  andengines  construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1lJanuary 2013 1,072 2,889 223 511 4,695
Exchange differences 1y (28} (2) (8) (49)
Additions 17 150 83 437 687
Acquisitions of businesses 202 300 - 44 546
Disposals of businesses - (1 - - (1)
Reclassifications 19 242 21 (282) -
Disposals/write offs 2 (82} (1) 2 (67)
At 1lJanuary 2014 1,297 3,490 324 700 5,811
Exchange differences (23) (42} {1} 2 (64)
Additions 24 160 57 427 668
Acquisitions of businesses — - 38 - 38
Disposals of businesses (88) {94} (77) {28) (287)
Reclassifications! 134 137 32 (305) 2)
Disposalsfwrite offs (10 (51} {52) {1 (114)
At 31 December 2014 1,334 3,600 321 795 6,050
Accumulated depreciation
At 1January 2013 355 1,714 62 - 2,131
Exchange differences (9) (22) (1) - (32)
Charge for the year’ 48 301 23 = 372
Reclassifications® (8) 8 - - -
Disposals of businesses - &3] - - &3]
Disposals/write-offs - (51) - - (51)
At 1 January 2014 386 1,949 84 - 2,419
Exchange differences (8) {26) - - (34)
Charge for the year? 49 204 31 - 374
Impairment - - - 1 1
Disposals of businesses (29) (62) (9) - {100)
Disposals/wnite offs (7} (46) (3) - {56)
At 31 December 2014 39 2,109 103 1 2,604
Net book value
At 31 December 2014 943 1,491 218 794 3,446
At 31 December 2013 911 1,541 240 700 3,392
At 1January 2013 717 1175 161 511 2564

! The net reclassification of £2m relates to software now included inintangible assets
* Depreciation charged during the year is presented in the income staternent or included in the cost of inventory as appropnate
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9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT CONTINUED

Property, plant and equipment includes

2014 2013
im £m

Net book value of finance leased assets

Land and builldings 6 7

Plant and equipment 9 4

Aircraft and engines 43 -
Assets held for use in operating leases

Cost 267 320

Depreciation {64) (79)

Net book value 203 241
Capital expenditure commitments 194 317
Net book vatue of assets held as secunty for habilities {exciuding finance leased assets} - -
Cost of fully depreciated assets 792 899

The Group'’s share of equity accounted entities’ capital commitments 1s £82 milhon (2013 £150 rmilhon)

10 INVESTMENTS
COMPOSITION OF THE GROUP

The principal entities contributing to the Group’s financial results are hsted on pages 123 and 124 These comprnise 54 wholly-owned
subsidianes and 33 Joint ventures which are located 1n the following countries

At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013
Non wholly-
Wholly owned Wholly owned owned

subsidianes  Joint ventures subsidiaries subsidianies  Joint ventures
UK 13 8 13 1 9
Austraha - - — - 1
Brazil 1 - 1 - -
Canada 1 - 1 - -
China 2 2 1 1 2
Finland 1 - 1 - -
France 2 - 2 - -
Germany 6 4 1 4 5
Guernsey 1 - 1 - -
Hong Kong 1 1 - 1 1
Indha 3 1 3 - 1
Istael - 1 - - 1
Italy 2 - 1 1 -
Malaysia - - — - 1
Netherlands 1 - 1 -
Norway 2 - 1 1 -
Singapore 2 2 1 1 2
South Africa 1 — — -
Spain 1 1 — 1 1
Sweden 1 — 1 - _
Turkey 1 - - 1 -
United States of America 12 13 11 1 13
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10 INVESTMENTS CONTINUED

Financial Statements

The non-whelly owned subsidianies above comprise the Rolls-Royce Power Systems group On 7 March 2014, Darnler AG announced 1ts
intention to exercise its put option with the Company's ultirnate holding copmpany, Rolls-Royce Heldings plc, on 1ts 50% of Rolls-Royce
Power Systems Holding GmbH (RRPSH) Formal notice of this intention was served on 24 March 2014 From this date, the Group has an
effective econormic interest in RRPSH of 100% and NCI of £584 rmilhon was transferred to retained earmings The Group acquired the shares
on 26 August 2014, giving 1t a 100% interest in RRPSH Nen-contrelling interests are as follows

Proportion of ownership

Comprehensive mcome

mterests held by NCI allocated te NCI Accumulated NCI
2014 2013 2014 2013
2014 2013 £m £m £m £m
Rolls-Royce Power Systems GmbH - 50% {12) 11 - 694
Other subsidianes with NCI 1 1 5 4
(x1) 12 5 698
Surnmarnised financal information for RRPSH 15 as follows
At At3l
24 March December
2013 2013
£m £m
Current assets 1,529 1,776
Non-current assets 2,511 2,567
Current habihties (974) (1,035)
Non-current habihties {1,118) {1134)
Equity attnbutable to Rolls Royce shareholders 1,364 1480
Non-controlhng interests 584 694
! Immedhately prior to the exercise of the put option
Period to Year to
2aMarch 31 December
2014 2013
fm m
Revenue 551 2,834
{Loss)/profit for the period (25) 21
Attributable te ordinary shareholders (12) 10
Nor-controlling interests (12) 10
Total comprehensive income for the penod (69) 21
Attnibutable to ordinary shareholders {35} 11
Non-controlling interests {35} 11
Dwidends paid to non-controlling mterests (76) (60)
Cash flow from ogperating actvities 33 220
Cash flow from investing actwities (17) {167)
Cash flow from financing actvities (158) (97)
Net cash outflow (142) {44)
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10 INVESTMENTS CONTINUED
EQUITY ACCOUNTED AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

Equity accounted Other
Jomt ventures Associates Total Unhsted
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2013 1,798 2 1,800 6
Exchange differences (4 - {4) i
Additons 43 - 43 1
Taxation paid by the Group 6 — 6 —
Transfer to subsidiary {1,327) - (1,327) -
Acquisition of business 30 — 30 20
Share of retained profit 61 - 61 -
Disposals (2) - ) (1)
Share of OCl —may be reclassified to profit or Joss (&) - (6) -
At 1 January 2014 599 2 601 27
Reclassification? (25) - (25} -
Exchange differences 7 - 7 (2)
Additions 15 2 17 11
Taxation paid by the Group 3 - 3 -
Transfer to subsidary 1) - (1} -
Share of retained profit 23 - 23 -
Disposals (70) - (70) -
Consohdation of previously non consohdated subsidiary - - - {5)
Return of capital (3) - (3) -
Share of OCl—may be reclassified to profit orloss (13} - (13) -
At 31 December 2014 535 4 539 31
! The reclassification relates to an adjustment in the prior year relating to transactions between the Group and a jownt venture which was included in creditors It has now been
transferred to nvestments in joint ventures
Reconcihation to the ncome statement and cash flow statement
Contmuing operations Discontinued operations Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
£m im £m £m £m £fm
Share of profit after tax 94 149 2 11 96 160
Dividends receved (71) {94) (2) (5 {73} (99)
Share of retained profit 23 55 - 6 23 61
The following Joint ventures are considered to be mdividually matenal to the Group
Principal location Actmwity OCwnershipinterest

Alpha Partners Leasing Limited {APL) UK Aeto engine leasing 50 0%
Hong Kong Aero Engine Setvices Limited (HAESL) Hong Xong Aeto engine repair and overhaul 450%
Singapore Aero Engine Services Pte Lirmited (SAESL) Singapore Aero engine repair and overhaul 390%
Industna de Turbo Propulsores SA {(ITP} Span Aero engine component manufacture and mamtenance 46 9%
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10 INVESTMENTS CONTINUED

Summarised finanoal information of the Group's individually material jomt ventures 1s as follows

Financial Statements

APL HAESL SAESL TP
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m tm £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 105 89 652 898 815 1,150 529 528
Profst from contimuing operations 39 45 34 67 60 88 24 57
Post-tax profit from discontinued operations - - - - - - - -
Profit for the year 39 45 34 67 60 88 24 57
Other comprehensive operations - - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive ncome for the year 39 45 34 67 60 88 24 57
Dividends recewed during the year (13) {11) {30) (61} {56} (86) (19) (24)
Profit for the year included the following
Depreciation and amortisation (47) {a0) (8) (8} (s} (6) (37) (37)
Interest mcome - - - - - - 19 12
Interest expense (15) (18) (1) (1) (1) ul] {12) (14)
Income tax expense {11) - (7) (13) - - 4 15
Current assets 72 85 159 222 207 217 603 672
Non-current assets 1,171 891 86 79 102 82 525 659
Current iabilihies (62) (58) {61) {133) (88) (95) (415) (493)
Non-current labilities (959) (757) (37) (34) (106) {99) {418) (a61)
Net assets 222 161 147 134 115 105 295 377
Included in the above
Cash and cash equivalents 11 16 8 5 11 13 94 243
Current financial habihbies?! (13} (8) - - - - (10) (3)
Non-current financial habihties! {815) (633) {29) (27} (106} (39) {282) {353)
* Excluding trade and other payables
Reconciliation to the carrying amount recogmised in the consolidated financial statements
Ownership interest 500% 50 0% 45 0% 45 0% 39 0% 390% 46 9% 46 9%
Group share of net assets above 111 81 66 60 45 41 138 177

At the option of the current owner, the Group has an agreement to purchase the sharesn ITP that it does not own If the option 15

exercised, the price payable would be fair value, determimed on a basis agreed between the parties taking into account earmings multiples
and discounted cash flows As the exercise price would be at the fair value of the shares, the Group does net consider that this derivative

has a significant fair value

The summarised aggregated results of the Group's share of equity accounted investments is as follows

Jont ventures Assotiates Total

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Prafit from continuing operations 94 149 - — 94 149
Post-tax profit from discontinued operations 2 11 - - 2 11
Profit for the year 96 160 - - 96 160
Other comprehensive Income (13) (6 - - (13} )]
Total comprehensive mcome for the year 83 154 - - 83 154
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11 INVENTORIES

2014 2013
£m £m
Raw matenials 553 593
Work mn progress 984 1,177
Long-term contracts work 1n progress 22 15
Fimshed goods 1,149 1,426
Payments on account 60 108
2,768 3,319
Inventories stated at net realisable value 265 447
Amount of mventory write-down 62 89
Reversal of mventory write-down 1 5
12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2014 2013
£m £m
Trade recewables 1,531 1601
Amounts recoverable on contracts 2,684 2,239
Amounts owed by jomt ventures and associates 309 380
Amounts owed by parent undertaking 1,311 BA8
Other receivables 785 637
Prepayments and accrued income 200 235
6,820 5940
Analysed as
Financial instruments (note 16)
Trade recevables and similar items 1,981 2,118
Other non-denvative financial assets 671 527
Non-financial mstruments 4,168 3,295
6,820 5,940
Trade and other recevables expected to be recovered in more than one year
Trade recevables 40 51
Amounts recoverable on contracts 2,444 1,751
Other receivables 61 41
Prepayments and accrued income 55 84
2,600 1,927
Amounts recoverable on contracts include £2,492 rmlhon {2013 £1,901 million) of TotalCare assets
13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2014 2013
£m £m
Cash at bank and n hand 739 982
Money-market funds 692 1,157
Short-term deposits 1,431 1,851
Cash and cash equivalents 2,862 3,990
Overdrafts (note 15) - (3)
Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statement [page 55) 2,862 3,987
Cash held as collateral against third party cbhgations (note 23) 42 50

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2014 includes £30 rilhon (2013 £286 millon) that 15 not available for general use by the Group
This balance relates to cash held m the Group's captive insurance company and non-wholly owned subsicharies The principal reason for
the sigmificant decrease 1s that Power Systems s now a wholly owned subsichary (2013 50% interest)

84 Rolls-Royce plc Annual report 2024




14 BORROWINGS

Financial Statements

Current Nor-current Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

£m £m fm £m £m £€m
Unsecured
Overdrafts - 3 - - - 3
Bank lpans 12 204 392 412 404 616
733% Notes 2016 £200m - - 200 200 200 200
655% Notes 2015 USS83m! 55 — - 55 55 55
6 75% Notes 2019 £500m? - - 547 535 547 535
2 125% Notes 2021 €750m?* - - 615 611 615 611
3 375% Notes 2026 £375m? - - 395 350 395 350
Secured
Obhgations under finance leases? 1 - 44 1 45 1

68 207 2,193 2,164 2,261 2,371

! These notes are the subject of snterest rate swap agreements under which the Group has undertaken to pay floating rates of interest and currency swaps which form a fair value hedge
* These notes are the subject of interest 1ate swap agreements under which the Group has undertaken to pay floatng rates of snterest which form a fair value hedge

* Obhgations under finance leases are secured by related leased assets

15 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Current Non current Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £&m £Em £m
Payments received on account! 1,291 1594 860 750 2,151 2,344
Trade payables 1,348 1,370 13 16 1,361 1,386
Amounts owed to parent undertaking 889 891 - - 889 891
Amounts owed tojoint ventures and associates 235 191 4 - 239 191
Other taxation and social security 108 101 1 - 110 101
Other payables 1,756 1,820 320 143 2,076 1963
Accruals and deferred income 2,052 1969 1,247 1,229 3,299 3,198
7,680 7936 2,445 2138 10,125 10,074
! Includes payments received on account from joint ventures
and associates 158 180 99 151 257 331
Included within trade and other payables are government grants of £80 milhon (2013 £100 milhon) During the year, £24 milhon
(2013 £26 mithon) of government grants were released to the income statement
Included 1n accruals and deferred income are deferred receipts from RRSA workshare partners of £244 rmilhon (2013 £260 million) and
TotalCare habihties of £687 million (2013 £559 million)
Trade and other payables are analysed as follows
2014 2013
£m im
Fimancial imstruments (note 16}
Trade payables and similar items 3,049 2989
Other non-denvative fimancial liabihities 831 806
Non financial mstruments 6,245 6,279
10,125 10,074
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
CARRYING VALUES AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Assets Liabilites Total
Fair value Farr value
Basis for through  Loans and Available through
deterrmning profitorloss  recewables forsale Cash profitorloss Other
Notes fairvalue £m £m £fm itm £m £fm £fm
At 31 December 2014
Unhsted non-current asset investments 10 A - 31 - - - - 31
Trade recewvables and simnlar itermns 12 B - 1,981 - - - - 1,981
Other non-denvative finangial assets 12 B - 671 - - - - 671
Denvative financial assets! C 129 - - - - - 129
Shortterm imvestments B - 7 - - - - 7
Cash and cash equivalents 13 B - 1,431 692 739 - - 2,862
Borrowings 14 [ - - - - - {2,261) {2,261)
Derwative financial habihtiest C - - - - (759) - (759)
Financial RRSAs E - - - - - (145) (145)
Trade payables and sirmlar items 15 B - - - - - {3,049) (3.049)
Other non-denvative financial habihties 15 B - - - - - {831) (831)
129 4,121 692 739 (759) {6,286) (1,364)
At 31 December 2013
Unhsted non-current asset investments 10 A - 27 - - - - 27
Trade recervables and similar items 12 8 — 2,118 - - — -~ 2,118
Other non-denvative financial assets 12 8 — 527 - - - — 527
Dernvative finanoial assets C 748 - - - - - 748
Short-term investments B — 321 - - - - EyAl
Cash and cash equivalents 13 B - 1,851 1,157 982 - - 3930
Borrowings 14 D - - - - — {2,371) (2,371)
Denvative financial habihties C - - - - (295) - (295)
Financial RRSAs E - - - - - (167) (167)
Trade payables and similar items 15 B - - — - - (2,989) (2,989)
Other non-denvative finanaial habilities 15 B - - - - - {806) (808)
748 4,844 1,157 282 (295) {6,333) (1,103)

! Inthe event of counterparty default relating to detivative financial assets and habities off setting would apply and financial assets and habihties held with the same counterparty
would net off Ifthis occurted with every counterparty totat financial assets would be £15m and financial habihties £645m

Fair values equate to book values for both 2014 and 2013, with the following exceptions

2014 2013
Book value fairvalue  Bookvalue Fair value
im £m £m im
BOTI’OWH"IgS (2,261) (2,362) (2371} (2,495)
Financial RRSAs (145) (152) (167} (184}

The far value of a financial mstrument s the price at which an asset could be exchanged, or a habihity settled, between knowledgeable,
wilhng parties m an arms length transaction Fair values have been determined with reference to available market information at the
balance sheet date, using the methodologies described below

A These primanly comprise uncensolidated compares where fair value approximates to the book value

B Fairvalues are assumed to approximate to cost either due to the short term matunty of thenstruments or because the mterest rate of the investments 1s reset after periods not
exceeding six months

C Fair values of derivative financial assets and habilities are estimated by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using prevatling interest rate curves Amounts
denominated in ferewgn currencies are valued at the exchange rate prevaihing at the balance sheet date These financal instruments are included on the balance sheet at fair value
derived from observable market prices (Level 2 as defined by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement)

D Barrowing are carried at amortised cost Amounts denerminated in foreign currencies are valued at the exchange rate prevashng at the balance sheet date

E The fair value of RRSAs 15 estimated by discounting expected future cash flows The coniractual cash flows are based on future tradmg activity whichis estimated based on latest
forecasts {Level 3 as defined by IFRS 13)

IFRS 13 defines a three level valuation hierarchy

Level 1 — quoted prices for similar instruments

Level 2 = directly observable market inputs other than Level 1 imputs and

Level 3 —1nputs not based on observable market data
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CARRYING VALUES OF OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

e:c?;]lg‘; Commodity Interest rate Total Financial
contracts contracts contracts  dervatives RRSAs Total
fm £fm £fm £m £m £m
At 31 December 2014
Non current assets 28 - 79 107 - 107
Current assets 22 - - 22 - 22
Assets 50 - 79 129 - 129
Current habihities (144) {21) - {165) {22) (187)
Non current habihties {545) (22) (27) (594) (123) (717)
hiabihties (689) (43) {27) (759) (145) {904)
(639} {a3) 52 (630) (145) (775)
At 31 December 2013
Non-current assets 631 - 43 674 — 674
Current assets 72 2 - 74 - 74
Assets 703 2 43 748 - 748
Current liabihties (63} (16} (1) (80) {(22) {102)
Non-current halhties {142} (25) {(48) {215) (145) (360}
Liabilities {205) {an) (49) (295) {167) {462)
498 (39) (6) 453 {167) 286

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group uses various finanoial instruments to manage its exposure to movements in foreign exchange rates Where the effectiveness
of a hedging relationship in a cash flow hedge 1s demonstrated, changes 1n the fair value that are deemed effective are inciuded in the
cash flow hedge reserve and released to match actual payments on the hedgeditem The Group uses commodity swaps to manage its
exposure to movements in the price of commodities (jet fuel and base metals) To hedge the currency risk associated with a borrowing
denominated in US dollars, the Group has currency dervatves designated as part of fair value hedges The Group uses interest rate swaps,
forward rate agreements and interest rate caps to manage 1ts exposure to movements in interest rates

Movements in the fair values of denvative financial assets and habilites were as follows

Foresgn exchange
instruments Commodity instruments Intatest rate mstruments Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
£m tm im im £m £Em fm £fm
At 1 January 498 272 {39) {(13) (6} 88 453 347
Business acquisibions - 4 - (1) - - - 3
Movements in fair value hedges® 3 3 - - 58 (91) 61 (88)
Movements in other derwvative contracts? {1,125) 284 {15) (34) - - {1,140) 250
Contracts settled? (15) (65) 11 g - (3} (4) (59)
At 31 December (639) 498 (43) (39) 52 (6} (630) 453

! Losson related hedgeditems £61m {2013 £88m gain)
% Included in financing

* 2013 included £17m contracts settled in fair value hedges Contracts settled in 2014 include aloss of £76mn relation to contracts put in place to hedge the buy out of the
non controlling interest 1n RRPS

NON-DERIVATIVE OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group has financial habihties anising from financial RRSAs These financial habihties are valued at each reporting date using the
amortised cost method This imvolves calculating the present value of the forecast cash flows of the arrangements using the mternal
rate of return at the inception of the arrangements as the discount rate
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Movements in the carrying values of financial RRSAs were as follows

2014 2013

£m £m

At 1 January {167) (193)

Exchange adjustments mcluded in OC 3 {4)

Financing charge? {5} {9)
Excluded from underlying profit

Changes in forecast payments! - 2

Exchange adjustments! (8) 4

Cash paid to partners 32 33

At 31 December {1a5) (167)

! Included 1n financing

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES
The principal financial risks to which the Group 1s exposed are foreign currency exchange rate risk, hquidity risk, credit risk, interest rate
risk, and commodity price nsk The Board has approved policies for the management of these risks

Foreign currency exchange rate risk — The Group has sigmficant cash flows (most sigmficantly US dollars, followed by the euro)
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant trading entity To manage 1ts exposures to changes
m values of future foreign currency cash flows, so as to maintam relatively stable long-term foreign exchange rates on settled
transactions, the Group enters into dervative forward foreign currency transactions For accounting purposes, these denvative
contracts are not designated as hedging instruments

‘The Group also has exposures to the fair values of non-derwative financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies To manage the
sk of changes 1n these fair values, the Group enters into dervative forward foreign exchange contracts, which are designated as fawr value
hedges for accounting purposes

The Group regards 1ts interests in overseas subsidiary comparnies as long-term investments The Group aims to match 1ts translational
exposures by matching the currencies of assets and habilities Where appropniate, foreign currency financial habihtes may be designated
as hedges of the net mvestment

Liquidity nsk — The Group's pohcy 1s to hold financial investments and mamtam undrawn committed facibties at a level sufficient to ensure
that the Group has available funds to meet its medium-term capital and funding obhgations and to meet any unforeseen obhgations and
opportumties The Group holds cash and short-term investments, which together with the undrawn commtted facihties, enable the
Group to manage 1ts iquidity nsk

Credit nisk — The Group 1s exposed to credit risk to the extent of non-payment by erther 1ts customers or the counterparties of its financial
mstruments The effective momtoring and controlling of credht risk 1s a key component of the Group’s risk management actvities The
Group has credit policies covering both trading and financial exposures Credit risks ansing from treasury activities are managed by a
central treasury function in accordance with the Group credit pohicy The objective of the pohey 15 to diversify and mimmise the Group's
exposure {0 credit risk from 1ts treasury activities by ensuring the Group transacts strictly with ‘BBB+ or igher rated financial imstitutions
based on pre-established hmits per financial institution At the balance sheet date, there were no sigmficant concentrations of credit risk
to indvidual customers or counterparties The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date 1s represented by the carrying
value of each financial asset, ncluding dervative finanaial instruments

Interest rate rnisk — The Croup’s interest rate risk 1s primanly in relation to 1ts fixed rate borrowings (farr value nisk), floating rate borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents {cash flow risk) Interest rate dervatives are used to manage the overall interest rate profile within the
Group policy, which 1s to mamtam a higher proportion of net debt at floating rates of interest as a natural hedge to the net cash position
These are designated as either fair value or cash flow hedges as appropriate
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Commodity risk — The Group has exposures to the price of et fuel and base metals arising from business operations To minimise its cash
flow exposures to changes in commodity prices, the Group enters into dervative commodity transactions For accounting purposes, these
dervative contracts are not designated as hedging mstruments

Other price nisk — The Group's cash equivalent balances represent investments in money market instruments, with a term of up to three
months The Group does not consider that these are subject to sigrificant price nisk

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The nominal amounts, analysed by year of expected maturity, and fair values of denvative financial instruments are as follows

Expected matunty Fair value
Between Between
Nommal Withim one and two and After
amount ane year five years five years five years Assets Labilites
£fm £m £m £m fm £fm £im
At 31 December 2014
Forexgn exchange contracts
Farr value hedges 46 46 — - - 6 -
Non-hedge accounted 20,889 5,431 4,793 10,665 - 44 {689)
Interest rate contracts
Far value hedges 1,512 53 - 500 959 74 (22)
Nan-hedge accounted 2 2 - - - 5 (5)
Commodity contracts
Non-hedge accounted 240 79 62 71 28 - (43)
22,689 5,611 4,855 11,236 987 129 {759)
At 31 December 2013
Foreign exchange contracts
Fair value hedges 45 - 46 - - 3 -
Non-hedge accounted 19,654 4759 4530 9493 872 700 {205}
Interest rate contracts
Fair value hedges 1,550 - 50 - 1,500 43 (48)
Non-hedge accounted 5 - 5 - — — (1)
Commaodity contracts
Non-hedge accounted 262 79 62 80 41 2 (41)
21,517 4,838 4,693 9,573 2,413 748 (295)

As described above, all derivative financial mstruments are entered into for nsk management purposes, although these may not be
designated into hedging relationships for accounting purposes

CURRENCY ANALYSIS
Dervative financial instruments related to foreign exchange nisks are denomimated in the following currencies

Currencies purchased forward

Sterhng Us dollar Euro Other Total
£m £m fm fm £m
At 31 December 2014
Currencies sold forward
Sterling - 429 - 199 628
US dollar 16,659 - 2,014 938 19,611
Euro 150 61 - 185 396
Other 167 9 114 10 300
At 31 December 2013
Currencies sold forward
Sterling - 429 - 10 439
uUs dollar 15936 - 2,036 913 18 885
Euro 4 - - 249 253
Cther 22 23 75 3 123
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Other dervative financial instruments are denominated n the following currencies

2014 2013
£m £m
Sterling 877 880
US dollar 292 300
Euro 584 637
Non-dervative financial instruments are denomimated in the following currencies
Sterling Us dollar Euro Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2014
Unhsted non-current investments - - 30 1 31
Trade recewvables and similar items 232 1,180 479 a0 1,981
Other non-denvative financial assets 400 53 101 117 671
Short-term investments - - - 7 7
Cash and cash equivalents 513 1,404 619 326 2,862
Assets 1,145 2,637 1,229 541 5,552
Borrowmgs (1,341) {101) (819) - {2,261)
Financial RRSAs - (97) (48) - (145)
Trade payables and simlar stems {1,489) {887) {545) {128) {3,049)
Other non-denvative financial habihties {248) (333) (161) (89) {831)
Liabihities {(3,078) {1,418) (1,573) (217} {6,286)
(1,933) 1,219 {344) 324 {(734)
At 31 December 2013
Unhsted non-current mvestments - - 26 1 27
Trade receivables and similaritems 199 995 829 95 2,118
Other non-denvative financial assets 289 48 89 101 527
Short-term imnvestments 282 - 4 a5 321
Cash and cash equivalents 1,619 1,080 980 31t 3,990
Assels 2389 2123 1928 543 6983
Borrowings {1,490} (55) (826) - {2371)
Financial RRSAs - (114) (53) - (167)
Trade payables and similar items (1,501} (641) {653) (194) (2,989)
Other non-derivative finanoial habihties {208) (328) (158) (112) (806)
Liabihities {3,199 {1,138} (1,650) {306) (6,333)
(810) 985 (238) 237 (650)
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The Group’s actual currency exposures after taking account of denvative foreign currency contracts, which are not designated as hedging

nstruments for accounting purposes are as follows

Sterlmg us dollar Euro Other Total
Funcheonal currency of Group operations £m Em £m £m £m
At 31 December 2014
Sterhing - 28 2 35 65
US dollar (2) - {1) 8 5
Euro 2 5 - 11 18
Other 5 19 6 1 31
At 31 December 2013
Sterling* - 13 3 12 28
S dollar 8 - - 7 15
Euto (1) {2) ~ - (3)
Other {s) 41 (11) (4) 21
AGEING BEYOND CONTRACTUAL DUE DATE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
The ageing beyond contractual due date of the Group's financial assets 15
Between
Upte three
three months and More than
within months one year one year
terms overdue overdue overdue Total
£fm £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2014
Unlisted non-current asset mvestments 31 - - - 3
Trade recewvables and sirmlar items 1,657 206 104 14 1,981
Other non denvative financial assets 667 4 — - 671
Derwvative fmancial assets 129 - - - 129
Short-term investments 7 - - - 7
Cash and cash equivalents 2,862 - - - 2,862
5,353 210 104 14 5,681
At 31 December 2013
Unhisted non-current asset investments 27 - - - 27
Trade receivables and similar items 1,769 240 90 19 2,118
Other non-denvative financal assets 523 1 1 2 527
Dernvative fimanoial assets 748 - - - 748
Short-term investments 321 - - - 321
Cash and cash equivalents 3,890 - - - 3,990
7378 241 91 21 7,731
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CONTRACTUAL MATURITY ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Gross values
Between Between
withim oneand twoand after Carrying
one year twoyears five years five years Discounting Value
£m m im £m im £fm

At 31 December 2014
Borrowings (148) (385) {214) {1,880) 366 (2,261)
Denwvative financial habihities (174) {115) (324} (181) 35 {759)
Financial RRSAs (17} {19} (72) (52) 15 {145}
Trade payables and sirmlaritems {3,012} (32} (2) {(3) - (3,049)
Cther non-denvative fimanaial habilibes {650) {a5) {20) {66) - {831)

{4,001) {6456) (632) {2,182) 416 (7,045)
At 31 December 2013
Borrowings {290) (140) (609) (1.894) 562 {2,371)
Derivative financial habihities {87) (76) (146) (50) 104 (295)
Trade payables and similar items (2,972) (17) - - - {2989)
Other non-derivative finanoal habhties {751) (28} {16) (11} - (806)

(4,133) (295) (836) (2,070) 706 {6,628)

INTEREST RATE RISK

in respect of Income earning financial assets and terest bearing financial habilities, the following table indicates their effective interest
rates and the penods in which they reprice The value shown 1s the carrying amount

Peniod m which imterest

Tate reprices
6 months
Effectve Total orless 612 months
At 31 December 2014 mterest Tate £m £m £m
Short-term investments? 7 5 2
Cash and cash equivalents? 2,862 2,862 -
Unsecured bank loans
Other berrowings (12) (1) -
Interest rate swaps 58156% - 2 {2}
£200m floating rate loan GBP LIBOR + 0 267 -~ — -
£200m floating rate loan CBP LIBOR+1 26 (200) (200) -
£125m fixed rate loan 2 6000% (97) - -
€75m fixed rate loan 20600% {59} - -
£€50m fixed rate loan 23500% {36} - -
Unsecured bond 1ssues
73/z% Notes 2016 £200m 73750% (200) - -
6 55% Nates 2015 US$83m 6 5500% (55) - (55)
Effect of mterest rate swaps USDLIBOR + 124 — {55) 55
6 75% Notes 2019 £500m 67500% (547} - -
Effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR + 29824 - {547) -
2125% Notes 2021 £750m 21250% (615) - -
Effect of interest rate swaps CBP LIBOR + 0 7005 - (615) -
3 375% Notes 2026 £375m 33750% (395) - -
Effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR + 0 8930 - {395) -
Other secured
Obhgations under finance leases 41089% (45) {1} (1}
608
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Financial Staterments

Peried 1n whichinterest
rate reprices

Effective & months

interest rate Total or less & 12 manths
At 31 Decemnber 2013 % £m £m £m
Short-term investments! 321 318 3
Cash and eash equivalents? 3,990 3,990 -
Unsecured bank loans -
Other borrowimgs (10) (5) -
Interest rate swaps 5 3225% - 5 -
£200m floating rate loan GBP LIBOR + 0 267 (200) (200) -
£200m floating rate loan GBPLIBOR + 126 (200) {200) -
€125m fixed rate loan 2 6000% {104) - -
€75m fixed rate loan 2 0600% (63) - -
€50m fixed rate loan 2 3500% (42) - -
Unsecured bond 155ues
738% Notes 2016 £200m 7 3750% (200) - -
6 55% Notes 2015 USS83m 6 5500% {55) - -
Effect of nterest rate swaps USD LIBOR + 1 24 - (55) -
6 75% Notes 2019 £500m 6 7500% {535) - -
Effect of mterest rate swaps GBP LIBOR + 2 9824 - {535) -
2125% Notes 2021 €750m 2 1250% {611) - -
Effect of mterest rate swaps GBP LIBOR + 0 7005 - {(611) -
3 375% Notes 2026 £375m 3 3750% {350) - -
Effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR + 0 8930 - (350) -
Other secured
Obhgabons under finance leases 5 0000% {1} {1} -

1,940

1 Interest on the short term investments are at fixed rates

? Cash and ¢ash equivalents compnses bank balances and demand depesits and earns interest at rates based on daily deposit rates

Some of the Group's borrowings are subject to the Group meetmg certain obhgations, including customary financial covenants Ifthe
Group fails to meet 1ts obhgations these arrangements give nghts to the lenders, upon agreement, to accelerate repayment of the
facihties There are no rating triggers contained in any of the Group’s facihties that could require the Group to accelerate or repay any
facihty for a given movement in the Group's credit rating

In addition, the Group has £1,277 rmihon of undrawn commtted borrowing facilities (2013 £1,250 milhon) expiring after two years

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

Sensibivities at 31 December (all other variables held constant) —impact on profit after tax and equity mnlr: 20E1r:
Sterling 10% weaker agamst the Us dollar (1,336) {1.177)
Sterling 10% stronger aganst the US dollar 1,093 963
Euro 10% weaker against the US dollar {147) {128)
Euro 10% stronger against the US dollar 123 100
Sterhing 10% weaker against the Euro 15 (95)
Sterhing 10% stronger agamst the Euro (12) 78
Commodity prices 10% lower (15) (16)
Commodity prices 10% mgher 15 16

At 31 December 2014 the Group had no matenial sensitivity to changes in interest rates on that date The main interest rate sensitivity for
the Group arises as a result of the gross up of net cash and this 1s rmitigated as described under the interest rate risk management policies
on page 88
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17 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

At Oisposals Unused Charged to At

1 January Exchange of amounts ncome 31 December

2014 differences businesses reversed statement Utihsed 2014

£m £m £m £m £fm £fm £m

Warranty and guarantees 419 {18) {14} (27) 181 (115) 426
Contract loss 67 (Wh] (11) 9) 16 (21) 41
Restructuring 25 1 - - 121 (25) 122
Customer financing 73 — - (34) 15 (7} 47
Ingurance 62 - - (13) 35 (19} 65
Other 87 3) )] (13} 76 {32} 106
733 (21) (34) (96} 444 (219) 807

Current habihties 348 433
Non-current habihbes 385 374

Provisions for warranties and guarantees primanly relate to products sold and generally cover a period of up to three years

Provisions for contract loss and restructuring are generally expected to be utihsed within two years

In connection with the sale of its products the Group will, on some occasions, provide financing support for 1ts customers — generally
n respect of cvil arcraft The Group’s commutments relating to these financing arrangements are spread over many years, relate to
a number of customers and a broad product portfoho and are generally secured on the asset subject to the financing These include

commitments of US$1 8 billion to provide borrowing facilities to enable customers to purchase atrcraft {of which approximately

US$300 rmilhon could be called in 2015) These facihties may only be used if the customer 15 unable to obtain financing elsewhere and
are priced at a prermum to the market rate Consequently the directors do not consider that there 1s a sigmificant exposure arising from

the provision of these facilities
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Customer financing provisions cover guarantees provided for asset value and/or financimg These quarantees, the risks ansing and the
process used to assess the extent of the nsk are described under the heading ‘Custorner financing’ in the Financial Review on page 20 It1s

estimated that the provision will be utihised as follows

2014 2013
im £m
Potential claims with specific claim dates

Inone year or less 32 29
In more than one year but less than five years 11 38
In more than five years 4 5

Potential claims that may anse at any time up to the date of expiry of the guarantee
Up toone year - 1
47 73

Cormnmmtments on delivered aircraft in excess of the amounts provided are shown n the table below These are reported on a discounted
basis at the Group's borrowing rate to reflect better the time span over which these exposures could arise These amounts do not represent
values that are expected to crystallise The commitments are denominated in US dollars As the Group does not generally adopt cash flow
hedge accounting for future foreign exchange transactions, this amount 1s reported, together with the sterling equivalent at the reporting

date spot rate The values of aircraft providing securnity are based on advice from a speciahst aircraft appraiser

2014 2013

im sm im sm
Gross commitments 388 505 356 589
Value of secunty* (245} {382) (217) {360}
Indemmities (84} {132) (80) (132}
Net commitments 59 91 59 97
Net commitments with secunty reduced by 20%? 90 140 78 129
! Secunity includes unrestnicted cash collateral of 42 66 50 83

t Although sensitivity calculations are complex the reduction of relevant secunity by 20% illustrates the sensitivity to changes i ths assumption
9 ¥ y By Y g

There are also commitments 1n respect of undelwered aircraft, but it 1s not considered practicable toestimate these, as deliveries

can be many years im the future, and the relevant financing will only be put in place at the appropriate time

The Group's captive msurance company retans a portion of the exposures it insures on behalf of the remainder of the Group Sigmificant
delays occur in the notification and settlement of claims and judgement 1s involved 1n assessing outstanding habihties, the ultimate cost

and tirmng of which cannot be known with certainty at the balance sheet date The insurance provisions are based on information
currently available, however 1t 15 inherent in the nature of the business that ultimate habilities may vary Provisions for outstanding

claims are established to cover the outstanding expected liability as well as claims incurred but not yet reported

Other provisions comprise a number of habilities with varying expected utilisation rates
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18 POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS
The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution schemes

UK defined benefit schemes are funded, with the assets held m separate trustee admmistered funds Employees are entitled
to retirement benefits based on erther their final or career average salaries and length of service

Overseas defined benefit schemes are a mixture of funded and unfunded plans and provide benefits in hne with local practice
Adehtionally m the US, and to a lesser extent in some other countries, the Group's employment practices include the provision of
healthcare and Iife insurance benefits for retired employees These schemes are unfunded

The valuations of the defined benefit schemes are based on the most recent funding valuations, where relevant, updated by the scheme
actuanies to 31 December 2014

The defined benefit schemes expose the Group to actuarnal nisks such as longevity, mterest rate, inflation and investment risks In the UK,
andn the pnincipal US pension schemes, the Group has adopted mvestment pohcies to rmitigate some of these risks This involves
nvesting a sigmficant proportion of the schemes’ assets in hability driven investment (LDI} portfohos, which hold investments designed
to offset interest rate and nflation rate risks In addition, in the UK, the Rolls-Royce Pension Fund has mvested in a longevity swap, which
15 designed to offset longevity rnisks in respect of exasting pensioners

AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN THE INCOME STATEMENT

2014 2013
UK Overseas UK Overseas
schemes schemes Total schemes schemes Total
£m £mn Em Em £m £m
Defined benefit schemes
Current service cost and admimistrative expenses 156 45 201 1532 55 208
Past-service cost (18) {13) (31) 66 5 71
133 32 170 219 60 279
Defined contribution schemes? 32 97 129 30 26 116
Operating cost 170 129 299 249 146 395
Net financing (income)/charge 1n respect of defimed benefit schemes (11) 40 29 (12) 38 26
Total mcome statement charge 159 169 328 237 184 421
! The 2013 figures reported did not include defined contribution costs for Rolls Royce Power Systems AG
The operating cost 1s charged as follows
Defined beneht Defined contribution Tatal
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
£m im £m £m £m £m
Cost of sales —included in underlying profit 117 141 84 74 201 215
Commeroial and admimistrative costs 21 104 23 23 a4 127
Research and development 27 28 17 14 44 42
165 273 124 111 289 384
Discontmued operations 5 ) 5 5 10 11
170 279 129 116 299 395
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The Group operates a PaySave scheme 1n the UK This s a salary sacrifice scheme under which employees elect to stop making employee
contributions and the Group makes additional contributions 1n return for a reduction 1n gross contractual pay As atesult, thereisa
decrease m wages and salanes and a corresponding increase in pension costs of £35 rmllion (2013 £37 rmllon) in the year

Net financing comprises

2014 2013
UK Overseas UK QOverseas
schemes schemes Total schemes schemes Total
£m im £m £m £m £m
Financing on scheme obhgations 390 64 454 371 59 430
Financing on scheme assets (427) {24) (451) {431) (21) (452)
Financing on untecogmsed surpluses and mimmum funding habiirty 26 - 26 48 - 48
Net fimancing (income)/charge in respect of defined benefit schemes (11} 40 29 12y 38 26
Financing mcome on schemne surpluses (13} - (13) (16} {1) (17}
Financing costs on scheme deficits 2 a0 42 4 39 43
AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN OCI IN RESPECT OF DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEMES
2014 2013
UK Overseas UK Overseas
schemes schemes Total schemes schemes Total
fm £fm £m im £m £m
Actuanal gans and losses ansing from demographic assumptions 23 (17) 6 (87) (12) (99)
Actuanal gans and losses anising from financial assumptions {1,099) (228) (1,327) (200} 116 (84)
Actuarial gams and losses arising from expenence adjustments (343) (17} (360) 65 31 96
Return on scheme assets excluding financing income 2,258 55 2,313 {363) {42) (405)
Movement in unrecogmsed surplus and related finance cost 513 - 513 407 - 407
Movement in mimimum funding habihity and related finance cost 47 - a7 133 - 133
1,399 (207) 1,192 {45) 93 48

AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN THE BALANCE SHEET IN RESPECT OF DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEMES

2014 2013
UK QOverseas UK Qverseas
schemes schemes Total schemes schemes Tota!
£m £m £m £m tm £m
Present value of funded obhgations (10,608) (664) (11,270} (9.0486) (558) (9,604)
Far value of scheme assets 12,341 593 12,934 9776 504 10280
Net asset/(habihty) on funded schemes 1,735 (71) 1,664 730 (54) 676
Present value of unfunded obligations - {1,109) {1,109} -~ (35} {935)
Unrecogmsed surplus? - - - {(488) - (488)
Mimmum funding hability? - - - (46) - (46)
Net asset/(habihty) recogmsed in the balance sheet 1,735 {1,180) 555 196 (989) {793)
Post-retirement scheme surpluses 1,735 5 1,740 242 & 248
Post-retirement scheme deficits - {1,185) (1,185) (46} (995) (1,041)

Where a surplus has ansen on a scheme, 1n accordance with 145 19 and IFRIC 14 the sutplus s recognised as an asset only1f 1t represents an unconditional economic benefit available
to the Groupn the future Anysurplus in excess of this benefit 15 not recogmsed 1 the balance sheet During 2014 the rules of cne scheme were amended which remavedthe
restriction on recogmsing the surplus

2 A mmmumum funding habihty anses where the statutery fundmg requirements requite future contnibutions in respect of past service that will result in a future unrecogmsable surplus

Overseas schemes are located in the following countries

2014 2013

Assets Obhgations Net Assets Obhgations Net
Canada 160 {208) {a8) 135 {181) {46)
Cermany - (592) (592) - {(500) (500)
US pension schemes 414 {508) {94) 347 {(420) (73)
US healthcare schemes - {423) (423) - {352) (352)
Other 19 {42} (23) 22 (40) {18)
Net asset/(hability) recogmsed in the balance sheet 593 {1,773) {1,180) 504 (1493) {989)
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18 POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS CONTINUED
DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEMES
ASSUMPTIONS

Sigmificant actuanal assumptions for UK schemes (weighted average by size of the obhgation) used at the balance sheet date were
as follows

2014 2013
Discount rate 36% 4 4%
Inflation assumption (RPI} 32% 35%
Rate of increase in salaries 42% 45%
Male hife expectancy from age 65 — current pensioner 22 5years 22 5years

—future pensioner currently aged 45 24 1years 24 2 years

! The Consumer Price Index 15 assumed to be 1 1% lower

Discount rates are deterrmned by reference to the market yields on AA rated corporate bonds The rate 1s deterrmined by using the profile
of forecast benefit payments to denive a weighted average discount rate from the yield curve In prior years, only bonds with an average
AArating by the three main agencies were included The population of such bonds has reduced and hmited the rehability of the derived
yield curve, consequently this has been changed so that bonds rated AA by at least one agency are included  The impact of this change 1s
to increase the discount rate at 31 December 2014 by approximately 0 3%

The Inflation assurmption 1 determined by the market imphed assumption based on the ytelds on long-term indexed linked government
securities and increases in salaries are based on actual expenence, allowing far promotion, of the real ncrease above inflation

The mortality assumptions adopted for the UK pension schernes are denved from the SAP actuanal tables, with future improvements in
line with the CMi 2014 core projections and long-termimprovements of 1 25% Wherte appropriate, these are adjusted to take account of
the relevant scheme’s actual expemience

Other assumptions have been set on advice from the relevant actuary, having regard to the latest trends in scheme experience and the
assumptions used in the most recent funding valuation The rate of increase of pensions in payment 1s based on the rules of the relevant
scheme, combined with the inflation assumption where the increase 1s capped

Assumptions for overseas schemes are less sigmificant and are based on advice from local actuanes The principal assumptions are

2014 2013
Discount rate 3 3% 4 5%
nflation assumption 22% 23%
Long-term healthcare cost trend rate 50% 37%
Male hfe expectancy from age 65 —current pensioner 21 1years 196 years

—future pensioner currently aged 45 23 3years 207 years
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18 POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS CONTINUED
CHANGES IN PRESENT VALUE OF DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

L

Financaal Statements

2014 2013
UK Overseas UK Overseas
schemes schemnes Total schemes schemes Total
fm £m im £m £m £m
Al 1 January (9,046) {1,493) (10,539) {8.569) {1,178) {9,747)
Exchange differences - N {7) - 16 16
Current service cost (151) (44) {195) (147) {(53) (200)
Past-service cost 18 16 34 (66) (4 {70)
Fiance cost {320) {63) {453) (371) {59) (430)
Contnbutions by employees (4) {5) @) (4) (4) (8)
Benefts pad out 376 71 447 334 63 397
Acquistiion of businesses - - - (1) {402) (403)
Disposal of busimesses 10 16 26 — - -
Actuanal (losses)/gams {1,419) {266} (1,685} (222) 134 (88)
Settlement curtailment - 6 6 - - —
Other movements - (4) (4} - (6) {6)
At 31 December {10,606) (1,773) (12,379) (9,046) {1493) (10,539)
Funded schemes {10,606} (664) {11,270} (9,046) (558} {9,604)
Unfunded schemes - (1,109) (1,109) - {935) {(935)
The defined benefit obhgations are in respect of
Active plan participants (4,170) (974) {5,144) {3,492} {849) {4341)
Deferred plan participants {2,009) (97} (2,106) (1,647) (74) (1,721)
Pensioners {4,427) (702} {5,129) {3,907} (570) (4,477)
Weighted average duration of obhgations 17 16 17 16 13 16
CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE OF SCHEME ASSETS
UK Overseas UK Overseas
schemes schemes Total schemes schemes Total
im £m £m £m £m fm
At 1lanuary 9,776 504 10,280 9,794 534 10 328
Exchange differences - 18 18 - (19) (19)
Administrative expenses (5) (1} {6) (6) (2) (8
Financing 427 24 451 431 21 452
Return on plan assets excluding financing 2,258 55 2,313 (363) (42) {405)
Contributions by employer 257 65 322 2439 66 315
Contributions by employees 4 5 9 4 4 8
Benefits pad out {376} (71) {a47) (334) (63) (397)
Acquisition of businesses - - - 1 3 6
Settlements/curtailment - (6) {6 - - -
At 31 December 12,341 593 12,934 9,776 504 10,280
Total return on scheme assets 2,685 79 2,764 68 (21) 47
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18 POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS CONTINUED
FAIR VALUE OF SCHEME ASSETS AT 31 DECEMBER

2014 2013

11,4 Overseas UK Overseas
schernes schetmes Total schemes schemes Total
fm £m £m im £m £m
Sovereign debt 7,282 167 7,449 5929 231 6,160
Denvatives on sovereign debt (2,622} 2 (2,620) (987) 2 {985)
Corporate debt imnstruments 2,053 237 2,290 1045 190 1235
Interest rate swaps 4,218 - 4,218 1,361 - 1,361
Inflation swaps (360) - {360) (13) - (13)
Cash and sirmlar mstruments 193 127 320 257 44 30
Liability driven investment (LDI) portfolios? 10,764 533 11,297 7592 467 8,059
Longevity swap? 10 - 10 3 - 3
Listed equities 787 3 790 994 3 997
Unhsted equities 216 - 216 172 - 172
Sovereign debt 105 4 109 215 4 219
Corporate debt instruments 15 - 15 540 4 544
Cash 166 32 198 253 4 257
Other 278 21 299 7 22 29
At 31 December 12,341 593 12,934 9776 504 10,280

* Aportfolio of gilt and swap contracts backed by LIBOR ganerating assets that s designed to hedge the majority of the interest rate and inflation nisks associated with the schemnes
obhgatons

? Under the longewity swap the Rolls Royce Pension Fund (RRPF) has agreed an average hife expectancy of pensioners with a counterparty If pensioners hve longer than expected the
counterparty will make payments to the RRPF to offset the additional cost of paying pensioners 1f the reverse applies the cost of paying pensioners will be reduced but the scheme will
be required to make payments to the counterparty The longevity swap s vaiued on an external fair market basis rather than using the same assumpttons as used for the valuation of
the scheme s habihties

The scheme assets do not include any of the Group’s own finanaial instruments, nor any property occupied by, or other assets used by,
the Group The longevity swap 15 valued by the scheme actuaries based on the difference between the agreed longevity assumptions at
mception and actual longevity expenence All other fair values are provided by the fund managers Where available, the fair values are
quoted prices (eg hsted equity, sovereign debt and corporate bonds) Unhsted investments (private equity) are included at values provided

by the fund manager in accordance with relevant guidance Other sigrificant assets are valued based on observable inputs such as yield
curves

MOVEMENTS IN UNRECOGNISED SURPLUS AND MINIMUM FUNDING LIABILITY

2014 2013
UK Overseas UK Overseas
schemes schemes Total schemes schemes Total
Em £m £m £m £m im
At 1 January {534) - (534) {1,026) - (1,026)
Movements in unrecogmsed surplus through OC| 513 - 513 407 - 407
Movements i mimmum funding habihty through OC) 47 - 47 133 - 133
Related finance costs (26} - (26) {48) - {48)
At 31 December - - - (534) - {534)
FUTURE CONTRIBUTIONS

The Group expects to contribute approximately £250 milhon to 1ts defined benefit schemesin 2015

In the UK, the funding is set on the basis of a trienmal funding valuation by the actuanes for which the assumptions may differ from those
above In particular, the discount rate used to value the obhgations takes account of the investment strategy, rather than being based on
market yields of AA corporate bonds As a result of these valuations, the Group and the scheme trustees agree a Schedule of Contributions
{SoC), which sets out the required contributions from the employer and employees for current service Where the scheme 1s in deficit, the
SoC also includes required contributions from the employer to ehminate the deficit The most recent agreed trienmal valuations for the
pnincaipal schemes are

Obhgations at

31 December
2014 Valuation date
Rolls-Royce Pension Fund 7,330 31 March 2012
Rolls-Royce Group Pension Scheme 1,779 5 Apnil 2013
Vickers Group Pension Scheme 696 31 March 2013
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18 POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS CONTINUED

SENSITIVITIES

The calculations of the defined benefit obhigations are sensitive to the assumptions set out abave The following table summarises how the
estimated impact of a change in a sigmficant assumption would affect the UK defined benefit cbhgation at 31 Decernber 2014, while
holding all other assumptions constant This sensitivity analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit

obhgation as it 15 unhkely that the change 1n assumptions would occur in1solation of one another as some of the assumptions may be
correlated

For the most sigmificant funded schemes, the investment strategies are designed to hedge the nisks from interest rates, inflation on an
economic basis and 1n the Rolls-Royce Pension Fund in the UK, the longevity of pensioners Where appropnate, the table also includes the
corresponding movement 1n the value of the plan assets

£m
Reduction in the discount rate of 0 25%* Obhgation (473)
Plan assets (LDI portfolio} 591
Increase in inflation of 0 25% Obhgation (241)
Plan assets {LDI portfolio) 209
Increase in real increase in salaries of 0 25% Obhgations 5)
One year increase 1n hfe expectancy Obhgations {250)
! The difference between the sensitivities en obligations and plan assets arises largely due to differences in the methods used to value the obhgations for accounting and econamic
purposes On an economic basis the correlation 1s approximately 96%
19 SHARE CAPITAL
Equity
Ordinary shares Nommal
of 20peach value
Milhions £m
Issued and fully paxd
At 1January 2013 and 31 Decernber 2014 1,631 326

The nights attaching to ordinary shares are described on page 48
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20 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

EFFECT OF SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS ON THE GROUP'S RESULTS AND FINANCIALPOSITION

2014 2013

£m im

Total charge recogrised for equity-settled share-based payments transactions 26 61
Total {credit}/charge recogmsed for cash-settled share-based payments transactions {5) 8
Share-based payments recogmsed n the consolidated income statement 21 79
Liabihty for cash-settled share-based payment transactions 13 19

MOVEMENTS IN THE GROUP'S SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLANS DURING THE YEAR
ShareSave ESOP PSP APRA
Weighted Weighted
average daverage

Number exercise price Number exercise price Number Number

Milhons Pence Milhons Pence Milhons Millions

Outstanding at 1 January 2013 268 447 01 77 140 40
Granted 100 961 - - 28 16
Additional entitlements ansimg from TSR performance - - - — 06 -
Additional shares accrued from reinvestment of C Shares - - - - - 01
Forfeited {06) 483 - - (06 (01)
Exercised (102) 404 {01) 77 {4 8) (25)
Outstanding at 1 January 2014 260 660 - - 120 31
Granted - - 29 11
Additional entitlements arsing from TSR performance - - 05 -
Addittonal shares accrued from remnvestment of € Shares - - - 01
Forfeited {10) 775 (12) {02)
Exercised (05) 487 (4 4) 17)
Outstanding at 31 December 2014 245 660 98 24

Exercisable at 31 December 2014

Exercisable at 31 December 2013

As share options are exercised throughout the year, the weighted average share price during the year of 1013p (2013 1123p) 15
representative of the weighted average share price at the date of exercise The closing price at 31 Decemnber 2014 was 870p (2013 1275p)

FAIR VALUES OF SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLANS

The weighted average fair value per share of equity-settled share-based payment plans granted during the year, estimated at the date of

grant, are as follows

2014

2013

PSP — 25% TSR uphift 1105p 1128p
PSP — 50% TSR uphft 1227p 1254p
ShareSave —3 year grant nfa 287p
ShareSave — § year grant nfa 349p
APRA 984p 1027p
PSP

The fair value of shares awarded under the PSP 1s calculated using a pricing model that takes account of the non-entitlement to dividends
{or equivalent) during the vesting period and the market-based performance condition based on expectations about volatihty and the
correlation of share price returns 1n the group of FTSE 100 companies and which incerporates into the valuation the interdependency
between share price performance and TSR vesting This adjustment increases the fair value of the award relative to the share price at the

date of grant
SHARESAVE

The fair value of the options granted under the ShareSave plan 1s calculated using a binormial pricing modet that assumes that participants
will exercise their options at the beginning of the six-menth window if the share price 1s greater than the exercise price Otherwise it
assumes that options are held untyl the expiration of their contractual term This results 1n an expected hfe that falls somewhere between

the start and end of the exercise window

APRA

The fair value of shares awarded under APRA 1s calculated as the share price on the date of the award, excluding expected dividends (or

equivalent)
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21 LEASES
OPERATING LEASES
LEASES AS LESSEE
2014 2013
im £m
Rentals paid — hire of plant and machinery 123 134
—hire of other assets 75 55
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows
Within one year 182 179
Between one and five years 542 545
After five years 438 507
1,162 1,231
LEASES AS LESSOR
2014 2013
£m £m
Rentals receved — credited within revenue from aftermarket services 15 56
Non cancellable operating lease rentals are recewable as follows
wWithin one year 16 19
Between one and five years 30 48
After five years 13 23
59 80

The Group acts as lessee and lessor for both land and buildings and gas turbine engimes, and acts as lessee for some plant and equipment

- Sublease payments of £1 rmllion {2013 £1 millon) and sublease receipts of £12 wulhon (2013 £27 milhon) were recogmised in the incorne
staternentin the year

+ Purchase options exist on aero engines, land and buildings and plant and equipment with the perod to the purchase option date
varying between one to eight years

- Renewal options exist on aero engines, land and buildings and plant and equipment with the period to the renewal option varying
between one to 42 years at terms to be negotiated upon renewal

+ Escalation clauses exist on some leases and are inked to LIBCR

- The total future mimimum sublease payments expected to be made 15 £6 million (2013 £8 million) and sublease receipts expected to be
received 15 £31 milhon (2013 £42 milhon)

FINANCE LEASES
LEASES AS LESSEE

Finance lease abilities are payable as follows

2014 2013

Payments nterest Prmcipal Payments Interest Principal

£m £m £m £im £'m £m

Within one year 3 2 1 - - -
Between one and five years 13 7 6 1 - 1
After five years 47 9 38 - - -
63 18 45 1 - 1
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22 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Contingent habilibies in respect of customer financing commitments are described in note 17

On & December 201.2, the Company announced that 1t had passed information to the Senious Fraud Office (SFO), following a request from
the SFO for information about allegations of malpractice in overseas markets On 23 Decemnber 2013, the Company announced that it had
been informed by the SFO that 1t had commenced a formal nvestigation Since the imtial announcement, the Company has continued 1ts
mvestigations and i1s engaging with the SFO and other authonties m the UK, the USA and elsewhere in relation to the matters of concern

The consequence of these disclosures will be decided by the regulatory authoribies It 1s too early to predict the outcomes, but these could
mclude the prosecution of individuals and of the Group Accordingly, the potential for fines, penalties or other consequences cannot
currently be assessed As the investigation 1s ongoing, it 1s not yet possible to dentify the timescale 1n which these 1ssues might be resolved

Contingent habihties exist 1n respect of guarantees provided by the Group in the ordinary course of business for product dehvery,
performance and rehability The Group has, in the normal course of business, entered into arrangements 1n respect of export finance,
performance bonds, countertrade obligations and minor nuiscellaneous iterns Various Group undertakings are parties to legat achions and
clarms which anse in the ordinary course of business, some of which are for substantial amounts As a consequence of the insolvency of an
msurer as previously reported, the Group 1s no longer fully insured aganst known and potential claims from employees who worked for
certan of the Group's UK based businesses for a period prior to the acquisition of those businesses by the Group While the outcome of
some of these matters cannot precisely be foreseen, the directors do not expect any of these arrangements, legal actions or claims, after
allowing for provisions already made, to result in sigmficant loss to the Group

The Group’s share of equity accounted entities’ contingent habiities 1s £11 milhon (2013 £13 million)

23 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2014 2013
£m £m
Sales of goods and services to Jont ventures and associates 2,138 3149
Purchases of goods and services from yomt ventures and associates (2,544) (3,269)
Operating lease payments to jomnt ventures and associates (81) (69)
Cuarantees of Joint ventures’ and associates’ borrowings 2 7
Dwidends recewed from joint ventures and assooates 73 99
RRSA receipts from jomnt ventures and associates 2
Other income receved from joint ventures and associates 2 1

The aggregated balances with joint ventures are shown in notes 12 and 15 Transactions with Group pension schemes are shown m note 18
In the course of normal operations, related party transactions entered into by the Group have been contracted on an arms-length basis

Key managernent personnel are deemed to be the directors and the members of the ELT as set out 1n the Annual report of Rolls-Royce
Holdings plc Remuneration for key management personnel 1s shown below

2014 2013

£m fm

Salanes and short-term benefits 9 11
Post-retirement schermes 1 1
Share-based payments 4 7
14 19
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24 ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

ACQUISITIONS

On 5 March 2014, the Group acquired the 50% of Gate Leasing Limited that 1t did not already own for $5 million The principal assets and
habihities acquired were aircraft engines (£37 milhion) and borrowings (£30 milhon)

DISPOSALS

On 1 December 2014, the Group sold its Energy business for £785 million which included a contribution to the costs of separating the
Energy business from the Group’s continuing activities, most significantly the creation of a stand-alone IT system  In addition, Rolls-Royce
has received a further £200 rillion for a 25 year icensing agreement? granting Siemens access to relevant Rolls-Royce aero-dervative
technology for use 1n the 4 to 85 megawatt power output gas turbine range The Energy business disposal gave rise to a cash inflow of
£1,027 mulhon In accordance with IFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontiued Operations, the disposal of the Energy business
has been accounted for as a discontinued operation

in addition, on 1 October 2014, the Group sold its interest in MTU Austraha Pty Limited for £24 milhon  The principat activity of this
company was to hold the Group’s Jjoint venture interest in MTU Detroit Diesel Austraha Pty Limited

Energy
{discontinued
operation}) MTU Austraha
£m £m

PROCEEDS
Cash consideration 985 24
Adjustments and future cbhgations to the purchaser (28} -
Total consideration before deferrals 957 24
Recept of hcensing agreement proceeds deferred as at 1 December 20141 (58} -
Total consideration after deferrals 899 24
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES DISPOSED
Intangible assets 106 -
Property plant and equipment 187 -
Investment 1n joint venture 56 14
Inventary 320 -
Deposits (payments recewved on account) (11) -
Trade and other recevables 337 -
Cash and cash equivalents 4 -
Trade and other payables (253) =
Provisions for habihties and charges (34 -
Net assets disposed 712 14
PROFIT ON DISPOSAL
Profit on disposal before disposal costs and contimuing obhigations 187 10
Cumulative currency translation gain/{loss) 32 (3)
Disposal costs and ongoing obhgations? (98) (1)
Post-retrrement scheme net credit? 15 -
Profit on disposal of business before tax 136 6
Tax on disposal 2 -
Profit on disposal of business after tax 133 6
RECONCILIATION TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Total consyderation after deferrals 899 .y 24
Adjustments, future obhgations and receipts of hcensig agreement proceeds deferred at 1 December 2014° 158 . -
Cash and cash equivatents disposed {4) hl
Disposal costs paid in the year (26) -
Cash inflow per cash flow statement 1,027 24

w

The £200m licensing agreement contained £142m to provide intellectual property which has been recognised in the penied whilst £58m relating to the proviston of engineering
services and supply of parts has been deferred up to 25 years

Disposal costs of £98 rmilhon {incurred and accrued) include costs to separate the Energy business ncluding items such as IT legal and transactional fees

Profit on the sale of business includes pension and other post retirement berefit plan curtailment gains of £26miihon {note 18) and an accrualto settle a pension deficit that is
expected tatransfer to Slemens duning 2015

£58m of costs relating to future cbhgatigns to Siemens not yet incurred have been accrued and £58m relating to the licensing agreement have been deferred In addition the Energy
disposai s subject to customary post closing adjustments that are estimated to be £42m which may include adjustments to working capital Such adjustments may result in the final
amounts recerved from the purchaser differing from the disposal proceeds above

- w

>
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014 2013
Notes £m fm
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 3 951 872
Tangible assets 4 1,348 1270
Investments —subsidiary undertakings 5 1,724 1,749
—joint ventures 5 72 70
4,095 3,961
Current assets
Stocks 6 1,237 1,237
Debtors —amounts falling due within one year 7 6,141 3 447
—amounts falling due after one year 7 676 475
Other financial assets —amounts falling due within one year 8 103 83
—amounts fathing due after one year 8 137 687
Short-term deposits 1,279 1,973
Cash at bank and in hand 662 1,237
Assets held for resale — 2
10,235 9,141,
Creditors —amounts falhing due within one year
Borrowings 9 {1,100} (805)
Other financal habilities 8 {218) (142}
Other creditors 10 {7,570) (6,940)
(8.888) (7.887)
Net current assets 1,347 1,254
Total assets less current habihties 5,442 5.215
Creditors — amounts falling due after one year
Borrowings 9 (1,957) {1,951)
Other financial habihties 8 {753) (403)
Other creditors 10 (1,399) {1,130)
(4,109) (3,484)
Provisions for habihities and charges 11 (174) (140}
Net assets excluding post-retitement schemes 1,159 1,591
Post retirement schemes —surpluses 13 1,039 332
Net assets 2,198 1,923
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 14 326 326
Share prermium account 15 631 631
Revaluation reserve 15 21 26
Other reserves 15 167 167
Profit and loss account 15 1,053 773
Total shareholders’ funds 2,198 1923

TWC statements on pages 106 to 122 were approved by the Board on 12 February 2015 and signed on its behalf by

[Fen

John Rishton Chief Executive

Company’s registered number 1003142

106 Rolls-Royce plc

Dawvid Stmith Choef Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014

2013

£m £€m
{Loss)/profit attributable to the shareholders of Rolis-Royce plc {347) 448
Net movernent on post-retirement schemes 759 (561)
Related tax movements (152) 149
Total recogmsed gains relating to the year 260 36
RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
2014 2013
£m im
At 1 January 1,923 2,758
Total recogmsed gams for the year 260 36
Dwidends paxd - (800)
Share-based payments —direct toequity 15 29
At 31 December 2,198 1923

107



Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards on the historical cost basis, modified
toinclude the revaluation of land and buwildings, and on a going concern basis as described on page 50

As permitted by the Compames Act 2006, a separate profit and loss account for the Company has not been included in these financial
statements

As permitted by FRS 1 Cash Flow Statements, no cash flow statement has been prepared, as a consolidated cash flow statement has been
prepared by the ultimate parent company

Revenue recogmtion
Revenue comprises sales to external customers after discounts, and excluding value added tax

Sales of products are recogmised when the significant nsks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to the customer, the
sales price agreed and the receipt of payment can be assured

Sales of services and long-term contracts are recognised when the outcome of the transaction can be reliably estimated Revenue s
recognmsed by reference to the stage of completion based on services performed to date as a percentage of the fotal contractual ebhigation
The assessment of the stage of completion 1s dependent on the nature of the contract, but will generally be based on costs mncurred to the
extent these relate to services performed up to the reporting date, achievernent of contractual milestones where approprate, or flying
hours or equivalent for long-term aftermarket arrangements

Linked sales of product and services are treated as a single long-term contract where these components have been negotiated as a single
commeraial package and are so closely interrelated that they do not operate independently of each other and are considered to form a
single project with an overall profit margin Revenue 1s recogmsed on the same basis as for other sales of products and services as
described above

Full provision 1 made for any estimated losses to completion of contracts having regard to the overall substance of the arrangements

Progress payments receved on long-term contracts, when greater than recorded turnover, are deducted from the value of work i progress
except to the extent that payments on account exceed the value of work in progress an any contract where the excess 1s mcluded in
creditors The amount by which recorded turnover of long-term contracts 1s in excess of payments on account 1s classified as ‘amounts
recoverable on contracts’ and 15 separately disclosed within debtors

Risk and revenue shanng arrangements {(RRSAs}

The Company enters into arrangements with certain workshare partners under which these supphers {1) contribute to the forecast costs
of developing an engine, and () supply components for the production phase for which they receive consideration, which 1s an agreed
proportion of the total programme revenues Both the supphers’ contrnibutions to the forecast costs and their consideration are
determined by reference to thewr proportionate scopes of supply relative to that of the engine overall Once the forecast costs and the
scopes of supply have been agreed, each party 1s then accountable for its own mcurred costs The suppliers’ contributions to the costs

of developing the engine include (1) development work, and/or (n) development components supphed, andfor {in) non-refundable cash
payments No accounting entnes are recorded where the suppliers undertake development work or where development components are
supphed Cash sums recewved are recognised in the profit and loss account to match the expensing of the Group’s related costs - where the
cash sums are receved 1n advance of the related costs being expensed or where the refated costs are capitalised as intangible assets, the
recogmtion of the cash received 1s deferred to match the recogmition of the related expense or the amortisation of the related intangible
asset respectively The payments to supphers of their shares of the programme revenues for their production components are charged to
the profit and loss account as programme revenues arise

The Company has arrangements with partners who do not undertake development work or supply parts Such arrangements are
considered to be financial instruments as defined by FRS 25 financial instruments Presentation and are accounted for using the amortised
cost method

Government investment

Where a government or similar body has previously invested in a development pragramme, the Company treats payments to that body as
royalty payments, which are matched to related sales

Research and development

The charge to the profit and loss account consists of research and development expenditure incurred in the year, excluding known
recoverable costs on contracts, contnbutions to shared engimeering programmes and apphcation engineering Apphication engineering
expenditure, incurred in the adaptation of existing technology to new products, 1s capitahsed and amortised over the programme hfe, up
to a maximum of 15 years, where both the technical and commercial nisks are considered to be sufficiently low

Interest

Interest receivable/payable is credited/charged to the profit and loss account using the effective interest method
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Taxation

Proviston for taxation 1s made at the current rate and for deferred taxation at the projected rate on all timing differences that have
ongmated, but not reversed at the balance sheet date Deferred tax s calculated using the enacted or substantively enacted rates that are
expected to apply when the asset or hability 15 settled

Deferred tax assets are recogmsed only to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
assets can be utihsed

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in overseas currencies are translated into local currency at the exchange rate ruling on the date of the transaction Monetary
assets and habilities denorminated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate ruling at the year-end Exchange differences
arsing on forergn exchange transactions and the retranslation of assets and liabilities 1nto sterling at the rate ruling at the year-end are
taken inte account in determiming profit on ordinary actiities before taxation

Finanaal instruments
FRS 26 Financral instruments recogmtion and Measurement requires the classification of financial instruments into separate categories
for which the accounting requirernent 15 different Rolls-Royce has classified its financial instruments as follows

- Short-term mvestments are generally dassified as available for sale
« Short-term deposits (principally camprising funds held with banks and other financial institutions), trade receivables and short-term
mvestments not designated as available for sale are classified as loans and receivables

- Borrowings, trade creditors and financial RRSAs are classified as other labilities
+ Dervatives, comprising foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and commodity swaps are classified as held for tradmg

Financial instruments are recogrised at the contract date and initially measured at fair value Their subsequent measurement depends
on their classification

« Available for sale assets are held at fair value Changes in fair value ansimg from changes m exchange rates are mcluded in the profit and

loss account All other changes in fair value are taken to reserves On disposal, the accumulated changes in value recorded in reserves are

included in the gan or loss recorded 1n the profit and loss account

Loans and recewables and other habihities are held at amortised cost and not revalued (except for changes in exchange rates, which are

inctuded 1n the profit and loss account) unless they are included m a fair value hedge accounting relationship Where such a relationship

exists, the instruments are revalued n respect of the nsk being hedged If mstruments held at amortised cost are hedged, generally by

interest rate swaps, and the hedges are effective, the carrymng values are adjusted for changes 1n fair value, which are included in the

profit and toss account

- Held for trading mstruments are held at fair value Changes in fair value are included n the profit and loss account unless the
instrument s mcluded in a cash flow hedge If the instruments are included in a cash flow hedging relationship, which 15 effective,
changes m value are taken to reserves When the hedged forecast transaction occurs, amounts previously recorded in reserves are
recognised in the profit and Joss account

.

Financial instruments are derecogmsed on expiry or when all contractual rights and obhgations are transferred

Hedge accounting

The Company does not apply hedge accounting 1n respect of forward foreign exchange contracts held to manage the cash flow exposures
of forecast future transactions denormnated m foreign currencies

The Company does not apply hedge accounting m respect of commodity swaps held to manage the cash flow exposures of forecast future
transactions in those commodities

The Comnpany applies hedge accounting i respect of transactions entered mto to manage the fair value and cash flow exposures of its
borrowings Forward forexgn exchange contracts are held to manage the fair value exposures of borrowings denominated n foreign
currencies and are designated as fair value hedges Interest rate swaps are held to manage the interest rate exposures and are designated
as fair value or cash flow hedges of fixed and floating rate borrowings respectively

Changes in the fair values of denvatives designated as far value hedges and changes in fair value of the related hedged item are
recogmised directly in the profit and loss account

Changes in the fair values of denvatives that are designated as cash flow hedges and are effective are recogmsed directly in reserves Any
meffectiveness in the hedging relationships 1s included in the profit and loss account The amounts deferred in reserves are recognised m
the profit and loss account to match the recogmtion of the hedged item

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrurment expires or 1s sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer quahifies for
hedge accounting At that time, for cash flow hedges and»f the forecast transactwon remains probable, any cumulative gam or loss on the
hedging Instrument recogrused in reserves, 1s retamed 1n reserves until the forecast transaction occurs If a hedged transaction 1s no
longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss previously recogmsed 1n reserves is transferred to the profit and loss account
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The portion of a gain or loss on an instrument used to hedge a net mvestment 1n a foreign operation that 1s determined to be an effective
hedge 15 recogrused directly in reserves The imeffective portion 1s recognised immediately in the profit and loss account

Certification costs and participation fees

Costs incurred 1n respect of meeting regulatory certification requirements for new civil engine/arrcraft combimations and payments made
to airframe manufacturers for this, and participation fees, are carned forward in intangible assets to the extent that they can be recovered
out of future sales and are charged to the profit and loss account over the programme hfe, up to a maximum of 15 years from the entry-
into-service of the product

Software
The cost of acquiring software that 1s not speaific to an item of tangible fixed assets 1s classified as an intangible asset

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairments in vatue

Depreciation 1s provided on a straight-lime basis to write-off the cost or valuation, less the estimated residual value, over the estimated
useful life Estimated useful hves are as follows

1) Land and buildings, as advised by the Group's professional valuers
a) Freehold buildings — five to 45 years (average 26 years)
b) Leasehold land and buildings ~ lower of valuers’ estimates or peried of lease
c) Nodepreciation s provided in respect of freehold land

1) Plant and equipment = five to 25 years (average 13 years)

) Aircraft and engines — five to 20 years {(average 10 years)

w)No depreciation 1s provided on assets in the course of construction

Impairment of fixed assets

Impairment of fixed assets 1s considered 1n accordance with FRS 11 imparrment of Fixed Assets and Goodwrll Where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent of other assets, imparment 1s considered for the income-generating umt to which the asset
belongs

Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually Other fixed assets are assessed for any indications of
imparrment annually If any indication of impairment s 1dentified, an impairment test 1s performed to estimate the recoverable amount

Recoverable amount 1s the higher of value in use or fair value less costs to sell —if this i1s readily available The value in use 1s the present
value of future cash flows using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the time value of money and the rnisk specific to the asset

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or iIncome-generating umit} 1s estimated to be below the carrying value, the carrying value s reduced
to the recoverable amount and the impairment loss recogrused as an expense

Operating leases

Payments made and rentals received under operating lease arrangements are charged/credited to the mcome statement on a straight-ine
basis

Stock

Stock and work 1in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net reahisable value on a first-n, first-out basis Cost comprnises direct
matenals and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads, including depreciation of property, plant and equipment, that
have been incurred m bringing the inventories to their present location and condition Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling prices less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selking and distribution

Provisions

Provisions are recogmsed when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and 1t 1s probable that the Company will
be required to settle that obligation Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
cbhgation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the effect 1s matenial

Post-retiremnent benefits

Pensions and similar benefits are accounted for under FRS 17 Post-retirement Benefits For defined benefit plans, obhgations are measured
at discounted present value whilst plan assets are recorded at fair value The service and financing costs of such plans are recogmsed
separately 1n the profit and loss account, service costs are spread systematically over the hives of employees and financing costs are
recogrused in the penods in which they anise Actuanal gains and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of total recognmised
gams and losses Surplus in schemes are recognised as assets only if they represent economic benefits that are available to the Company in
the future

Payments to defined contnbution schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due
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Share-based payments

The Company participates in Rolls-Royce Holdings plc employee share-based payment arrangements These are equity-settled
arrangements and are measured at fair value {excluding the effect of non-market based vesting conditions) at the date of grant The fair
value 1s expensed on a straight-ine basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of shares or options that will
eventually vest The costs of these share-based payments are treated as a capital contmibution from the parent company Any payments
made by the Company to1ts parent company, in respect of these arrangements, are treated as a return of this capital contribution

The fair values of the share-based payment arrangements are measured as follows

1} ShareSave — using the binomial pricing method,

n) Performance Share Plan — using a pricing model adjusted to reflect non-entitlement to dividends (or equivalent) and the Total
Shareholder Return market based condition,

m} Annual performance Related Award plan and free shares under the Share Incentive plan —share price on the date of the award

See note 17 for further description of the share-based payment plans

2 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS

2014 2013
Highest pand Other  Hhighest pand Other
director directors director directers
£000 £000 £000 £000
Aggregate emoluments excluding deferred share plans 1,337 3,340 1,793 3,959
Aggregate amounts relating to deferred share plans 2,512 2,714 330 3,406
Aggregate value of Company contributwons to Company defined contribution pensions schemes 42 349 50 395
Accrued pensiwon of highest paid director - nfa - n/a
Gains reahsed on exercise of share options? - nfa - 6
2014 2013
Number Number
Number of directors with accruing retirement benefits
Defined contnibution schemes 2 2
Defined benefit schemes? 1 3
Number of directors exercising share options - 1
Number of directors receving shares as part of long term incentives schemes 4 4
! Includes gams under the ShareSave plan
2 Dnrectors were contributing members of both defined contnibution and defined benefit schames (2013 one director)
3 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Certification
costs and
parhiapation  Software and
fees other Total
£m m £m
Cost
At 1January 2014 839 490 1,329
Additions 107 67 174
At 31 December 2014 946 557 1,503
Accumulated amortisation
AtlJanuary 2014 257 200 457
Charge for the year 40 55 95
At 31 Decemnber 2014 297 255 552
Net book value
At 31 December 2014 649 302 951
At 1 January 2014 582 290 872
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4 TANGIBLE ASSETS

Ltand and Plant and Awrcraftand In course of
buildings equipment engines  construction Total
£m £m Em £Em fm
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2014 486 1,668 57 302 2,513
Reclassifications 71 50 7 (128} -
Additrons 8 64 24 163 259
Transferred from Assets held for resale’ - - (5) - {5)
Disposals (6) (29) (13) - (a8}
At 31 December 2014 559 1,753 70 337 2,719
Accumulated depreciation
At 1January 2014 179 1,039 25 - 1,243
Reclassifications - {6} 6 - -
Charge for the year 18 137 7 - 162
Transferred from ‘Assets held for resale’ - - {3 - (3)
Disposals (4) {25) (2) - (31)
At 31 December 2014 193 1,145 33 - 1,371
Net book value
At 31 December 2014 366 608 37 337 1,348
At 1 January 2014 307 629 32 302 1,270
2014 2013
Tangible fixed assets include £m £m
Net book value of finance leased assets 9 10
Non-depreciable land 68 68
Land and buildings at cost or valuation comprise
Cost 397 327
Valuation at 31 December 1996 162 159
559 486
On an historical cost basis the net book value of land and buitdings would have been as follows
Cost 533 456
Depreciation {189) (175)
344 281
Capital expenditure commitments 71 145
5 INVESTMENTS
Subsidhary
undertakings® Jomnt ventures®
Shares Shares
at cost? at cost Loans Total
£m fm £m £m
At 1 January 2014 1,749 36 34 70
Additions 3 5 2 7
Busmess disposal - {5) - (5)
Impairment (28) - - -
At 31 December 2014 1,724 36 36 72

t The principal subsidiary and joint venture undertakings are hsted on pages 123 and 124

* The Company has guaranteed the uncalled share capital of Nightingale Insurance Limited one of its subsidiaries At 31 December 2014 this guarantee was £25m (2013 £25m)
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6 STOCKS
2014 2013
im £m
Raw matenals 58 75
Workn progress 378 385
Finished goods 793 764
Payments on account a 9
1,237 1,237
7 DEBTORS
Falling due within one year Falling due afterone year
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Trade debtors 379 300 - -
Amounts recoverable on contracts 12 8 182 182
Amounts owed by —subsidiary undertakings 3,646 1,565 - -
—Jomt ventures 293 335 — -
— parent undertaking 1,311 845 - —
Deferred tax assets (note 12) - - 442 215
Other debtors 431 328 2 -
Prepayments and accrued income 69 66 50 78
6,141 3,447 676 475
8 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Detals of the Company's pohicies on the use of financial mstruments are given in the accounting policies on pages 108 to 111
The farr values of other financial instruments held by the Company are as follows
Foreign Dervate
exchange Commodity  Interestrate fimanaial Finanoial
contracts contracts contracts  mstruments RR5As Total
£m £m Em £m im £m
At 31 December 2014
Assets  —amounts falling due within one year 103 - - 103 — 103
—amounts falhing due after one year 59 - 78 137 - 137
Labihities —amounts falhng due within one year {156) {20) - (176} {42) (218)
—amounts falling due after one year {545) {23) (27) {595) (158) (753)
(539) {43) 51 {531) (200) {731)
At 31 Decemnber 2013
Assets  —amounts falling due withn one year 81 2 - 83 - 83
—amounts falling due after one year 644 - 43 687 - 687
Liabihties — amounts falling due withn one year (85) (16) (1) {102} (40) (142}
—amounts falhng due after one year {143) (25) (48) (215) (187) (403)
497 (39) (6) 452 (227) 235

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company uses vanious financial mstruments to manage its exposure to movements in foreign exchange rates The Company uses
commodity swaps to manage 1ts exposure to movements m the price of commodities (jet fuel and base metals) To hedge the currency risk
associated with a borrowing denominated in US dollars, the Company has currency derivatives designated as part of a fair value hedge
The Company uses terest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and interest rate caps to manage 1ts exposure to movements in interest
rates Where the effectiveness of the hedge relationship in a cash flow hedge 1s demonstrated, changes in the fair value that are deemed
effective are included 1n the hedging reserve and released to match actual payments on the hedged tem
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Movements in the fair values of derivative financial instruments were as follows

Foreign
exchange Commodity Interest rate

mstruments mstruments instrurments Total

£m £m im im

At1January 2013 248 (13) 38 323
Movernents in fair value hedges! 3 - (91) (88)
Movements m other denvative contracts 278 (35) - 243
Contracts settled (32 9 {3) (26)
At 1January 2014 497 (39) (6) 452
Movements in fair value hedges? 3 - 57 60
Movements in other denwvative contracts (888} (15} - {903)
Contracts settled {151) 11 - {140}
At 31 December 2014 (539) (43) 51 (531)

t Gan on related hedged items £60m {2013 £88m)

Where applicable, market values have been used to determine fair values Where market values are not available, fair values have been
calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at prevaihng interest rates and translating at prevailing exchange rates

FINANCIAL RISK AND REVENUE SHARING ARRANGEMENTS (RRSAs)

The Company has financial habihities arising from financial RRSAs These financial habilities are valued at each reporting date using the
amortised cost method This involves calculating the present value of the forecast cash flows of the arrangements using the internal rate

of return at the mception of the arrangements as the discount rate

The amortised cost values of financtal RRSAs were as follows

2014 2013

£m £m
At 1January (227) (226)
Cash paid to partners 41 50
Financing charge (12) {18)
Exchange adjustments (8) (35)
Changes n forecast payments 6 -
At 31 December {200) (227)

9 BORROWINGS

Falimg due within one year

Falling due after one year

2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m im £m
Unsecured

Overdrafts 1,045 605 - -
Bank loans - 200 200 200
7 375% Notes 2016 £200m - - 200 200
6 55% Notes 2015 US$83m? 55 - - 55
6 75% Notes 2019 £500m? - — 547 535
2125% Notes 2021 €750m!? - - 615 611
3 375% Notes 2026 £375m? - - 395 350
1,100 805 1,957 1,951

Repayable — otherwise than by instalments
Between one and two years 200 55
Between two and five years 747 200
After five years 1,010 1,696
1,957 1,951

! These notes are the subject of interest rate swap agreements under which the Company has undertaken to pay floating rates of interest and currency swaps which form a fair value

hedge

t These notes are the subject of interest rate swap agreements under which the Company has undertaken to pay fleating rates of interest which form a faiz value hedge
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Falling due withim one year

Falling due after one year

2014 2013 2014 2013

£m fm £m fm

Payments recewved on account! 386 444 778 651

Trade creditors 6522 555 - 14

Amounts owed to — subsidiary undertakings 4,053 3,458 - -

—joint ventures 230 182 4 1

Corporate taxation 82 84 - -

Other taxation and social secunity 35 33 - -

Other creditors 1,133 1181 207 84

Accruals and deferred income 1,029 1,003 410 380

7,570 6,940 1,399 1,130

! Includes payments received from joint ventures 73 65 Q9 151
11 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

At Unused Charged At

31 December amounts  to profit and 31 December

2013 reversed loss account Utihsed 2014

£m fm £m fm fm

Warranties and guarantees 28 - 1 {1) 28

Contract loss 17 (4} (2) - 11

Customer fimancing 71 (34) 15 {7} 45

Restructuring 24 - 67 (25) 66

Other - - 24 - 24

140 {38) 105 (33) 174

Provisions for warranties and guarantees pnmarily relate to products sold and generally cover a period of up to three years

Provisions for contract loss and restructuring are generally expected to be utihsed within iwo years

Customer financing provisions cover guarantees provided for asset values and/or financing as descnbed in note 18 Timing of utihsation 1s

uncertain
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12 DEFERRED TAXATION

im
At 1January 2014 132
Amount credited to profit and loss account 202
Amount charged to statement of total recogmsed gans and losses {152)
At 31 December 2014 182

There are other deferred tax assets totalling £162m (2013 £102m) that have not been recognised on the basis that their future economic
benefit1s uncertamn

The UK corporation tax rate reduced to 21% from 1 Apnl 2014 and will reduce further to 20% from 1 Apnil 2015 These reductions were
substantively enacted on 2 July 2013 As the reduction to 20% was substantively enacted prior to the year end, the closing deferred tax
assets and habilities have been calculated at this rate

The amount of deferred tax asset recognised relating to advance corporat:on tax has reduced during the year due to a decrease i the net
deferred tax habilities against which the asset can be offset The main reasons for this are the unreahsed fair value change on derwative
contracts

The analysis of the deferred tax position 1s as follows

2014 2013
im £m
Fixed asset timing differences (72) (84)
Qther timing differences {8) 17
Pensions and other post-retirement scheme benefits (260) (83)
Foreign exchange and commodity fimancial assets and hallites 135 (92)
Losses 373 307
Advance corporation tax - 61
Research and development expenditure credit withholdmg tax 14 6
182 132
Included within
Debtors —amounts falling due after one year 442 215
Post-retirement scheme —surpluses (260) (83)
—deficits - -
182 132

The above figures exclude taxation payable on capital gains which might anise from the sale of fixed assets at the values at which they are
stated in the Company’s balance sheet
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13 POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEMES
For the defined benefit schemes the assets are held in separate trustee admimistered funds and employees are entitled to retirement
benefits based on either their final or career average salaries and length of service

The valuations of the defined benefit schemes are based on the most recent funding valuations, updated by the scheme actuares to
31 December 2014 The most recent funding valuations of the main schemes were

Scheme Valuation date
Rolls-Royce Pension Fund 31 March 2012
Rolls Royce Group Pension S5¢cheme S April 2013
Vickers Group Pension Scheme 31 March 2013

The prnincipal actuarial assumptions used at the balance sheet date were as follows

2014 2013

% %

Rate of mcrease i salanes 42 45
Discount rate 36 44
Expected rate of return on scheme assets 28 40
Inflation assumption? 32 35

! Forthe UK schemes this s the assumptions for the Retail Price Index The Consumer Price Index 1s assumed to be 1 1% lower

The discount rates are determmined by reference to the market yields on AA rated corporate bonds For the main schemes, the rate 1s
determined by using the profile of forecast benefit payments to derive a weighted average discount rate from the yield curve Forless
sigmficant schemes the rate1s determined as the market yield at the average duration of the forecast benefit payments The discount
rates above are the weighted average of those for each scheme, based on the value of their respective habiities

The overall expected rate of return s calculated by weighting the individual returns expected from each asset class (see below) in
accordance with the actual asset balance in the schemes' investment portfolios

The mortahty assumptions adepted for the pension schemes are derived from the SAPS actuanal tables, with future improvements in line
with the CM| 2014 core projections and long-term improvements of 1 25% Where appropriate, these are adjusted to take account of the
relevant scheme's actual expenience The resulting range of life expectancies in the principal schemes are as follows

MALE LIFE EXPECTANCY FROM AGE 65

2014 2013
Current pensioner 22 Syears 22 5years
Future pensioner currently aged 45 24 1years 24 2 years

Other demographic assumptions have been set on advice from the relevant actuary, having regard to the latest trends mn scheme
experience and other relevant data The assumptions are reviewed and updated as necessary as part of the penodic actuanal valuation
of the schemes

AMOUNTS RECOGNISED !N THE BALANCE SHEET

2014 2013
£m im
Present value of funded obligations {10,506) {8,970)
Fair value of scheme assets 12,038 9,539
Unrecogmsed surplus! {233) (154)
Surplus 1,299 415
Related deferred tax hability (260) (83)
Net asset recogmsed in the balance sheet 1,039 332
Analysed as
Post-retirernent scheme surpluses 1,039 332

Post-retitement scheme deficits - -

* Where a surplus has arisen on a scheme n accordance with FRS 17 Retirement henefits, the surplus 1s recogmsed as an asset onlyif it represents a future economic benefit available to
the Company Any surplus in excess of this benefit 1s not recogmsed in the balance sheet Surpiuses have anisen largely as a result of differences between the actuanal and FRS 17
valuation assumptions
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13 POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS CONTINUED
CHANGES IN PRESENT VALUE OF DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

2014 2013
£m £m
Atllanuary {8,970) (8,533)
Current service cost (141) (138)
Past-service cost 18 (66)
Finance cost {388) (370)
Contributions by employees (3) {3)
Benefits pard out 375 334
Actuanial losses (1,407} (194)
Disposal of business 10 -
At 31 December (10,506} (8,970)
CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE OF SCHEME ASSETS
2014 2013
£im im
At1January 9,539 9,734
Expected return on asseis 379 301
Contributions by employer 247 235
Contributions by employees 3 3
Benefits pawd out (375) (334)
Actuanal gaing 2,245 {400)
At 31 December 12,038 9,539
Actual return on plan assets 2,624 (99)
The fair value of the scheme assets and the expected rates of return at 31 December were as follows
2014 2013
Expected rate Expected rate
of return  Market value of return  Market value
% fm % im
LDI portfoliot 25 10,763 36 7,592
Longevity swap? 36 {(184) 44 {156)
Equities 57 983 69 1,151
Sovereign debt 24 41 36 169
Corporate bonds - - 41 527
Other 22 435 36 256
28 12,038 40 5539

! A portfoho of gilt and swap contracts backed by LIBOR generating assets that 1s designed to hedge the majonity of the interest rate and inflation risks associated with the schemes

cbhgations

? Under the longevity swap the scheme has agreed an average !ife expectancy with a counterparty (f pensioners live longer than expected the counterparty will make payments tothe
scheme to offset the additional cost of paying pensions If the reverse apphas the cost of paying pensions will be reduced but the scheme will be requited to make payments to the

counterparty

The scheme assets do not include any financial mstruments of the Rolis-Royce Holdings plc group, nor any property occupied by, or other

assets used by, the group

The expected rate of return for LDI portfohos i1s determmed by the imphait yield on the portfolio at the balance sheet date

The expected rates of return on individual categonies of scheme assets are determined by reference to gilt yields Equities and corporate
bonds are assumed to generate returns that exceed the return from gilts by 3 25% and 0 5% per annum respectively

The expected rates of return above are the werghted average of the rates for each scheme
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13 POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS CONTINUED

FUTURE CONTRIBUTIONS
The Company expects to contnbute approximately £173 milhon teits defined benefit schemes in 2015

SENSITIVITIES
The mvestment strategies are designed to hedge the nisks from interest rates and mflation on an econormic basis The impacts of the
prinapal sensitivities are

2014 2013
£m £m
Defined benefit obligations —0 25% reduction in discount rate? {466) (408)
Defined benefit assets — 0 25% reduction in interest rates? 586 461
Defined benefit obhigations —0 25% increase in imflation (234) (196)
Defined benefit assets —0 25% increase ininflation 204 181
Defined benefit obhgations -longevity ncreases by one year (247) (210}
Defined benefit obhigations - 0 25% increase in rate of mcrease m salaries (86) (80)
HISTORY OF DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEMES
The history of the schemes for the current and prior years 1s as follows
2014 2013 2012 20m 2010
£m £m im £m £m
Balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obhgations {10,5086) (8,970) {8,533) (7,713) {7039)
Fair value of scheme assets 12,038 9539 9734 9,519 7,783
Unrecegmsed surplus {233) (154) (187} (696} (164)
Asset 1,299 415 1,014 1,110 580
Experience garns/{iosses)
Actuanal gams/{losses) on scheme assets 2,245 {400) (31) 1,407 444
Expenience {losses)/gans on scheme habilities (1,407) (194) {660} (617) (142)
Movement 1n unrecognised surplus (79} 33 509 (532) (89)
Total amount recogmsed in the statement of total recogrised gans and losses 759 {561} (182) 258 213
Cumulative amount recognised in the statement of total recogrised gains and losses! (6} (765) (204) (22) {280)

* SinceJanuary 1 2002
DEFINED CONTRIBUTION SCHEMES

The Company operates a number of defined contribution schemes The total expense recogmsed 1n the profit and loss account was
£25 milhon (2013 £23 milhon)

14 SHARE CAPITAL

Equity
ordinary shares Normnal
of 20p each value
Milhons £m
Authornised
At 1January and 31 December 2014 2,000 400
Issued and fully paid
At 1January and 31 December 2014 1,631 326
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15 MOVEMENTS IN CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Non distnbutable reserves

Share Share Revaluation Other  Profitand loss
capital premuum TeseTve Teserves account Total equity
fm £m im £m £m £m
At 1 January 2014 326 631 26 167 773 1,923
Total recogmsed gains relating to the year - - - - 260 260
Transfers between reserves - - (s} - 5 -
Share-based payments — direct to equity - - - - 15 15
At 31 December 2014 326 631 21 167 1,053 2,198
16 OPERATING LEASE ANNUAL COMMITMENTS
2014 2013
£m im
Leases of land and buildings which expire
Within one year
Between one and five years 2 2
After five years 10 10
Other leases which expire
Within one year 1 2
Between one and five years 3 5

After five years - _

17 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
EFFECT OF SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS ON THE COMPANY'S RESULTS

2014 2013
£m £m
Total expense recogmsed for equity-settled share-based payment transactions 18 37

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLANS IN OPERATION DURING THE YEAR
During the year, the Company participated in the following share-based payment plans operated by Rolls-Royce Holdings plc

PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN (PSP)

This plan involves the award of shares to participants subject to performance conditiens Vesting of the performance shares 1s based
on the achievement of both non-market based conditions (EPS and cash flow per share) and a market based performance condition
(Total Shareholder Return = TSR) over a three-year pemiod

SHARESAVE SHARE OPTION PLAN

Based on a three or five year monthly savings contract, ehgible employees are granted share options with an exercise price of up to 20%
below the share price when the contract s entered into Vesting of the options 1s not subject to the achievement of a performance target
The plan1s HM Revenue & Customs approved

EXECUTIVE SHARE OPTION PLAN (ESOP)

This plan involved the grant of market value share options to participants It terminated in 200% and no further grants may be made
Remaming options under the plan are subject to a non-market based performance condition [growth in EPS) and have a maxirmum
contractual hfe of ten years

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE RELATED AWARD (APRA) PLAN DEFERRED SHARES

A proportion of the APRA annual incentive schemes dehvered in the form of a deferred share award The release of deferred share awards
1s not dependent on the achievement of any further performance conditions other than that participants remain employed by the
Company for two years from the date of the award n order to retam the full number of shares During the two year deferral period,
participants are entitled to receive dividends, or equivalent, on the deferred shares

120 Rolls-Royce plc Annual report 2014




L

Financial Staterments

17 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED
MOVEMENTS IN THE COMPANY’S SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLANS DURING THE YEAR

ShareSave ESOP PSP APRA

Weighted Weighted

average average
Number  exercise price Number exercise price Number Number
Millions Pence MaThans Pence Milhons MiThons
Outstanding at 1 January 2013 16 6 445p 01 77p 79 22
Granted 57 961p - - 14 10
Additional entatlements ansing from TSR performance - - - - 06 —-
Forferted (03) 499p - ~ {03) (01)
Exercised {63) 405p (01 77p (2 8) (13)
Qutstanding at 1 January 2014 157 646 0 = - 68 18
Granted - - 17 07
Additional entitlements ansing from T5R performance - - 04 -
Forfeited (05) 757p (07) (01)
Exercised (02 469p (2 4) (10)
Outstanding at 31 December 2014 150 646D 58 14

As share options are exercised throughout the year, the weighted average share price during the year of 1013p (2013 1123p) s

representative of the weighted average share price at the date of exercise The rmiddle market closing price at 31 December 2014 was 870p

(2013 1275p)
There were no exercisable options as at 31 December 2013

FAIR VALUES OF SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLANS

The weighted average fair values per share of equity-settled share-based payment plans granted during the year, estimated at the date of

grant are as follows

2013 2013
PSP —25% TSR uphft 1105p 1128p
PSP —50% TSR uplift 1227p 1254p
ShareSave — 3 year grant n/a 287p
ShareSave -5 year grant n/a 349p
APRA 984p 1027p

Expected volatility 1s based on the histonical volatiity of Rolls-Royce Haldings plc’s share price over the seven years pnor to the grant or

award date Expected dividends are based on Rolls-Royce Holdings plc’s payments to shareholders in respect of the previous year

PSP

The fair value of shares awarded under the PSP1s calculated using a pricing model that takes account of the non-entitlement to dividends
{or equivalent) during the vesting period and the market-based performance condition based on expectations about volatihty and the
correlation of share price returns in the group of FTSE 100 companies and which incorporates into the valuation the interdependency
between share price performance and TSR vesting This adjustment increases the fair value of the award relative to the share price at the

date of grant

SHARESAVE

The fair value of the options granted under the ShareSave plan 1s calculated using a bimormal pricing model that assumes that participants
will exercise their options at the beginning of the six month window if the share price 1s greater than the exercise price Otherwiseit
assumes that options are held until the expiration of their contractual term This results 1n an expected hfe that falls somewhere between

the start and end of the exercise window

APRA

The fair value of shares awarded under APRA 15 calculated as the share price on the date of the award, excluding expected dividends (or

equivalent)
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18 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In connection with the sale of 1ts products the Company will, on some occasions, provide financing support for its customers The
Company’s contingent habiities relating to fimancing arrangements are spread over many years and relate to a number of customers
and a broad preduct pertfolio

Contingent habihties are disclosed on a discounted basis As the directors consider the hkelihood of these contingent habihties crystallising
to be remote, this amount does not represent a value that 1s expected to crystallise However, the amounts are discounted at the
Company’s borrowing rate to reflect better the time span over which these exposures could anse The contingent habihties are
denominated in US dollars As the Company does not adopt cash flow hedge account:ng for forecast foreign exchange transactions,

this amount 1s reported together with the sterling equivalent at the reporting date spot rate

The discounted value of the total gross contingent habihities relating to financing arrangements on all delivered aircraft less msurance
arrangements and relevant provisions were

2014 2013

£m sm £m sm
Gross contingent habihities 388 605 356 589
Value of secunty” (245} (382) (217) {360)
Indemmnities (84) (132) (80) {132}
Net commitments 59 91 59 97
Net commitments with secunty reduced by 20%’ 90 140 78 128
! Security inchudes cash collateral of 42 66 50 83

2 Although sensitivity calculations are complex the reduction of the relevant secunity by 20% 1llustrates the sensitivity of the contingent abihity to this assumption

There are also net contingent habilities i respect of undehivered aircraft, but 1t 15 not considered practicable to estimate these as delhiveries
can be many years 1n the future, and the relevant financaing will only be put in place at the approprate time

Contingent habihties exist in respect of guarantees provided by the Company 1n the ordinary course of business for product delivery,
performance and rehabiity The Company has, in the normal course of business, entered into arrangements m respect of export finance,
performance bonds, countertrade obhgations and mimor misceltaneous items The Company s party to legal actions and claims which
arise in the ordinary course of business, some of which are for substantial amounts As a consequence of the insolvency of aninsurer as
previously reported, the Company 1s na longer fully insured against known and potential claims from employees who worked for certam of
the Company’s UK based businesses for a period priot to the acquisition of those businesses by the Company While the outcome of some
of these matters cannot precisely be foreseen, the directors do not expect any of these arrangements, legal actions or claims, after
allowing for provisions atready made, to result in sigmificant loss to the Company

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other compames within 1ts group, the
Company considers these to be msurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee
contract as a contigent habihty until such time as 1t becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the
guarantee At 31 Decernber 2014, there were Company guarantees in respect of joint ventures amounting to £9m (2013 £7m)

The Company participates in a Cash Pooling Arrangement Under the Pooling Arrangement the Company benefits from more favourable
nterest rates than would be available outside of the Pooling Arrangement as well as more streamhned treasury functions As part of the
Pooling Arrangement, the Comparny cross-guarantees the borrowings of other pooling participants At 31 December 2014 these
guarantees amounted to £8m (2013 £8m)

19 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company 1s a whally owned subsidiary of Rolls-Royce Group plc and therefore has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 8 Related
party disclosures not to disclose related party transactions with 1its parent company and other wholly owned group companies

There are no sigmficant related party transactions with non wholly owned group companies

The aggregated balances with joint ventures are shown in notes 7 and 10

20 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The ultimate holding company 1s Rolls-Royce Holdings plc, incorporated in Great Britain The financial staternents for Rolls-Royce Holdings
plc may be obtained from the Company Secretary, Rolls-Royce Holdings plc, 62 Buckingham Gate, London SW1E 6AT
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SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES

The compames listed below are indirectly held by Rolls-Royce plc unless marked® Each company’s principal place of business 1s1ts country
of incorporation and the effective group interest 15 100%

In accordance with Section 410 of the Companies Act 2006, the subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates are those where the
results or financial position, in the opiman of the directors, principally affect the financial statements A list of all related undertakimgs will
be included in the Company’s annual return te Companies House

Country of
ncorporation

Principal actvity

Rolls-Royce Brasil Linitada®

Brazil

Aera engine reparr and overhaul and marine aftermarket support services

Rolls-Royce Canada Lirmted Canada Aero engine sales, service and overhaul

MTU Engineering {Suzhow) Company Limited China Service and spare partscentre

Rolls-Royce Marine Manufacturing Chma Manufacture and supply of manne equipment and manne aftermarket

{Shanghai} Limited support services

Compostte Technology and Applications Limited’ England Development of aero engine fan blades and fan cases

MTU UK rmited England Sale and services of off-highway diesel engmes

Rolls-Royce Controls and Data Services Lirmted England Development and manufacture of aero engine contrals and momitoring systems

Rolls-Royce International imited” England International support and commeraial information services

Rolls-Rayce Leasing Limited” England Engine leasing

Rolls-Royee Mamne Electrical Systems Limited England Marine electrical systems

Rolls-Royce Marine Power Operations Limited” England Nuclear submarine propulsion systems

Rolls-Royce Power Development Lirmited” England Generation of electnaty from mdependent power projects

Rolis-Royce Power Engineering plc® England Marine gystems

Rolis-Royce Total Care Services Limited” England Aero engine aftermarket support services

Vinters Engineening Limited England Production repair and overhaul of power generation, transmission and conversion
equipment for mihtary and commertaal activities

Rolls-Royce OY AB Finland Manufacture of marine winches and propeller systems

Rolls-Royce Civil Nuclear SAS France Instrumentation and conirol systems and Iife-cycle management for nuclear power
plants

Rolls-Royce Techmcal Support SARL france Aeto engine project support

LOrange GmbH Germany Development and production of high-pressure injection systems {or diesel engines

MTU Fnednchshafen GmbH Germany Development, production and distnbution of gas turbines and engines

MTU Onsite Energy GmbH Germany Sales and service of gas engines

MTL Onsite Energy Systems GmbH Germany Manufacture and distnbutor of diesel-powered generating sets

Rolls-Royce Deutschland Ltd & Co KG Germany Aero engine design, development and manufacture

Rolls-Royce Power Systems AG Germany Suppher of engimes and power trams for maring propulsion, disttibuted power
generatien and industral off-lighway sectors

Nightingale Insurance Lirited Guernsey Insurance services

MTU Hong Kong Litmited Hong Kong  Distributor for of f-highway products and after-sales service

Rolls-Royce India Private Limited India Desel engine project management and customer support

Rolls-Royce Marnine India Private Limited Indra Provision of marine support services

Rolls-Royce Operations (India) Private Limited Indsa Engmeering support services

Europea Microfusioni Aerespaziai Sp A” Italy Manufacture of gas turbine engime castings

MTU Itaha 5rl Italy Distributor for off-lighway products and after-sales service

MTU Benelux BV Netherlands Sales and after-sales support for diesel engines

Bergen Engines AS Norway Design and manufacture of medium-speed diesel engines

Rolls-Royce Marine AS Norway Design and manufacture of ship equipment

MTU Asia Pte Liimited Singapore  Distnibutor of diesel engines and spare parts

Rolls-Royce Simgapore Pte Limited Singapore  Aero engme parts manufacturing and engme assembly and marine aftermarket
support services

MTU South Africa {(Pty) Limited South Africa Distnibutor of off-laghway products and after-sales service

MTU Ibérica Propulsionty EnergiaS L Spam Sales and service of transmission equipment with diesed and gas engines

Rolls-Royce AB Sweden Manufacture of marine propeller systems

MTU Motor Turbin Sanayive Tic AS Turkey Production of diesel engines and manufacturer of control systems

Data Systems & Solutions LLC us Instrumentation and control systems and hife-cycle management for nuclear
power plants

MTU America Inc us Sales and service of engmes and systems

Optimized Systems and Solutions Inc us Equipment health management and advanced data management services

PKMJ Techmeal Services Inc us Crvil nuclear engmeering services and software solutions

R Brooks Associates Inc Us Speaalst aivil nuclear reactor services

Rolls-Royce Corporation us Design, development and manufacture of gas turbine engmes

Rolls-Reyce Crosspointe LLC US Manufactunng facihty for aero engine parts

Rolls-Royce Defense Services Inc Us Aero engine repair and overhaul
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SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES

continued

Country of
mcerporation

Principal activity

Rolls-Royce Energy Systems Inc

uUs

Energy turbine generator packages

Rolis-Royce Engine Services — Qakland Inc

Us

Aeroengme repair and overhaul

Rolls-Royce High Temperature Composites Inc

us

Production of state-of-the art composite matenals

Rolls-Royce Marine North America nc

us

Design and manufacture of manne equipment and aftermarket support services

The companies hsted betow are indirectly held by Rolls-Royce plc unless marked® Each company’s principal place of busimess is its country

of incorporation

Countryof Class of Group
meoTporation shares % of class held interest held %
Shanxi North MTU Diesel Co Ltd” China Manufacturer of aero engine parts Orchnary 49 49
X1an XR Aero Components Co Lirmted® China Manufacturer of aero engine parts Ordinary 48 49
Airtanker Holdings Limited® England Strategic tanker aircraft PFl project Ordmary 20 20
Airtanker Services Limited” England Provision of aftermarket services for Ordinary 22 22
strategic tanker arcraft
Alpha Partners Leasing Lirited England Aero engine lgasing Agrdmary 100 50
Gentstics Holdings Limted” England Tratler mounted field mobile generatorsets Aordnary 100 50
Rolls-Royce Snecma Limited® England Aero engine collaboration B shares 100 50
TRT Lmited” England Aero engine turbine blade repair services  Bordmmary 100 495
Turbine Surface Technolegies Limited® England Aero engine turbine surface coatings B ordinary 100 50
Turbo-Umon Limited® England RB199 engine collaboration QOrdmary 40 40
Ashares 375
EPI Europrop International GmbH* Germany A400M engime collaboration Crdmary 28 28
{effective group interest held 35 5%)
EUROIJET Turbo GmbH® Germany £J200 engine collaboration Ordmary 33 33
{effective group interest held 39%)
MTU, Turbomeca, Rolls-Royce GmbH* Germany MTR390 engine collaboration Ordinary 333 333
N3 Engine Overhaul Services GmbH & Co KG Germany  Aeroengine repair and overhaul Ordinary 50 50
Hong Kong Aeto Engime Services Limited Hong Kong  Aero engine repair and overhaul Ordmary 45 45
International Aerospace Manufactuning Private India Manufacturer of aero engine parts Ordinary 50 50
Limited
Techjet Aerofoils Lirmted Israel Manufacturer of aero engine parts Aordinary 50 50
B ordnary 50
International Engine Componeni Overhaul Pte Singapore  Aeto engime repair and overhaul Ordinary 50 50
Limited
Singapare Aero Engine Services Private Limited Singapore  Aeroengine repar and overhaul Ordinary 30 30
{effective group interest 39%)
Industma de Turbo Propulsores SA® Spamn Aero engine component manufacture Ordinary 46 G 469
and maintenance
Alpha Leasing {US) LLC, Alpha Leasing (US) (No 2) us Aero engine leasing Partnerships -~ 50
LLC, Alpha Leasing (US) (No 4} LLC, Alpha Leasing (no equity
(US) (No 5) LLC, Alpha Leasing (US) (No &) LLC Alpha held}
teasing (US) {Na 7) LLC, Alpha Leasing {US) (No 8)
LLC RoMls-Royce & Partners Finance (US) LLC,
Rolls-Royce & Partners Finance (US) (No 2) LLC
Exostar LLC us Business to busimess internet exchange  Partnership  — 185
(no equity
held)
LG Fuel Cell Systems Inc us Development of fuel cells Common 32 32
Stock
Texas Aero Engine Services, LLC us Aero engme tepair and overhaul Partmership - 50
{no equity
held)
UNINCORPORATED
Light Helicopter Turbine Engine Company (LHTEC) us T800 engine development and market Partnership - 50
(no equity
held)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

to the members of Rolls-Royce Holdings plc only

We have audited the financial statements of Rolls-Royce ple for the
year ended 31 December 2014 set out on pages 52 10 122 The
finanoial reporting framework that has been apphed 1n the
preparation of the group finanaial statements is applicable law and
International Finanaial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by
the EU The finanaial reporting framework that has been appliedin
the preparation of the parent company financial statements s
apphcable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice)

This repert 1s made sclely to the company's members, as a body,

m accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Cornparmes Act 2006
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state tothe
company’s members those matters we are required to state to them
n an audstor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company’s members,

as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimons

we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibihities Staterment
set out on page 50, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for bemng satisfied that they give a
true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audrt, and express an
opinion on, the financial statements i accordance with apphcable
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and treland} Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A description of the scope of an audit of financal staiements
1s provided on the Finanaal Reporting Council's website at
www frc org uk/auditscopeukprivate

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In our opinion

+ the financal statements give a true and far view of the state of
the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December
and of the group’s profit for the year then ended,

- the group finanaial statements have been properly prepared
m accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the EU,

- the parent company finanaial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice,

the finanaal statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requitements of the Compames Act 2006

Financial Statements

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE CCMPANIES

ACT 2006

In our opimion the information gwven m the Strategic Report and the
Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the finanaal
statements are prepared i1s consistent with the finanaial statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPCRT BY EXCEPTION
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where
the Compamies Act 2006 requires us to report to youif,

M QuUr apinion

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us, or

» the parent company financal statements are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

« certamn disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law
are not made, or

+ we have not receved all the information and explanations
we require for our audit

JIMMY DABOO {SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London £E14 5GL

12 February 2015
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ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

Foreign exchange rate movements influence the reported income
statement, the cash flow and closing net cash balance The average
and spot rates for the principal trading currencies of the Group are
shown 1n the table below

2014 2013 Change
Year end spot rate 156 165 -5%

UsD per GBP
Pev Average spot rate 165 156 +6%
EUR per GBP Year end spot rate 128 120 +7%
Average spot rate 124 118 +5%

THE GROUP'S APPROACH TO MANAGING ITS TAX AFFAIRS
The Board 1s invelved in setting the Group’s tax pohcies which
govern the way its tax affairs are managed In summary, this means

1) the Group manages 1ts tax costs through maxirmsing the
tax efficiency of business transacttons This includes taking
advantage of available tax incentives and exemptions,

n} this must be done in a way which 1s ahgned with the Group’s
commercial objectives and meets 1ts legat obligations and
ethical standards,

m) the Group also has regard for the intention of the legistation
concerned rather than just the wording itself,

) the Group1s committed to building constructive working
relationships with tax authornities based on a policy of full
disclosure in order to remove uncertamty i 1ts busimess
transactions and to allow the authonties to review possible
Ti1sks,

v) where appropnate and possible, the Group enters into
consultation with tax authonties to help shape proposed
legislation and future tax policy, and

vi) the Group seeks to price transactons between Group
companies as 1f they were between unrelated parties,
in comphance with the QECD Transfer Pricing Guidelines
and the laws of the relevant jurisdictions

THE GROUP’S GLOBAL CORPORATE INCOME TAX CONTRIBUTION
Around 95% of the Group's underlying profit before tax (excluding
Joint ventures)is generated in the UK, US, Germany, Norway, Finland
and Singapore The remaning profits are generated across more
than 40 other countnes This teflects the fact that the majonity of
the Group's business 1s undertaken, and employees are based, in the
above countries

In common with most multinational groups, the total of all profits
n respect of which corporate tax s paid 15 not the same as the
consohdated profit before tax reported on page 95 The mamn
reasons for this are

1} the consohdated income statement is prepared under Adopted
IFRS whereas tax 1s paid on the profits of each Group company,
which are determined by local accounting rules,
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1) accountmg rules require certain income and costs relating
to our commercial activities to be ehminated from, or added
to, the aggregate of all the profits of the Group companes when
preparning the consolidated income statemeni (‘consohdation
adyjustments’), and

m) specific tax rules mcluding exemptions or incentives as
deterrmined by the tax laws in each country

The Group's total corporation tax payments in 2014 were

£276 milhon The level of tax paid in each country1s impacted

by the above In most cases, (1) and (1) are only a matter of timing
and therefore tax will be paid 1n an earlier or later year As a result
they only have a neghgible 1impact on the Group's underlyng tax
rate which, excluding jomt ventures, would be 25 5% (the underlying
tax rate includmg joint ventures can be found on page 19) This 15
due to deferred tax accounting, detatls of which can be found in
note 5 to the Financial Statements The impact of (in) will often be
permanent depending on the relevant tax law

INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Group subjects all major imvestments and capital expenditure
to a nigorous exammation of risks and future cash flows to ensure
that they create sharehclder value All major mvestments require
Board approval

The Group has a portfoho of projects at different stages of their
Iife cycles Discounted cash flow analysis of the remaming Iife of
projects 15 performed on a regular basis

Sales of engines in production are assessed against critenan
the oniginal development programme to ensure that overall value
1s enhanced

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has established a structured approach to finanaial risk
management The Financial nisk commttee {Frc) 15 accountable for
managing, reporting and rmtigating the Group's financial risks and
exposures These t1sks include the Group's principal counterparty,
currency, nterest rate, commodity price, hquadhty and credit rating
risks outhned in more depth in note 16 The Frcis chaired by the
Chief Financial Officer The Group has a comprehensive financaial
nisk policy that advocates the use of financial instruments to
manage and hedge business operations risks that arise from
movements in financial, commodities, credit or money markets
The Group’s policy 15 not to engage 1n speculative financial
transactions The Frc sits quarterly to review and assess the key
risks and agree any mitigating actions required
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE CREDIT RATING

£ milion 2014 2013 Rating Outlook Grade
Total equity 6,831 8,134  Moody's Investors Service A3 Stable Investment
Cash flow hedges 81 68  Standard & Poor’s A Stable investment
Group capital 6,912 8,202

Net funds 666 1939 The Group’s halding company, Rolls-Royce Holdings ple, subscribes

Operations are funded through vanous shareholders’ funds, bank
borrowings, bonds and notes The capital structure of the Group
reflects the judgement of the Board as to the appropniate balance
of funding required

Funding 1s secured by the Group's continued access to the global
debt markets Borrowings are funded 1n various currencies using
derwatives where appropriate to achieve a required currency and
nterest rate profile The Board’s objective is to retain sufficient
financial investments and undrawn facilities to ensure that the
Group can both meetits medum-term operational commitments
and cope with unforeseen obhgations and opportumties

The Group holds cash and short-term imvestments which, together
with the undrawn commtted facilities, enable it to manage 1ts
hquidity risk

During the year, the Group repaid a £200 milhon EIB loan

Atyear end, the Group retained aggregate hquidity of £4 1 illion
This hquidity included net funds of £666 milhon and aggregate
borrowmg facilities of £3 5 bilhon, of which £1 3 billion remained
undrawn

The maturity profile of the borrowing facilities 1s regularly reviewed
to ensure that refinancing levels are manageable in the context of
the business and market conditions The only facility to mature in
201515 a US583 milhon note There are no rating tniggers in any
borrowing faciity that would require the facihty to be accelerated
or repaid due to an adverse movement in the Group's credit rating

The Group conducts some of 1ts business through a number of joint
ventures A major proportion of the debt of these joint ventures 1s
secured on the assets of the respectve companies and s non-
recourse to the Group This debt1s further outlined in note 10

to both Moody's Investors Service and Standard & Poor’s for
independent long-term credit ratings

At 31 December 2014, the Group maintamed mvestment grade
ratings from both agencies

As a capital-intensive business making long-term commitments
to our customers, the Group attaches sigmficant importance

to maintaining or improving the current investment grade
credit ratings

ACCOUNTING

The consohdated Financial Statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), as adopted by the EU

With effect from 1 January 2014, the Group has adopted IFRS 10
Consolidated Fmancial Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities The impact of these
and other changes to IFRS which have not been adopted i 2014

15 included within the accounting pobicies im note 1
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Additronal information

GLOSSARY

ABC anti-bribery and corruption IFRS International Fimancial Reporting Standards
AGM Annual General Meeting KPls key performance indicators
ANA All Nippon Airways ktCO,e kilotonnes carbon dioxide equivalent
APRA Annual Performance Related Award plan LIBOR Londan Inter-Bank Offered Rate
CliA commeraial and admimstrative LTSA long-term service agreement
CARs contractual aftermarket nghts LNG hquefied natural gas
CEQ chief executive officer NCI non-controliing interest
CFO chief finanoa)l officer NO, nitrogen oxides
CcGU cash-generating umt Ca other comprehensive income
€0, carbon dioxide OF onginal equipment
Company Rolls-Royce plc CECD Orgamsation for Economic Cooperation and Development
ELT Executive Leadership Team PBT profit before tax
EPS earnings per ordmary share PSP Perforrmance Share Plan
EU European Union R&D research and development
EUR euro REACH Registration, Evaluation Authorisation and restniction
FRC Franeial Reporting Counenl of CHemicals
FX fore]gn exchange RRPS Rolls-Royce Power Systemns AG
GBP Creat British pound or pound sterling RRSAs nisk and revenue sharing arrangements
GHG greenhouse gas SFO Serious Fraud Office
Global Code  Global Code of Conduct SO, sulphur oxides
Croup Rolls-Royce Holdings plc and 1ts subsidianies STEM science technology engineering and mathematics
HMRC HM Revenue & Customs TCA TotalCare agreernent
HS&E health safety and environment TRI total reportable 1njunes
1&C mstrumentation and control TSR total shareholder return
1AS International Accounting Standards UAv urmanned aenal vehicle
IFRIC Internatonal Financial Reporting Interpretabions Committee  USD/USS ~ United States dollar
UTCs University Technology Centres
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